
 
Town of Surfside

Regular Town Commission Meeting
AGENDA

Tuesday, May 14, 2024
7:00 PM 

Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Fl 33154

          Rule 6.06 (a)3 Agenda. The good and welfare portion of the agenda is set for 8:15 p.m.

Any person who received compensation, remuneration or expenses for conducting lobbying
activities is required to register as a lobbyist with the Town Clerk prior to engaging in lobbying
activities per Town Code Sec. 2-235.  "Lobbyist" specifically includes the principal, as defined in
this section, as well as any agent, officer or employee of a principal, regardless of whether such
lobbying activities fall within the normal scope of employment of such agent, officer or employee.
The term "lobbyist" specifically excludes any person who only appears as a representative of a
not-for-profit community-based organization for the purpose of requesting a grant without
special compensation or reimbursement for the appearance; and any person who only appears
as a representative of a neighborhood, homeowners or condominium association without
compensation for the appearance, whether direct or indirect or contingent, to express support of
or opposition to any item. 

Per Miami Dade County Fire Marshal, the Commission Chambers has a maximum capacity of 99
people.  Once this capacity has been reached, people will be asked to watch the meeting from the
first floor. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda
Regular Town Commission Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 1



1. Opening

1A. Call to Order

1B. Roll Call of Members

1C. Pledge of Allegiance 

1D. Mayor and Commission Remarks  - Mayor Charles W. Burkett

1E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages

1F. Community Notes - Mayor Charles W. Burkett

1G. Municipal Clerks Week - Mayor Charles W. Burkett

1H. Appointment of Boards and Committee Members  - Sandra N. McCready, MMC,
Town Clerk

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings

3. Consent Agenda

All items on the consent agenda are considered routine or status reports by the
Town Commission and will be approved by one motion. Any Commission member
may request that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed
separately. If the public wishes to speak on a matter on the consent agenda they
must inform the Town Clerk prior to the start of the meeting by completing a
speaker card. They will be recognized to speak prior to the approval of the consent
agenda.

3A. Approval of Minutes - Sandra N. McCready, MMC, MPA, Town Clerk

3B. Board and Committee Meeting Minutes - Sandra McCready, MMC., Town Clerk

3C. Certification of Surfside General Municipal Elections held March 19, 2024  -
Sandra N. McCready, MMC, Town Clerk

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA CERTIFYING AND DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS HELD ON MARCH 19, 2024

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Municipal Clerks Week 2024 Request Form
Proclamation Municipal Clerks Week 2024

 

 

 

 March 26, 2024 Town Commission Workshop Meeting Minutes
April 2, 2024 Town Commission Workshop Meeting Minutes
April 9, 2024 Special Town Commission Meeting Minutes
April 9, 2024 Town Commission Meeting Minutes

 February 29, 2024 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes
March 4, 2024 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes

Agenda
Regular Town Commission Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2586514/2024-05-14_Mayor_Burkett_-_Municipal_Clerks_Week_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2586515/Proclamation_Municipal_Clerks_Week_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2564665/town-commission-workshop_minutes_summary.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2549797/town-commission-workshop_minutes_summary__2_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2581797/special-town-commission-meeting-_minutes_summary.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2581802/town-commission_minutes_summary.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2589844/February_29__2024_Planning_and_Zoning_Board_Meeting_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603538/March_4__2024_Tourist_Board_Meeting_Minutes.pdf


FOR THE ELECTION OF THE MAYOR AND FOUR COMMISSIONERS;
PROVIDINHG FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

4. Ordinances 

4B1. Ordinance Amending Section 90-41 "Regulated Uses" by Providing
Exemptions to Drug Stores - Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA AMENDING THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY
AMENDING SECTION 90-41, “REGULATED USES”, BY PROVIDING DRUG
STORES EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

4B2. Ordinance Amending the Resort Tax Powers and Duties and filing
requirements. - Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 70-124 AND 7-126, OF DIVISION 2.–“RESORT
TAX BOARD”, OF ARTICLE IV.–“RESORT TAX”, CHAPTER 70 OF THE TOWN
CODE, TO AMEND THE POWER AND DUTIES AND DELETE ANY
REQUIREMENT FOR SPECIFIC, MINIMUM ALLOCATIONS; PROVIDING FOR
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION OF RECITALS; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

5. Resolutions and Proclamations

If the public wishes to speak on any matters in this section of the agenda, they
must inform the Town Clerk by completing a speaker card and they will be
recognized to speak at the beginning of this section.

5A. Approval of the Interim Town Manager Agreement  - Mayor Charles W. Burkett

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA APPROVING THE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT OF MARISOL
VARGAS AS INTERIM TOWN MANAGER PURSUANT TO THE EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”; AND PROVIDING FOR

 Resolution Certifying Town General Elections
Certification Letter - Surfside General Municipal 03.19.24
Results Official EL45 03.29.24 -Surfside 03.19.24 Signed

 
Second Reading

First Reading

 90-41 Regulated Uses - Drug Stores

 Ordinance Amending Powers and Duties Resort Tax Board

 

Agenda
Regular Town Commission Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2593570/Resolution_Certifying_Town_General_Elections.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2541667/Certification_Letter_-_Surfside_General_Municipal_03.19.24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2541808/Results_Official_EL45_03.29.24_-Surfside__03.19.24_Signed.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2600876/90-41_Regulated_Uses_-_Drug_Stores_-_MB_changes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602945/Ordinance_Amending_Powers_and_Duties_Resort_Tax_Board_-_Form_1_Amendment.pdf


AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

5B. Approving a Resolution Creating a Community Relations Board  -
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING THE SURFSIDE COMMUNITY RELATIONS
BOARD; ADOPTING THE BOARD’S CHARTER AND ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

5C. Approval of the Intergovernmental Agency Agreement with Miami-Dade
County to Perform Traffic Engineering Functions - Mark Blumstein, Interim
Town Attorney

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH MIAMI-DADE
COUNTY RELATING TO TRAFFIC ENGINEERING FUNCTIONS ATTACHED
HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

5D. Nurse Enhancement Initiative for School Year 2024-2025  - Mark Blumstein,
Interim Town Attorney

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA, APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 7 TO THE MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, THE CITY OF MIAMI
BEACH, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, TOWN OF BAY HARBOR ISLANDS, BAL
HARBOUR VILLAGE, AND THE MIAMI BEACH CHAMBER EDUCATION
FOUNDATION, INC. TO FUND A NURSE ENHANCEMENT INITIATIVE FOR
SCHOOL YEAR 2024/2025 FOR RUTH K. BROAD BAY HARBOR K-8 CENTER;
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE
AMENDMENT TO THE MOU; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

6. Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.)  
Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports

7A. Town Manager's Report  - Marisol Vargas, Interim Town Manager

 Reso - Interim Town Manager
Marisol Vargas - Interim Town Manager Agreement

 Reso Comm Relations Board - ver3.docx

 Reso - Intergovernmental Agency Agreement
Town of Surfside Intergovenmental Agreement - Traffic Engineering Fuctions
Exhibit A - Detail Sheets

 Reso Approving MOU - Amend. No. 7 to MOU School Nurse Initiative 24-25
Nurse Enhancement Initiative Behavioral Health Services Summary Report and
Expanded Services Update
Nurse Amend No. 7 Municipalities 24-25 (Form Approved)

 

 

 May Town Manager's Report

Agenda
Regular Town Commission Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 4

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602079/Reso_-_Interim_Town_Manager_-_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602931/Marisol_Vargas_-_Interim_Town_Manager_Agreement_-rev3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603685/Reso_Comm_Relations_Board_-_ver3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2592278/Reso_-_Intergovernmental_Agency_Agmt_-_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2592276/Town_of_Surfside_Intergovenmental_Agreement_-_Traffic_Engineering_Fuctions.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2592277/Exhibit_A_-_Detail_Sheets.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603192/Reso_Approving_MOU_-_Amend._No._7_to_MOU_School_Nurse_Initiative_24-25.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2601230/LTC_165-2024_Nurse_Enhancement_Initiative_Behavioral_Health_Services_Summary_Report_and_Expanded_Services_Update.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2601231/Nurse_Amend_No._7_Municipalities_24-25__Form_Approved_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2598968/2024_May_Town_Manager_s_Report.pdf


7B. Town Attorney's Report - Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications

9A. CTS/KCE and Memorial Updates  - Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

9B. Discussion on Chapter 3 "Purchasing" related to the Town Manager's
Expending Authority - Commissioner Nelly Velasquez

9C. Recognition of LGBT Pride Month in June  - Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui

9D. Discussion of Sec. 66-7 Ban on Gas-Powered Leaf-Blowers and of the
Related Public-Education Campaign and "Warning Period" - Commissioner
Gerardo Vildostegui

9E. Ballot Question regarding Food & Beverage Tax (1 percent Homeless and
Domestic Violence tax) - Vice Mayor Tina Paul

9F. Sustainability Initiatives for the Town to Implement.  - Vice Mayor Tina Paul

9G. On-Street Parking - Mayor Charles W. Burkett

9H. Code of Ethics - Commissioner Nelly Velasquez

10. Adjournment

 Town Attorney Report - May 14 2024

 

 

 KCE Structural Engineers, P.C. Agreement
KCE Structural Engineers-Collapse of Champlain Towers South-Tasks 1 2 and 3
Addendum to Agreement for Infrastructure Monitoring Services between Schnabel
Engineering LLC and KCE Structural Engineer, PC.

 Attachment "A" - Ordinance No. 2020-1708 Purchasing Code

 

 Leaf Blower flyer

 Miami Dade County Resolution R-214-19
Statutes & Constitution View Statutes Online Sunshine
Which states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness
Letter to Mayor Burkett-Surfside 01-13-21

 What is Ecotourism and Why It Matters in 2024

 Biscaya Island Illegal Parking
Section 14-28
FL Statute 316.008

 ARTICLE VII. - Code of Ethics

  
 
Respectfully submitted,

Marisol Vargas, MPA.
Interim Town Manager

Agenda
Regular Town Commission Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 5

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603699/TA_Report_-_May_14_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2604974/KCE_Structural_Engineers__P.C._Agreement.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2604975/KCE_Structural_Engineers-Collapse_of_Champlain_Towers_South-Tasks_1_2_and_3.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2604981/Addendum_to_Agreement_for_Infrastructure_Monitoring_Services_between_Schnabel_Engineering_LLC_and_KCE_Structureal_Engineer__PC..pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2588413/Ordinance_No._2020-1708_Purchasing_Code.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2598874/Leaf_Blower_flyer.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2599526/1-_Miami_Dade_County_Resolution_R-214-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2599528/2-_Statutes___Constitution_View_Statutes__Online_Sunshine.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602030/Which_states_have_the_highest_and_lowest_rates_of_homelessness.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2599527/3-_Letter_to_Mayor_Burkett-Surfside_01-13-21.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2605592/What_Is_Ecotourism_and_Why_It_Matters_in_2024___Earth.Org.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2601966/Re__BISCAYA_ISLAND_ILLEGAL_PARKING.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603096/Section_14-28.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603199/Statutes___Constitution__View_Statutes___Online_Sunshine.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2606036/ARTICLE_VII.___CODE_OF_ETHICS.pdf


THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990, ALL PERSONS THAT ARE DISABLED; WHO NEED SPECIAL
ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING BECAUSE OF THAT DISABILITY
SHOULD CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863 EXT. 226 NO LATER
THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH PROCEEDING.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANYONE
WISHING TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE COMMISSION, WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR HEARING, WILL NEED A
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A
VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD SHALL INCLUDE THE
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED.

AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE VIEWED AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF SURFSIDE
TOWN HALL, 9293 HARDING AVENUE. ANYONE WISHING TO OBTAIN A COPY OF ANY AGENDA
ITEM SHOULD CONTACT THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863. A COMPLETE AGENDA PACKET IS
ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE AT www.townofsurfsidefl.gov.

TWO OR MORE MEMBERS OF THE TOWN COMMISSION AND/OR TOWN BOARDS MAY ATTEND
THIS MEETING.

THESE MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY MEANS OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH
COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA TECHNOLOGY, SPECIFICALLY, A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL.
THE LOCATION 9293 HARDING AVENUE, SURFSIDE, FL 33154, WHICH IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC,
SHALL SERVE AS AN ACCESS POINT FOR SUCH COMMUNICATION.

Agenda
Regular Town Commission Meeting

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 6

file:///tmp/www.townofsurfsidefl.gov


 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 1G.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Mayor Charles W. Burkett

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Municipal Clerks Week

 

 

 

 
 

For the commission approve the resolution as submitted recognizing the work of municipal
clerks and the vital role they play in government.
 

The first week in May is internationally recognized as Municipal Clerks Week.
 
The Town Commission wishes to extend their appreciation to our Municipal Clerk, Sandra
McCready, Deputy Clerk Genesis Guevara, and Assistant to the Clerk Priscilla Krutules for the
vital service they provide to the Town of Surfside and its residents. 

Municipal Clerks Week 2024 Request Form

Proclamation Municipal Clerks Week 2024

7

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2586514/2024-05-14_Mayor_Burkett_-_Municipal_Clerks_Week_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2586515/Proclamation_Municipal_Clerks_Week_2024.pdf


TTOOWWNN  OOFF  SSUURRFFSSIIDDEE  
PPRROOCCLLAAMMAATTIIOONN,,  CCEERRTTIIFFIICCAATTEE,,  CCOOIINN  AANNDD  KKEEYY  TTOO  TTHHEE  TTOOWWNN

RREEQQUUEESSTT  FFOORRMM  
OOFFFFIICCEE  OOFF  TTHHEE  TTOOWWNN  CCLLEERRKK  

Request for:  Proclamation __ Certificate ____ Key ____ Brick ____   (check one) 

Date of Request:  

Name of Requestor: 

Organization:  

Address: 

Phone / E-Mail:  

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________ 

Name of Individual / Organization to be honored: 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Title for Proclamation or Certificate: 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Date of Recognition:  _________________________________________________________ 

Reason for Recognition (Please attach 4 – 6 “whereas clauses” as draft text for a Proclamation):  

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Document is to be:  

• Presented at a Commission Meeting in ______________________ (month / year)

• Presented at the following event _________________________ (Please attach event
information to the request form)

• Picked up by _____________________ on ______________________ (date)

Administrative Use Only 

Proclamation ________  Certificate ________                Key _________   Coin ______ 

Approved:  Yes_____ No_____ If no, state reason: ______________________________________________ 

Approved Date: _______________ 

Date Submitted for Mayor’s Signature: ______________________________ 

Date Issued: ______________________________ 

Completed by:  ______________________________ 

4/24/2024

Mayor Charles W. Burkett

Town of Surfside

9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, FL  33154

mayor@townofsurfsidefl.gov

Town of Surfside Clerks; Sandra McCready, Genesis Guevara, Priscilla Krutules

Municipal Clerks Week

5/14/2024

See attached proclamation

May 2024

X

8



PROCLAMATION

Municipal Clerks Week
May 5-11, 2024

WHEREAS, the Office of the Municipal Clerk, a time honored and vital part of local 
government exists throughout the world, and

WHEREAS the Office of the Municipal Clerk is the oldest among public servants, and

WHEREAS, the Office of the Municipal Clerk provides the professional link between the 
citizens, the local governing bodies and agencies of government at other levels, and

WHEREAS municipal clerks have pledged to be ever mindful of their neutrality and 
impartiality, rendering equal service to all, and

WHEREAS the municipal clerk serves as the information center on functions of local 
government and community, and

WHEREAS municipal clerks continually strive to improve the administration of the 
affairs of the Office of the Municipal Clerk through participation in education programs, 
seminars, workshops and the annual meetings of their state, provincial, county and 
international professional organizations, and

WHEREAS it is most appropriate that we recognize the accomplishments of the Office of 
the Municipal Clerk.

NOW, THEREORE, I, Charles W. Burkett, Mayor of Surfside, do recognize the week of 
May 5 through May 11, 2024, as Municipal Clerks Week.  I further extend appreciation 
to our Municipal Clerk, Sandra McCready, Deputy Clerk Genesis Guevara, Assistant to 
the Clerk Priscilla Krutules, and to all municipal clerks for the vital services they 
perform and their exemplary dedication to the communities they represent.

Dated this 14h day of May 2024.

_________________________________      
Charles W. Burkett, Mayor
Town of Surfside

9



Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 1H.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Sandra N. McCready, MMC, Town Clerk
Subject: Appointment of Boards and Committee Members

Suggested Action: – For the Town Commission to fill the vacancies on various committees.

Background/Analysis: – During the April 9, 2024 Town Commission meeting, the
commission made appointments to the Boards and Committees. 
 
We are currently looking for the Town Commission to fill the outstanding vacancies on the
following boards and committees:
 
TOURIST BOARD
Commissioner Velasquez  
 
YOUTH COUNCIL
Mayor Burkett  
Vice Mayor Paul  
Commissioner Coto  
Commissioner Velasquez  
Commissioner Vildostegui  
Liaison  
 
PERSONNEL APPEALS BOARD
Mayor Burkett  
Vice Mayor Paul  
Commissioner Coto Michelle Kligman
Commissioner Velasquez  
Commissioner Vildostegui  
Liaison  
 
PENSION BOARD
At large appointment  

10



At large appointment  

 
POLICE OFFICERS TRUST
At large appointment  
At large appointment  

11



1. Opening

1.A Call to Order

1.B Roll Call of Members

1.C Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communication

2.A Discussion Items for the April 9, 2024 Town Commission Meeting  - Mayor
Charles W. Burkett

 
Town of Surfside

Town Commission Workshop
MINUTES

March 26, 2024
5:00 PM 

Commission Chambers

 

 
Mayor Burkett called the meeting to order at 5:19 p.m.

 
Town Clerk McCready called the roll with the following members present.
 
Present: Mayor Charles W. Burkett, Vice Mayor Tina Paul, Commissioner Ruben
Coto, Commissioner Nelly Velasquez, and Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui.
 
Also Present: Interim Town Attorney Mark Blumstein and Town Manager Hector
Gomez.

 
Chief Marciante led the pledge of allegiance.

 

 
For the Town Commission to discuss and provide to the Town Manager discussion
item topics to be included in the April 9, 2024 agenda.

Mayor Burkett introduced the item.
 
Mayor Burkett asked the Town Commission if they would like to open public
comment.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui agreed and suggested multiple rounds of public comment.
 
Mayor Burkett agreed.
 

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 12



Vice Mayor Paul stated how she believed the meeting was at 6:00 p.m. and how to
her understanding special meetings and budget workshops are at 5:00pm, regular
workshops and quasi-judicial meetings are at 6:00 p.m., and Commission meetings
at 7:00 p.m. She advised for future meetings to keep this time.
 
Commissioner Velasquez suggested commission meetings to start at 6:00 p.m. to
have more time to address items.
 
Mayor Burkett stated how 5:00 p.m. meetings are preferable. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul shared how the meeting schedules she mentioned had worked
during her prior terms and how she would like to see the Commission to go back to
its traditional meeting time.
 
Commissioner Velasquez mentioned how the Commission can change meeting
times whenever they see fit. She asked if the time for next first couple of Commission
meetings could be changed to 6:00 p.m. until their priorities list is addressed.
 
Mayor Burkett suggested for this item to be addressed in the agenda for the next
Commission meeting. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez asked if the meeting in April could be done at 6:00 p.m.
instead of 7:00 p.m.
 
Town Clerk McCready stated the notice of the meeting can be changed if the
Commission desires. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez expressed how the next Commission meeting in April can
be done at 7:00 p.m., but for the Commission to vote in April if the meetings should
be done at 6:00 p.m. moving forward. 
 
A conversation between Mayor Burkett and resident Eliana Salzhauer was
conducted.
 
Commissioner Coto stated how he is flexible with meeting times.
 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor for public comment.
 
Jeffrey Platt stated how he agreed with Vice Mayor Paul regarding the time the
meetings should start. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked the Commission if there was a specific ending time for the
meetings.
 
Vice Mayor Paul stated how traditionally meetings ended at 11:00pm.
 
Mayor Burkett agreed with the meeting ending time. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez asked if the Commission was not able to speak on all the
agenda items during one meeting, will the items that were not addressed be moved

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 13



to the following meeting.
 
Mayor Burkett agreed on moving non addressed items to the following meeting. He
stated how working late meetings was not productive.
 
Eliana Salzhauer stated how the previous Commission moved certain discussion
items to the beginning of meetings when not enough residents had arrived to give
public comments.
 
Mayor Burkett shared how the previous Commission would allow individuals to
speak on agenda items that had not been previously discussed.
 
A conversation between Mayor and Resident Eliana Salzhauer took place regarding
the previous Commission's actions on agenda items.
 
Eliana Salzhauer spoke regarding the beginning and ending time of meetings.
 
Olha Sperkacz stated how in Carlyle Avenue there is a lot of traffic, lack of police
presence, and accidents. She asked the Commission for a solution to these issues.
Marsha Maya stated how on 96th street there is a lot of traffic congestion. 
Phyllis Shamis shared how the Commission should enforce minors to wear helmets
while riding scooters and bicycles. She stated how many drivers are utilizing their
phones while driving. She asked the Commission to enforce people to wear their
seatbelt and prohibit the use of telephones while driving.
 
There was consensus by the Commission to give Ms. Shamis an extra minute to
speak.
 
Magdalena De Perez stated how the pool heater at the community center has not
worked in over a month. She also shared how Carlyle Avenue floods tremendously. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez addressed resident De Perez' comments regarding the
comments made by the project engineers for the flooding project stated that by fixing
the flooding in Abbott Avenue, it would help with the flooding throughout the rest of
the Town. 
 
Eliana Salzhauer shared how the prior Commission had done many zoning changes.
 
Mayor Burkett and Vice Mayor Paul asked Ms. Salzhauer to summarize the issues
and email the list to them.
 
Eliana Salzhauer continued to summarize the zoning issues she had found.
 
A conversation between the Commission and Ms. Salzhauer regarding the zoning
issues was conducted.
 
Mayor Burkett asked Town Manager Gomez if the Town Planner and Building Official
were going to attend today's meeting.
 
Town Manager Gomez stated how the Town Planner was out of office and the

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 14



Building Official was not asked to attend today's meeting.
 
Mayor Burkett shared how he was disappointed with the planning department due to
the many zoning issues and the misinterpretation of the Town Code done by them.
 
Ms. Salzhauer continued to share more of the zoning issues. She expressed her
concern regarding lots being raised which causes problems to neighboring houses.
 
Commissioner Velasquez said how FEMA states how houses have to be raised, not
lots. 
 
Ms. Salzhauer shared more of the issues she had found. She stated how the Town
should adopt a friendlier police model. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked Police Chief Marciante to speak and address the Commission
regarding the issue with Joshua Epstein.
 
Ms. Salzhauer shared how there was a police report that was not done properly.
 
Mayor Burkett stated the investigation was not done properly.
 
Police Chief Marciante communicated how the case is an ongoing investigation by
the State Attorney's Office. He stated he believed this case might turn into a civil
case for the Town and how he believes it would not be appropriate to speak on this
matter. He stated how most public records have been released. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked Interim Town Attorney Blumstein if this case was an ongoing
investigation. 
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein shared how the State Attorney's Office is pending a
decision which will be given this week. He stated there is not a pending civil matter in
front of the Town.
 
Mayor Burkett asked Interim Town Attorney Blumstein if he is referring to what this
would mean in the Police Department.
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein expressed how the police has completed all work
required and it is now pending a decision from the State Attorney's Office.
 
Mayor Burkett addressed Police Chief Marciante regarding this case. He asked
Police Chief Marciante to address the Town residents regarding the arrest.
 
Police Chief Marciante responded he did not want to talk about the case. He shared
how the men and women working in the Police Department are exceptional and do
extensive training.
 
Mayor Burkett asked Police Chief Marciante to address the Town's residents and
elaborate if the Police Department can make their residents feel safe.
 
Police Chief Marciante shared how the police department has extensive training,

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 15



good judgement, low instances of use of force, and low complaints.
 
Mayor Burkett asked Police Chief Marciante if the incident with Joshua Epstein was
an anomaly and if the Town has to be worried about their children getting arrested
too. 
 
Police Chief Marciante clarified how the police department will follow the state law.
 
Commissioner Velasquez told Police Chief Marciante that the decision to arrest
Joshua Epstein was sent by him. She asked how can the arrest happen if not all
witnesses were spoken to. She stated how the arrest was not humane.
 
Diana Gonzalez shared how the traffic in Harding Avenue is very heavy and no
police cars are helping with this issue. She added how kids riding scooters in fast
velocities in the Town is dangerous.
 
Mayor Burkett closed public comment.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui stated how will the Commission proceed with the meeting
and to keep in mind the April 9th meeting is a priority. He suggested to the
Commission to keep mentioning their priorities. He proceeded to share a list of topic
areas to make suggestions for items. Among those topic areas were: Infrastructure,
good governance, recreational facilities, the Champlain Towers Memorial, and
zoning.
 
Mayor Burkett asked Commissioner Vildostegui to elaborate on those topics.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui shared how his priorities for the next few minutes were the
drainage project and the Champlain Tower South Memorial.
 
The Commission reached consensus to add the Champlain Towers South Memorial,
drainage project, and undergrounding project as a priority list items.
 
Commissioner Coto shared he would like to add an item regarding police presence. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated he would like to listen to Commissioner Coto's priority items for
the Commission to come into agreement if his items would enter the priority list. He
stated the priority items will be given to Town Manager Gomez to add onto the April
9th agenda.
 
Vice Mayor Paul suggested for all Commissioners to share their lists since she
believes that a lot of the items overlap with each other. 
 
Commissioner Vildostegui clarified his list was broad topics, not specific agenda
items. He suggested for the Commision to speak on broad topic areas to then make
suggestions regarding specific issues.
 
Mayor Burkett stated he would like to speak on specific agenda items.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui clarified his ideas to the Commission regarding his

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 16



proposal for the dynamic of tonight's conversation. He shared he would like to speak
about infrastructure. Besides the topics of the drainage and undergrounding project,
he suggested for 88th street to be redesigned to be more pedestrian and bicycle
friendly. He stated how his focus is on the drainage project.
 
Commissioner Velasquez shared how tonight they were going to focus on the items
for the April 9th meeting, however, if the Commission desires to speak more on
infrastructure issues they could have other meetings like roundtable sessions. 
 
Commissioner Coto stated how Commissioner Vildostegui addressed most of the
items on his list. Commissioner Coto proceeded to ask Town Manager Gomez
regarding the traffic study conducted.
 
Town Manager Gomez answered how the traffic study will be ready by the end of
next week as it is being finalized.
 
Commissioner Coto shared how the Champlain South Tower Memorial needs to be
moved forward and what can be done to do so. He stated he would like to add onto
his list the flooding issues and zoning changes brought up by Ms. Salzhauer. He
asked if the zoning changes can be reserved.
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein expressed he would like the list from Ms. 
Salzhauer. He suggested to prepare the amended ordinance the Commission is
seeking to revert back to, and each issue can be adopted one by one.
 
Mayor Burkett asked Ms. Salzhauer to send the zoning issues list to Interim Town
Attorney Blumstein.
 
Commissioner Coto stated he had another list sent by a resident that he will send to
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein as well.
 
Commissioner Velasquez suggested an ordinance for the misuse of religious
exemption. She added how the lot that had been split is not 100ft. She stated how an
ordinance should be made specifying how lots need to be 50ft all around. She added
how some houses seem too large. She added how she is not in favor of rooftop
decks and how this should be added to the charter for the sake of privacy. She
stated how the charter says that all houses should be up to two stories. She
mentioned how if the town will be doing the Abbot Avenue drainage project with
funds that the Town has, the referendum passed by the previous Commission to
borrow money for this project should not be continued. She stated how the Town
should reverse the funds that were restricted into different funds. She shared how
the only restricted fund should be the hurricane fund and all other funds should be
put all together to keep track of how much the Town has. She shared how an
ordinance should be made for the Town Manager to not have the authority to give
employees raises more than 3-5%, any more than that should be approved by the
Town Commission. Commissioner Velasquez added how residents should be able to
put out more than 3 signs on their lawns during elections, if residents wanted to
support all five candidates, they should be allowed to put five signs. She spoke
regarding the FEMA requirement of the raising of houses, not lots. She added
regarding the new bill passed in Tallahassee that states when buildings are not up to

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 17



code, it gives local government the power of jurisdiction if a building should be
demolished. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul shared how other municipalities are working on appealing this new
bill. She stated how she would like for the Town of Surfside to join the appeal. Vice
Mayor Paul expressed how this bill is not favorable for historical buildings. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez expressed if a building does not agree with FEMA
standards, a Commission can vote to allow that building to be demolished. She
stated how the prior Commission had a friendly relationship with developers which
can lead to lots of residents lost and houses devalued, opening a path for developers
to buy lots and not allowing residents to afford to live in the Town. She stated how
these actions are wrong. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul proceeded to share her list of items. She addressed some of those
items were from public comments: traffic issues, minors wearing helmets while riding
bikes and scooters, and conducting a traffic workshop. She continued speaking on
the reverse of Resolution No. 23-Z-3209 for the site plan approval for 8777 Collins
Avenue due to misinterpretation of the zoning code. She believes this development
should have not been set to be built before the Champlain Tower South Memorial.
 
Commissioner Coto spoke regarding the naming of the memorial to be changed and
get feedback from the family members of the victims.
 
Vice Mayor Paul shared her request for the Memorial Committee to be reactivated
and to work on the Champlain Tower South anniversary coming up in June.
 
Town Manager Gomez shared how committee meetings were pushed back until
April until the Commission appoints new members. He stated how the only request
from the family members in order to be part of the Memorial Committee is to be an
immediate family member or a survivor.
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked Town Manager Gomez if the Memorial Committee was
reactivated. 
 
Town Manager Gomez advised Vice Mayor Paul that the last day the Committee
Members met was the day before elections. He stated how the members met with
the design team for the memorial, but only ideas were shared. He spoke regarding
the Commission's decision to dismantle all Boards and Committees but that he was
still speaking with the Memorial Committee members as if they were still part of the
Board.
 
Commissioner Velasquez shared how the members of the committee should be
family members of the victims.
 
Vice Mayor Paul shared how she would like the Memorial Committee to be
reinstated and to add a survivor as a Committee Member.
 
Mayor Burkett asked if the Commission would like to add as an agenda item for the
April meeting the reinstatement of the Memorial Committee.

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 18



 
Town Manager Gomez stated an agenda item regarding this matter was already
added to the April meeting. He asked for the Commission to treat the Memorial
Committee with more sensitivity, but if the Commission desires, they can appoint
more individuals. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked Vice Mayor Paul if what she wanted to do was to reinstate the
Committee and add one extra member.
 
Vice Mayor Paul agreed. She shared how the name of the survivor is Yady Santos
who escaped the building with her young son and helped rescue others from the
building. She expressed how she would like to reinstate the Budget Committee
during the April meeting. She also spoke regarding the creation of a Community
Relations Board they had previously discussed before the elections. She added how
she would like this item to be on the April agenda.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui shared how he would like to create the Community
Relations Board in April and appoint members during the May Commission meeting.
He explained how he would like to discuss what the Board's duties and expectations
are during the April meeting for residents to have a clear idea of what this Board
entails. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul agreed with Commissioner Vildostegui thanked all the residents
who have applied to Boards and Committees. She asked for the Budget Committee
applications to be on the website for residents to apply. Vice Mayor Paul asked Town
Manager Gomez if DVAC was still active.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui stated that during the April meeting they can create the
board if an item is created to discuss the board, and maybe appoint members in May
after soliciting applications.
 
Vice Mayor Paul spoke about the need to bring back the Budget Committee and the
DVAC Committee.
 
Town Manager Gomez clarified that DVAC Committee is a Town Manager's
Committee and it is active as well as the CTS Memorial and the Youth Council.
 
Vice Mayor spoke about resolution 2024-3254 which is related to the Religious Land
Use Relief related to the 9300 Collins Avenue project. She spoke specific to the
historic facade in the historic structure. She believes that the Town can be more
restrictive than the County. She will like to bring this back and revisit the facade. She
requested for the Town Manager not to release a demolition permit to demolish that
facade.
 
Town Manager Gomez stated he will check the status of the permit and present it to
the Commission.
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked the Town Manager for an item to be placed on the April 9th
agenda regarding the permit. 
 

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 19



Commissioner Velasquez expressed her expectations that if a permit is requested
for the demolition of the structure, such permit is suspended until the April 9, 2024
meeting. The Town Manager stated that if that's the will of the Town Commission, he
will check the status of the permit and if it has not been used, the permit will be hold.
 
Vice Mayor Paul requested for this Commission to be updated on the FAA and
where we left of during the April or the May meeting. She also requested an update
on the CTS investigation. Vice Mayor Paul asked if resolution 2023-3021 regarding
to the LPR readers has been implemented.
 
Town Manager Gomez responded affirmatively with the different location where the
LPRs have been implemented. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked the status of resolution 2023-3244 Freebie program. 
 
Town manager Gomez stated that all agreements have been executed, they are in
the process of installing the chargers and they are scheduled to begin in April.
 
Commissioner Velasquez stated that she added an item to the April agenda for the
Town Commission to visit and discuss the possibility of bringing an IT in house.
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked about resolution 2024-3276 Bond referendum for Abbott
Drainage and her wishes to repeal it.  She doesn't believe they will need it as they
have full intention of making this project a priority. She stated how the Town had 4
million Dollars for this project. 
 
Town Manager Gomez continued to share to the Commission the specific amounts
allocated for the drainage project.
 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed how she would like for this Commission to review all the
design projects for more resident input. Specifically, the Surfside Boulevard, sidewalk
beautification, downtown walkability, Champlain Memorial, and the new design
guidelines. She requested the Town manager to update the Town Commission if
possible.
 
Town Manager Gomez provided an update for the comp plan and the design review
guidelines. Some discussion took place related to the 70-foot increase to the Tennis
Center. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked the Town Manager for any capital projects to be shown to the
Commission.
 
Town Manager Gomez stated to the Commission they had already received
orientation to all capital projects and asked if the Commission wished to put a hold
on the projects. 
 
Mayor Burkett expressed he would like to see the projects before they proceed. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul spoke regarding an ordinance to be placed on the April agenda that
never received a number because it was not adopted during second reading. The

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 20



ordinance in question demanded the scope of 24-inch setbacks and be retroactive to
development approvals from the last two years. 
 
Town Manager Gomez advised the Town Commission if they wished to bring back
that ordinance, a meeting should be scheduled to discuss the adoption. 
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein advised the Commission he would review the
referenced ordinance. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul told the Commission she had a list of ordinances she would like
revised. The following ordinances suggestions were mentioned: Ordinance no. 2022-
1722 non-habitable understory should be referred to the Planning and Zoning Board
and possibly amend the charter, ordinance no. 2022-1723 prohibited noises for
landscaping should be repealed, ordinance no. 2022-1724 setbacks should be
repealed, ordinance no. 2022-1725 marine structures should be under review by the
Interim Town Attorney and the Planning and Zoning Board, ordinance no. 2022-1726
prohibited noises should be repealed, ordinance no. 2022-1728 lot coverage should
be repealed or referred to the Planning and Zoning Board, ordinance no. 2022-1730
mechanical equipment should be repealed, ordinance no. 2022-1731 generators
should be evaluated regarding the placement of them, ordinance no. 2022-1732
Planning and Zoning Board membership qualifications as she would like to remove
number 10 and revise number 1 and number 9 to specify for real estate developers
and contractors to not conduct business in the Town to evade any conflict of interest.
 
Commissioner Velasquez added how a convicted felon was part of the Planning and
Zoning Board and how she would not like for individuals with this type of background
should be part of the Board. 
 
Mayor Burkett discussed regarding a possible member he would like to be part of the
Board. 
 
The Commission conducted a discussion regarding the changes of the qualifications
and possible changes to the Town Charter regarding this matter.
 
Vice Mayor Paul continued her list of ordinances. Ordinance 2023-1733 curb cuts
should be deferred to the planning and Zoning Board for review.
 
Commissioner Velasquez expressed how she is in agreement with this ordinance
and does not wish to repeal it due to this ordinance allowing spaces to be freed on
the street for traffic to flow. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there could be an agreement regarding this ordinance. He
shared how he is not in favor of pavement over the front yard of houses and would
like to repeal that. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul continued her list of ordinances. Ordinance no. 2023-1733
modification of side and rear yard regulations should be repealed, ordinance no.
2023-1737 setback and yards definitions should be under the Interim Town Attorney
and Planning and Zoning Board for review. Vice Mayor Paul asked Interim Town
Attorney Blumstein to advice which ordinances from the list should be deferred to the

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 21



Planning and Zoning Board and which ones should not. Ordinance no. 2023-1742
roof decks should be under the review of the Interim Town Attorney, ordinance no.
2023-1746 balcony overhang limitations should be repealed, ordinance no 2023-
1748 public right-of-way should be repealed.
 
Ms. Salzhauer explained this ordinance allows individuals negotiate with the Town to
place construction materials in the right-of-way, but all materials have to be moved
later and how this ordinance was an attempt to privatize the right-of-way. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul continued her list of ordinances. Ordinance no. 2023-1749 synthetic
turf should be under review. She shared how synthetic turf is not good for the
environment. She would like for the Commission not to give penalties to residents
that have synthetic turf but, once the life of the product is over, residents have to
install real grass.  Vice Mayor Paul addressed a public comment regarding
construction site security of open fences addressed in ordinance no. 2022-1720 has
not been enforced fully and she has asked Code Compliance to make sure all
construction sites in the Town are complying with this ordinance. Ordinance no.
2023-1752 setbacks should be under the Interim Town Attorney's review, ordinance
no. 2023-1759 public participation amendment should be repealed, ordinance no.
2024-1768 30% reduction in building permit fees related to condominium
recertifications and structural life safety repairs, she believed building permits fees
need to be reviewed as it has not been structured properly and how fees on new
constructions should be higher.
 
Mayor Burkett added he believes the permit fees should be zero for properties that
are mandated to fix their homes by the government.
 
Commissioner Velasquez added how permit fees are put into general budget instead
of the building department.
 
Mayor Burkett clarified he would not want the fees for new construction to be raised,
but to wave the fees of houses who are required to do repairs. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked if this item can be added to the April meeting agenda.
 
Town Manager Gomez advised the Commission some of the items mentioned are
ordinances and resolutions that need to be reviewed under the Interim Town
Attorney.
 
Mayor Burkett advised for all items being repealed, they can all be under consent
agenda.
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein stated all items that have to be repealed will be
addressed in a sequence order that might include the input of the Planning and
Zoning Board. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul continued her list of ordinances. Ordinance 2024-1769 amending
division 2 article 2 of chapter 34 raising of the lots should be revised. 
 
Commissioner Vildostegui proceeded to share his priority list. He believes the

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 22



Commission needs to choose 10 or 11 items.
 
Mayor Burkett suggested to vote on the list of items to decide which ones are a
priority.
 
Commissioner Velasquez stated that the drainage project and the memorial should
be a priority.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui mentioned the following items from his list: 10 % vs. 10-
foot site setback, drainage project, ban on non-disclosure agreements, and
modifications to rule 704 and 705. He shared how he would like to set good
governance changes early on the term. He informed the Commission he later on
would like to speak on banning Commissioners from having offices in Town Hall and
an anti-electioneering ordinance. He suggested to the Commission to hold off on the
discussion of recreation facilities and wait until the late summer to talk regarding the
next recreation facility. Commissioner Vildostegui shared information regarding a
meeting on April 17th Miami Beach will be hosting regarding recreational uses of
west lots and how the Town can be involved.
 
Vice Mayor Paul shared her wishes for the community center snack bar to be
reopened. She asked for this item to be added to the April agenda.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui spoke how he would like to authorize the Town Manager
to negotiate with 8801 Collins regarding their driveway access on the street for the
Champlain Tower Memorial, he stated he would like this item to be on the April
agenda. Commissioner Vildostegui shared his thoughts regarding the zoning items,
he asked to prioritize the 10% over 10-foot issue, raising houses, and docks.
Regarding traffic, he stated how some of those issues have been resolved, but there
are proposals that can help with remaining issues. He added he would like to speak
on environmental matters and have a plastic free Town Hall as a first step.
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed his concerns on the Commission's process of
choosing agenda items. 
 
Commissioner Coto asked if another workshop can be conducted to address the
agenda items being presented.
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked the Town Clerk to send a list of all the items being mentioned
for the Commission to vote on them. 
 
Town Manager Gomez suggested a Survey Monkey to be conducted amongst the
commission to choose agenda items.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui suggested for the Commission to list their top 5 issues
and make a first cut for the April agenda.
 
Mayor Burkett expressed how he does not mind a long agenda due to the meeting
ending at 11:00pm. 
 
A conversation regarding the length of the agenda and the discussion items was
conducted amongst the Commission. 

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 23



 
Ms. Salzhauer shared how there were many problems within the Parks and
Recreation Committee due to the decorum rules.  She asked for the Commission to
give the Town Manager direction for the April meeting. She also mentioned the
reinstitution of resident's rights to speak during meetings. 
 
Mayor Burkett shared the following list of issues: FAA issues, charter questions and
possible new Charter Committee, plat issues, copies of videos being released, and
edited video being released to Commissioner Velasquez.  
 
Town Manager Gomez expressed how legal opinion from the Interim Town Attorney
is needed.
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein asked the Commission to clarify on the video
request regarding Commissioner Velasquez.
 
Commissioner Velasquez also mentioned the release of a video requested by Ms.
Salzhauer.
 
Mayor Burkett stated the Town needs to be transparent unless there is a legal issue.
He shared he asked Police Chief Marciante to take down all the tints off the police
cars.
 
Police Chief Marciante responded he received two quotes from the vendor but is
waiting on a meeting to be conducted with the Town Manager.
 
Town Manager Gomez proposed to the commission a full visibility tint with UV
protection for the police officers. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated how he would like the Town to raise parking fees, give
residents a discount for parking fees, and get rid of 15-minute parking spaces. He
shared how he would like these items to be put on the agenda. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul shared to direct the Town Manager to look into the parking system
from Miami Beach.
 
Mayor Burkett stated the parking prices need to be raised for non-residents. He
spoke regarding the Community Center second story and how the Commission will
not be executing that idea. Mayor Burkett added how double parking, speeding, and
pulling over loud cars will be addressed with 24-hour police watch.  He also spoke
regarding revising the second 70-feet and the wishes to unwind it. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that issue will not be brought up in the comp plan. 
 
Mayor Burkett shared he would like to raise a charter question regarding building
heights to be capped. 
 
Soledad Krasner shared her issues with the parking around the community center.
She also shared a negative experienced she had with a Town employee.
 

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 24



Vice Mayor Paul stated how every year the Town buys new Town vehicles. She
expressed how the Commission should have a list of all vehicles that have been
purchased. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked Finance Director Javier Collazo to speak regarding this matter. 
 
Commissioner Coto shared how there was a talk regarding removing 15-16 parking
spots in the commercial zone, which he is not in agreement with.
 
Town Manager Gomez stated how the permit for the project is frozen until further
notice.
 
Commissioner Velasquez shared how she would like to speak on this issue. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated the Commission can speak on this issue later on. The Mayor
proceeded to ask Finance Director Collazo to circulate to the Commission a
spreadsheet with the Town Vehicles list.
 
Commissioner Velasquez asked Finance Director Collazo if the general fund issue
she had mentioned can be reversed. 
 
Finance Director Collazo stated how the fund balance policy is up to the
Commission's discretion. 
 
Mayor Burkett shared his concerns regarding the veteran's park.
 
Commissioner Coto shared how he had been speaking with Parks and Recreation
Director Tim Milian and there will be volunteers working on the park.
 
Mayor Burkett shared how he would like to see change in the planning department
and how he would like to give the Town Manager direction regarding that issue. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed how the Champlain approval was a misinterpretation of
the Town's zoning code. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez added how Town employees stated that FDOT had
approved projects or needed to approve projects which she stated it was false. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated the planning department needs to be revamped, he shared the
planning department has been a disappointment. Mayor Burkett expressed he would
like a planning department he can trust.
 
Commissioner Velasquez shared she felt the same way as the Mayor.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui shared his thoughts on the Champlain approval.
 
Mayor Burkett reminded Commissioner Vildostegui the direction they are giving the
Town Manager regarding the planning department.
 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed how she would like the 10% vs. 10-feet issue fixed by

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 25



the planning department.
 
Town Manager Gomez shared how by not trusting the planning department,
therefore, the Commission does not trust the Town Manager.
 
Mayor Burkett and Vice Mayor Paul clarified that is not what they meant.
 
Vice Mayor Paul stated the planning department made a mistake regarding the 10%
vs. 10-feet issue. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez expressed how the Town employee's statement regarding
the FDOT approval of the project was a lie. She shared how the Planning and Zoning
Board based their decision on what the Town employees were stating. She voiced
how the Town cannot continue to have a department that lies. 
 
Town Manager Gomez asked the Commission if this is direction to terminate a
certain employee. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated that is not the Commission's job to give that direction.
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked Town Manager Gomez to fix the error made by the former
Town Attorney and the Planning and Zoning Board she had stated earlier. 
 
Ms. Salzhauer stated that the FDOT approval of the garbage dock on 88th street
was a lie, not an error by the planning department and the Planning and Zoning
Board.
 
Mayor Burkett stated how the garbage dock next to the Champlain Memorial was a
disrespect. 
 
Commissioner Coto stated how FDOT said they have never spoken with Town
employees regarding this matter.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed how the Commission needs to look forward on
how to undo the damage of the 10-feet misinterpretation and the FDOT lie. He
shared how he is not inclined on blaming the Town employees of what had
happened, rather, he spoke on the former Commissioner's actions. He voiced how
he would like to focus on moving forward. 
 
Mayor Burkett communicated how the Town watched Town employees spread
misinformation. He expressed how it was all "perfectly choreographed" by the former
Commissioners, Town employees, and Planning and former Zoning Board Chair. He
shared how the former Commission could have done something regarding the
garbage dock next to the Champlain Memorial but they did not do so. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul spoke about moving forward and fix the misinterpretation of the
zoning code.
 
Mayor Burkett asked the Vice Mayor if the planning department tells her something
she is not sure of will she believe it.

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 26



 
Vice Mayor Paul stated she would direct her questions to the Town Attorney.
 
Mayor Burkett asked Interim Town Attorney Blumstein regarding a former
Commissioner who is using various houses in the residential district as warehouses.
He expressed how would like to put this item on the agenda as well. He spoke
regarding sidewalk issues, green in the walking paths, sign pollution in the Town and
to revise the Town's sign ordinance. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul stated how in ordinance no.1720 states that all construction sites
should have an emergency sign. She stated how code enforcement should look into
this issue when visiting construction sites in the Town. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked Finance Director Collazo regarding the amount of money the
Town has. 
 
Finance Director Collazo told the Commission a brief overview of the Town's budget.
 
Mayor Burkett, Town Manager Gomez, and Finance Director Collazo had a
conversation regarding the Town's budget. Mayor Burkett requested Finance
Director Collazo to create a spreadsheet that explains the Town's budget.
 
Mayor Burkett asked the Commission regarding the Town's lobbyist.
 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed she had previously met the lobbyist and shared her
positive experience.
 
Mayor Burkett shared the Town needs to be judicious when picking a lobbyist. 
 
Town Manager Gomez advised the Commission to trust their lobbyist. 
 
Mayor Burkett expressed how the Town Manager needs to conduct a more thorough
investigation of the lobbyist's values and vision to make sure it aligns with the
Commission's vision. He added he would like this item on the agenda and an update
from the Town Manager. 
 
Mayor Burkett and Vice Mayor Paul conducted a discussion regarding the lobbyist. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated how certain things could not be done due to a police
investigation. He suggested for Interim Town Attorney Blumstein to request a copy of
the police investigation. He added the Planning and Zoning Board appointment rules
need to be addressed. He also spoke regarding the 10% vs. 10-feet issue, 9300
Collins Avenue determination on FEMA and their involvement. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated how FEMA is pending final determination, however,
the Town did receive a final determination from the state flood manager and the
building official stating it is consistent with what FEMA allows for mix use.
 
Ms. Salzhauer shared how she had many conversations with the FEMA investigator.
She expressed how FEMA does not allow underground parking for residential

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 27



buildings in flooding zones. However, they do allow underground parking for mixed
use. She stated how FEMA relies on the flood manager's determination to make a
decision. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked Town Manager Gomez when did the flood manager made the
determination. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated he does not know the exact date.
 
Mayor Burkett shared an issue regarding a home on 93rd and Abbott that is too
large. He stated he spoke with the Town's building official and asked if he was aware
of the issue. He asked the building official to measure the house. 
 
Commissioner Vildostegui suggested for the Commissioners to suggest five items in
order to have a short agenda for residents to be more engaged. Commissioner
Vildostegui's top five items were: Abbott Avenue drainage project, Champlain
Memorial, 8801 driveway direction, banning use of non-disparagement and non-
disclosure agreements, creation of the Community Relations Board, and 10% vs. 10-
feet issue.
 
Vice Mayor Paul proceeded to share her top items: Champlain Memorial, community
center snack bar, and the repeal of Resolution No. 2023-Z-3209.
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein asked Vice Mayor Paul if the repeal of the
resolution was regarding the Champlain Memorial new construction. He asked if this
was a subject of a development order. 
 
Town Manager Gomez responded the resolution was the development order.
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein stated he would have to revise the order for legal
purposes. 
 
Town Manager Gomez advised Interim Town Attorney Blumstein that the direction of
the Commission regarding this discussion item will give them a clear idea of how to
approach the subject. 
 
Commissioner Coto proceeded to share his top items: Champlain Memorial, police
enforcement in speeding, lot coverage, and docks. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez proceeded to share her top items: Abbott Avenue drainage
project, Champlain Memorial, addressing the 50-foot lot issue, religious exemption,
and revision of the IT contract.
 
Vice Mayor Paul added two more items: Historic structure and bringing back the 30%
ordinance for the waiving of permit fees. 
 
Mayor Burkett proceeded to share his top items: Revision of parking fees, revision of
the planning department, code enforcement for industrial buildings in residential
areas, and sign pollution. The Mayor asked Town Manager Gomez to give the
Commission a list of the items that did not make it to the April agenda to be rated by

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 28



3. Adjournment

the Commission on Survey Monkey.
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked Mayor Burkett if the zoning issues list she created should be
presented to the Planning and Zoning Board. 
 
Ms. Salzhauer suggested to the Commission to hold a zoning meeting.
 
Town Manager Gomez advised the Commission of having a joint meeting with the
Planning and Zoning Board.
 
Ms. Salzhauer expressed how the meeting does not need to necessarily be done
with the Planning and Zoning Board, but rather a meeting where the Commission
can discuss zoning concerns. She suggested to the Commission for every meeting to
have items regarding the resident's rights and not all zoning items. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez shared how she is willing to give up one of the items to
discuss the resident's rights for public comments. 
 
Ms. Salzhauer voiced her concerns regarding public records and how Town
employees are using their personal phones to communicate regarding Town
business. She spoke regarding the public videos in Town hall can be released under
the Town Manager's discretion.  
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there was other business that needed to be addressed.
 
A brief discussion amongst the Commissioners was held regarding the agenda items.

 There being no further business to discuss before the Commission, a motion was made by
Commissioner Velasquez to adjourn the meeting at 8:46 p.m., seconded by Commissioner
Coto. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.
 
Accepted this ______ day of ________________________, 2024.
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Mayor Charles W. Burkett
 
Attest:
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Sandra N. McCready, MMC, MPA
Town Clerk

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, March 26, 2024 29



1. Opening

1.A Call to Order

1.B Roll Call of Members

1.C Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communication

2.A Discussion on Town Projects  - Hector Gomez, Town Manager

 
Town of Surfside

Town Commission Workshop
MINUTES

April 2, 2024
2:00 PM 

Manny Crawford Conference Room

 

 
Mayor Burkett called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.

 
Town Clerk McCready called the roll with the following members present.
 
Present: Mayor Charles W. Burkett, Vice Mayor Tina Paul, Commissioner Ruben
Coto, Commissioner Nelly Velasquez, and Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui.
 
Also Present: Interim Town Attorney Mark Blumstein and Town Manager Hector
Gomez.

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein led the pledge of allegiance.

 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the meeting and gave the floor to the Town Manager.
 
Town Manager Gomez informed the Town Commission that there are members of
the public via zoom.
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that he will be providing an overview of the different
projects beginning with the Capital Improvement Projects and then Capital
modification type projects.
 
Downtown Walkability Improvements  
Tennis Center Project - Contract has been cancelled with the engineering company
until further direction is given to the administration.
Traffic Calming and Walkability projects has not started.

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 30



Surfside Boulevard beautification.
 
Abbott Avenue Drainage Improvement is a project scheduled for the April 9, 2024
Regular Town Commission meeting.
 
93rd Street is a project that has not started.
 
Town wide vulnerability assessment will be paid by a grant received for $300,000.
 
Small projects that the Town is currently working on or have been approved are as
follows:
 
Town Hall Improvements of the Town Police Department and Commission
Chambers.
 
Pool heater in the Community Center.
 
Parking Lot Surveillance Cameras.
 
88th Street and Hawthorne Traffic Circle.
 
95th Street Sidewalks.
 
Mayor Burkett asked fellow members of the Town Commission if it will be
appropriate to open the floor to the residents or allow the Town Manager to go first. 
 
Consensus was reached to allow the Town Manager to speak about each item and
they will open it up as they go.
 
Town Manager Gomez began with the Downtown walkability project and showed the
Town Commission a schematic/rendering of the project.  He explained that this
project will take away some parking spaces to provide for more walkability and better
landscaping.  He further explained the rendering and the amount of parking spaces
this project will be impacting. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez stated that they should scrap this project and if they want
more walkability, they should move the palm trees and place them on those parking
spaces. 
 
Town Manager Gomez explained that by doing so, you will be using more parking
spaces which in his opinion will be approximately 22 parking spaces.
 
Commissioner Velasquez believes that the town already has a parking deficit and
taking more parking spaces is not going to work.  She would like to see a wider
sidewalk throughout town.
 
Town Manager Gomez provided some information related to the permitting and
approval by FDOT.
 
Commissioner Coto believes that any beautification project is a good idea as this the

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 31



Town they live in but he not in favor of removing parking spaces in the downtown
area.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui is concerned with people dining so close to high traffic
area as this is in Collins Avenue.  He is in support of making crosswalks more visible
and beautiful.  He is concerned of safety with cars possibly cutting on the curb cuts. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez believes that some more ideas should be brought to the
table for wider sidewalks and is also concerned about the safety of the residents
when you will be placing them so close to the street.
 
Mayor Burkett believes that they should also look into their parking problem.  He
doesn't think it is a great idea to parallel park on Harding Avenue.  He stated that he
is not a fan of this project, and it looks like it's a half-cooked project. 
 
Commissioner Vildostegui is asking if the intention is to go back to the drawing
board.  If this is the case, he would like the town to consider exploring the idea of a
bike lane.
 
Vice Mayor Paul stated that this is a great idea but they really need repairing their
sidewalks and she thinks that before they go into these design ideas they should try
fixing what is currently in place.
 
Commissioner Velasquez compared this to the tennis center and trying to build a
new one where there is one there already.
 
Vice Mayor Paul would like to see beautiful crosswalks and maybe changing the red
paint that is currently there. 
 
Mayor Burkett spoke further about the paint color on the crosswalks.  He suggested
to sandblast those areas and maybe add some textured crosswalks.    
 
Mayor Burkett opened the workshop to the members of the public.
 
Marianne Meischeid stated that she was in the DVAC Committee and this was
discussed and she believes this is a problem.  She believes that the curb side dining
can be an issue and maybe they can look into not having dining on the sidewalk. 
The walkability problem occurs when the restaurants are doing sidewalk dining and
pedestrians have nowhere to walk.
 
Jeffrey Platt believed that the side curbs were created to provide more free dining
space to the restaurant.  They can start charging for sidewalk dining or they can
eliminate it. 
 
Dina Gonzalez disagrees about eliminating the spaces as people will continue to
double park.  She stated that there are no problems in downtown and people walk
fine and there is no reason why they should eliminate parking spaces.  She stated
that there is no police presence in the downtown.   
 
George Kousoula (via zoom) spoke about how to possibly fix the congestion on the

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 32



sidewalks.  He provided a few solutions/ideas to the town commission.  He believes
the congestion in downtown is real and that the sidewalk pattern can be done
regardless of what you do with this project.  He further added that the town can
probably look into their cafe ordinance.  
 
Michael Karukin (via zoom) stated that he agrees with focusing on priorities.  He
believes that the sitting should be kept in the owners areas so that the sidewalks are
free for pedestrians to walk.  He also mentioned the existing sidewalk ordinance and
they should look into it and maybe allowing just single row set up for restaurants
allowing a better flow of pedestrians.
 
Horace Henderson stated that if they remove all the sidewalk sitting, the congestion
will go away.
 
Ann Findlay stated that the town has an overall parking issue and removing spaces
will create a bigger issue.  She believes that those sitting areas are being removed in
other cities due to safety.  She stated that the walkability is horrendous in downtown,
and that storefronts are complaining as the sidewalk restaurants are bleeding into
other stores. 
 
Tricia Fowley spoke about when Dietch was on the Town Commission there was
discussion about parking.  She believes the sidewalks are dangerous and the town
should demand that the businesses clean their sidewalks.  She suggested that the
dining should be more like starbucks were it is contained to their restaurant area and
it doesn't bleed into the actual sidewalk.  She is in support for extending the
sidewalks but she believes that restaurant owners should be more responsible.  She
also spoke about the alleyways and proposed that if those are clean maybe that will
be a safer way for bicycles and scooters.
 
Mayor Burkett believes that it is a good idea to add an item on the agenda to discuss
outdoor dining and the possibility of making the business owners clean their areas
and be more responsible. He stated there are multiple issues like the crosswalks
being slippery, dining issue, crosswalk, number of tables so that they don't go over to
the other businesses. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez provided some other options that can be looked at like a
rooftop dining for those restaurants that have that ability.
 
Vice Mayor Paul spoke about the idea of keeping the dining areas contained within
each business and to also avoid those businesses to place outdoor sitting on other
businesses storefronts.
 
Consensus was reached on this item to add the sidewalk cafe and sidewalks as an
agenda item and also stop this project.
 
Tennis and Sport Complex
Town Manager Gomez stated that this project has been stopped and the agreement
has been terminated with the engineering company.  He further stated that he
provided the drawings to the Commission as reference only.
 

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 33



Commissioner Vildostegui would like to come back and evaluate the options after
this commission deals with their priorities.
 
Traffic Calming and Walkability
Town Manager Gomez explained the project to the Town Commission.
 
Commissioner Velasquez loves the roundabout ideas, it slows down traffic and
beautifies streets by bringing shade trees and vegetation.  She believes roundabouts
are a great idea and she believes it is a beautiful thing for the town.
 
Vice Mayor Paul believes this is a great opportunity for a workshop.  She requested
to have asphalt speedbumps instead of the ones that are currently installed in our
town.  
 
Mayor Burkett opened the meeting to members of the public.
 
Miriam Alvarez stated that a speedbump is needed on 93rd Street and 92nd Street
as it looks like a speedway there.  
 
Mayor Burkett spoke about the speeding and he believes that the cut through traffic
is the cause of many of the issues in town.  He spoke about the different options in
street closure and right turn only, but he further stated that to address the traffic and
speeding problem,  they have to figure out what the source of the problem is and
think outside the box for outside the box solutions.  He further stated that this
commission wants to solve problems that will benefit their residents.
 
Miriam Alvarez spoke about the possibility of having a gated community.  
 
Commissioner Vildostegui believes that as traffic solutions, the town should consider
some diverters in order to calm the traffic in town. He stated that the workshop he
attended, had a lot of positive feedback from everyone in attendance for diverters. 
He doesn't believe that gating is a calming solution.  He also asked the Town
Manager if they can order a la carte from the different options.  The Town Manager
stated that yes as long as its approve by the County.
 
Commissioner Velasquez would like a workshop on traffic and discuss the ideas of
diverters and roundabout.  She is a supporter of anything that can be easily done
and beautifies the town.
 
Commissioner Coto spoke about more police enforcement on the speeders and that
will detour them not to cut through the town. 
 
Jeffrey Platt believes that the diverters will not work as there is an app called Waze
that will provide the drivers with every single detail.  
 
Ann Findlay stated that in the morning and afternoon there is an increase traffic due
to parents dropping and picking up their kids.  She believes it can be a good idea for
the Town to have a school bus and provide a service to the town and its residents. 
 
Further discussion took place about the traffic and the different options or

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 34



possibilities that can be done to mitigate traffic and the speeding issues.
 
91st Street "Surfside Boulevard" Beautification
Town Manager Gomez introduced the item.
 
Commissioner Velasquez stated that she doesn't like this option.  She believes that
these dollars should be used to fix the drainage problem in Town which affects many
of the residents.
 
Vice Mayor Paul spoke about the size of the trucks that are going through our streets
into Indian Creek.  She suggested maybe considering the possibility of limiting the
size of the trucks.  
 
Mayor Burkett spoke about not having better renderings for this project.  He stated
that without the beautiful images and concept design, they are unable to make a
proper decision on this item. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked if this project would assist with traffic calming and possibly
tied up with the previous item. 
 
Commissioner Vildostegui asked if 91st Street is any wider than any other streets in
Town. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that 91st Street is the same width as the other streets
in Town.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui asked about the appropriated dollars to this project. 
 
Town Manager Gomez explained that the dollar from the grant can probably be
redirected to the underground utilities project. 
 
Commissioner Coto spoke about the possibility of going to the Village of Indian
Creek and request more funds for this project or a similar project.
 
George Kousoulas spoke about the provided drawing and not having a better-looking
rendering of the project. 
 
Townwide Utilities Undergrounding and Alleyway Improvements
Town Manager Gomez spoke about the item and provided some funding information
to the Commission.  He explained that the first phase will be from 96th street through
93rd street.  He provided a brief explanation of each phase and stated that the
project has been in design for two years now and believes construction will take up to
six years.
 
Commissioner Velasquez asked about the procurement process of this project.
 
Mayor Burkett asked questions related to the engineering firm that is currently
working on this project.  
 
Mayor Burkett spoke about Kimley-Horn and how he feels about what they did

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 35



related to the airplanes flying over Surfside taking the tranquility of many other
municipalities as well.  He stated that he is not happy with the work they did with that
project.  He further stated that he is not happy about doing business with them. 
Mayor Burkett asked if the Town is obligated to pay Kimley-Horn the two millions
dollars. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that the Town can walk away at any point and clarified
that the contract is for $2.7 million.  
 
Town Manager Gomez responded to questions and concerns posted by the Town
Commission.  He further stated that a meeting will be scheduled and they can
provide an update to the Town Commission.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui spoke about the need to probably go back to the residents
as it seems that the $40 million approved will not be enough to complete this project. 
 
Town Manager Gomez spoke and provided some information related to the project in
regard to undergrounding Atlantic, AT&T and FPL. 
 
Eliana Salzhauer asked a question regarding a specific pole in town. 
 
Town Manager Gomez addressed her question.
 
Further conversation took place regarding this project and the need or no need of a
future referendum.
 
Commissioner Velasquez spoke about the development orders and that some of
those proffers should be allocated to the undergrounding project. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked for grant funding. 
 
Kristina Brown, Grant Writer spoke and addressed the question. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul stated that the Town lobbyist should be lobbying for these
companies to release their data in order to better apply for grants that will assist the
town with this project.
 
George Kousoulas spoke about the allocation of risks in regards to this project.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui asked the Town Clerk to provide the Town Commission
with the deadline to submit a referendum on the November election.  
 
The commission discussed the different providers. 
 
Town Manager Gomez explained that the Town's intention is to put the conduits in
the ground and each provider can put their cables through those.
 
Debra Cimadevilla spoke about the beautification project on 91st Street and where
the $500,000 are being used.  She further stated that she doesn't believe that the
volume of traffic on 91st street was taken into consideration when coming up with

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 36



this project.
 
The consensus by the Town Commission was to move this project forward from the
Town Commission.
 
Abbott Avenue Drainage Improvements
Town Manager Gomez spoke about this item and discussion with the Public Works
team to work in mitigating the drainage by deploying the current pumps prior to a
storm. 
 
Mayor Burkett spoke about obtaining portable pumps in order to mitigate the
flooding. 
 
Eliana Salzhauer spoke about systems in order to clean drainages ahead of time. 
 
Town Manager Gomez spoke about going out for the third time with a Request for
Invitation (RFI).  He discussed the different designs and which one to put out.   
 
The consensus of the Town Commission is to go out with the first design and this
item will be in front of the April 9, 2024, Town Commission meeting.  
 
Discussion took place regarding the Fund Balance Policy.
 
Marianne Meischeid spoke about the timing of the undergrounding project and the
Abbott Avenue  project. 
 
Town Manager Gomez responded that it doesn't matter which project happens first. 
 
George Kousoulas spoke about the different designs and the options. 
 
Further discussion took place regarding the two different options (Ferrari vs. Kia). 
 
This item will be further discussed during the April 9, 2024 Regular Town
Commission meeting.
 
Collins Avenue Water Main Replacement
Town Manager Gomez provided an update on this item.  He stated that there are no
dollars allocated for the construction of this project.
 
Vice Mayor Paul believes that there should be dollars set aside for these projects
every year.  
 
Conversation ensued regarding people tapping into the Towns sewer and paying
some sort of impact fees.
 
Dune Resiliency and Beautification
Town Manager Gomez explained this project and stated that there are $470,800 in
grant dollars.  There are no construction dollars allocated for this project as of today. 
 
Discussion took place about the different options and ideas as to what to do.  

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 37



 
Town Manager Gomez stated that the beach is man made and that the Town must
keep up with it.
 
Diana Gonzalez believes that the land should remain the way it is. 
 
Town staff stated that the dunes are the first line of defense the town has.
 
Marianne Meischeid wanted to know if it is mandatory for all developers to raise their
dunes. 
 
Town Manager stated that yes and in instances, they required the developers to do
that themselves. 
 
Michael Karukin asked if there is a cross session that can be shown. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that there is not one at the moment.
 
93rd Street Beautification 
Town Manager Gomez spoke about this item and stated that this request will be
funded by the 9300 Development. 
 
The Town Commission would like the dollars to go towards a different project.
 
Eliana Salzhauer spoke about the approval of a parking entrance that will interrupt
town events on 93rd Street.  She further stated that they should be asked to relocate
their entrance.
 
Consensus amongst the Town Commission was reached to use the $400,000 to go
towards Collins Avenue. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul believes that the Town should put out a call to the artist for this
project.
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that he will bring this back as a discussion item. 
 
Also, the Town Commission requested the development order of 9300 related to the
parking entrance and the possible relocation. 
 
Surfside Memorial Park
The committee to reconvene and speak about a possible name. 
 
Town Manager Gomez spoke regarding the committee's meeting that took place
March 18, 2024.  He stated that 4 members of the 6 were present during this
meeting. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul would like the entire committee to agree on the name of the
memorial.
 
Eliana Salzhauer spoke about the developer accessing the site through 88th street

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 38



and into their site.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui spoke about obtaining the rights to access from the
building on 88th street. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that this is on the April 9, 2024 agenda for the Town
Commission discussion.
 
Vice Mayor Paul and Commissioner Velasquez do not wish to have the developer
provide the in-kind, they rather have the dollars be given to the Town.  
 
Commissioner Velasquez spoke about the 88th Street and she wants to make sure
that the entire street is dedicated to the memorial.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui spoke about the FPL vault on the plans.  He stated that he
believes that the site plan that was approved that if FDOT did not require access on
88th street they wouldn't have it and he is not sure if the site plan approval said
anything differently.
 
Mayor Burkett asked to research what was former Commissioner Landsman's
motion.
 
Mayor Burkett spoke about what the developer did at the request of the memorial
committee.   The request was for the removal of the trash from the memorial.  He
asked the Town Attorney to research the matter and go back and listen to the tape
and see what were the specifics of the motion. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked if there was not really a final design. 
 
Town Manager Gomez stated that there will be more meetings to create a final
design.
 
Vice Mayor Paul believes that there should be a call for artist. 
 
Town Manager Gomez added that there is a call to artist component in the project. 
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein read the motion from the September 27, 2023
meeting from the adopted minutes where the project was adopted into the record. 
He stated that the motion accepted the 88th street corridor for the use of that
roadway for emergency and utility services which means it remains.
 
Commissioner Velasquez said that they should create a way to access that area
within their own property.
 
George Kousoulas spoke on the item in regards to the utility vault on the property.  
 
Mayor Burkett stated that Mr. Martin Langesfeld texted him and told him the name is
Surfside Champlain Memorial.
 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein read a portion from Resolution No. 2022-2853

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 39



dated January 11, 2022 where the pertinent portion of Section 2 read as follows:
"direction to the Town Manager to pursue the closure of 88th street east of Collins
Avenue to vehicular traffic for the purpose of providing a memorial park and
pedestrian plaza honoring the victims of the Champlain Towers South collapse.  The
Manager was directed to take all steps necessary to pursue all governmental
approvals necessary to permanently close that portion of 88th Street located in
between Collins Avenue on the west and the public beach to the east (the "street-
end") to vehicular traffic for a memorial park and pedestrian plaza honoring the
victims of the Champlain Towers South collapse.  The closure of any portion of 88th
Street to vehicular traffic is subject to the maintenance of emergency or
governmental vehicular access and any access required to reach property north and
south of the Street-end".
 
Mayor Burkett stated that they now have a better idea regarding the memorial and
asked the Town Manager to continue to the next project.
 
Town-wide Vulnerability Assessment with Town Hall Category 5 Adaptation
Plan 
Town Manager Gomez introduced the item. He stated that vulnerability assessment
is something that every Town should have. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez asked if this will also include buildings that are not
conforming to FEMA standards.  She believes this is a bad idea and she is not in
favor of this.
 
Vice Mayor Paul does not believe that this study will affect that.
 
A statement was made that public buildings are critical assets. The Town received
$300,000 from FDEP to fully fund this project. 
 
Kristina Brown, Grant Writer spoke regarding this item and stated that FDEP is
mandating that all municipalities do this in order to be able to apply for future funding.
 
Eliana Salzhauer spoke about the Town being in a mandatory evacuation zone.  
 
The Town Commission's consensus was to move forward with this project.
 
Town Hall Improvements 
Town Manager Gomez introduced the item.
 
Discussion ensued by the Town Commission on their different ideas.  
 
Commissioner Coto stated that the carpet has to go.
 
Commissioner Velasquez would like the screens that are on the dais be removed.
 
Vice Mayor Paul would like to see the dais raised so that chairs fit underneath.
 
Mayor Burkett recommended a refreshment center.
 

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 40



3. Adjournment

Vice Mayor Paul requested new flooring.
 
Consensus amongst the Town Commission was for the Town Manager to circulate
design options.  
 
Pool Heater
Town Manager Gomez spoke about this item.
 
Parks and Recreation Director Milian spoke about this item.  He stated that the
heaters do not last a long time due to the location of the Community Center and the
saltwater.  This item will be on the April 9, 2024, Town Commission meeting for
approval. 
 
Parking Lot Surveillance Camera
Town Manager Gomez explained the item.
 
Town Commission consensus was ok with this item.
 
88th Street and Hawthorne Traffic Circle
Town Manager Gomez spoke about this item.
 
Consensus amongst the Town Commission was to place this item together with the
traffic study. 
 
95th Street Sidewalks
Commissioner Vildostegui spoke about the Byron Avenue sidewalks that are
disconnected from others.  He spoke about his concerns with walkability, and it does
not feel safe. He believes this needs to come back and try to do the Byron Avenue
connection and then think about the rest.  
 
Vice Mayor Paul stated that this item should go on the workshop related to
walkability and beautification.
 
Consensus was reached to have this item on a future agenda.
 
Miriam Alvarez a resident of Surfside spoke about the Town Commission meeting of
March 26 and the residents' concerns on traffic and safety issued.  She introduced
the Canadian company she works for and the ideas of traffic control, and electric
school busses.  She believes her company can be an asset to the Town.

 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:55p.m.
 
 
Accepted this ____ day of _____________________, 2024.
 
 
 

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 41



___________________________ 
Charles W. Burkett, Mayor
 
Attest:
 
 
___________________________
Sandra N. McCready, MMC, MPA
Town Clerk

Minutes
Town Commission Workshop

Tuesday, April 2, 2024 42



 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Surfside  
Special Town Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
April 9, 2024 

6:00 PM 
Commission Chambers 

 
1. Opening 
 

1.A  Call to Order 
 

Mayor Burkett called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m. 
 

1.B  Roll Call of Members 
 

Town Clerk McCready called the roll with the following members present. 
 

Present: Mayor Charles W. Burkett, Vice Mayor Tina Paul, Commissioner Ruben 
Coto, Commissioner Nelly Velasquez and Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui. 

 
Also Present: Interim Town Attorney Mark Blumstein and Town Manager Hector 
Gomez. 

 
1.C Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein provided the pledge of allegiance. 

 
2.  Mayor, Commission and Staff Communication 
 

2.A Resignation of Town Manager and Appointment of Interim Town Manager - 
Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney 

 
The Town Manager issued his resignation letter dated March 27, 2024, giving 
the Town two-weeks notice of his resignation from March 26, 2024. The 
Commission should consider action on his notice and determine how to proceed 
in filling his position, on an interim and/or permanent basis. 

 
Mayor Burkett introduced the item. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez asked if former elected officials had returned their items. 

 
Town Manager Gomez stated how all items were returned except for a phone 
reported stolen. He stated he found out regarding the lost phone this week. 

 
Minutes  

Special Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 43



Mayor Burkett asked the Town Manager who's phone was stolen. 
 

Town Manager Gomez stated the lost phone was the former Mayor's. 
 

Mayor Burkett shared his experience working with Town Manager Gomez. He stated  
Town Manager Gomez did good things, but a lot of people felt let down. He thanked 
Town Manager Gomez for his service. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul shared how it saddens her to see the Town Manager leave, but 
that she understands the circumstances. 

 
Commissioner Coto expressed he appreciates the work Town Manager Gomez had 
put into the Town. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez thanked the Town Manager for coming forward and 
accepting it was time to leave the Town. She continued to share her experience 
working with the Town Manager. She stated how overall the Manager had done a 
good job. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed it saddens him to see the Town Manager go.  
He thanked Mr. Gomez for his service and for offering his services with the transition. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Jeff Rose thanked Town Manager Gomez and the Town staff for their service. He 
stated how there is a mass resignation of staff. Mr. Rose proceeded to ask the 
Mayor regarding the Interim Town Manager. He asked if it was appropriate for him to 
start meeting with a female interim town manager at his home alone given his track 
record.  
Shlomo Dazninger thanked Town Manager Gomez for his service to the Town, he 
spoke regarding Mr. Gomez's levels of honesty and transparency. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to accept the Town Manager's 
resignation, seconded by Vice Mayor Paul. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked if there was a motion to appoint a new Interim Town Manager. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul made a motion to appoint an Interim Town Manager. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein shared the candidate chosen for Interim Town 
Manager. He shared how the candidate has been working with the Town for over 20 
years and is qualified for this position. He announced Marisol Vargas as candidate 
for the position. 

 
Marisol Vargas addressed the Commission. She continued to give a brief 
introduction of herself and her history working with the Town.  

Minutes  
Special Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 44



Mayor Burkett addressed Ms. Vargas regarding her qualities as a Town employee. 
 

Ms. Vargas addressed former Town Manager Gomez and thanked him for his 
service. She continued to share her gratitude to be appointed as Interim Town 
Manager and for the opportunity to work with Town staff and residents. 

 
Commissioner Coto shared his experience knowing Ms. Vargas and how he looks 
forward to working with her. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul shared her happiness to have Ms. Vargas as an Interim Town 
Manager. She shared her experience knowing and working with Ms. Vargas. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui shared how he is pleased to have Ms. Vargas stepping in 
as Interim Town Manager. He expressed how this is history for the Town as Ms. 
Vargas will be the first female Town Manager in Surfside. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez stated how the Commission fully supports the 
appointment of Ms. Vargas. She continued to thank Ms. Vargas for stepping in as 
Interim Town Manager. 

 
An amended motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul to appoint Marisol Vargas as 
Interim Town Manager, the amended motion was seconded by Commissioner Coto. 
The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.  
Resolution No. 2023-2996 Employment Agreement with Hector Gomez-
Town Manager.pdf 

 
2.B Resolution of Town Commission Approving Agreement with Interim Town 

Attorney - Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney 
 

The Town Commission should consider formalizing the services of the Interim Town 
Attorney and the establishment of an in-house legal department within the Town, 
and empower the Interim Town Attorney to engage other professionals, as deemed 
necessary and within the budget authorized by the Commission. 

 
Town Clerk Sandra McCready read the resolution into the record. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Jared Brunnabend asked the Commission regarding the Interim Town Attorney's 
contract. He asked the Commission regarding the terms of the contract, as he does 
not agree with some of the terms. He asked the Commision if Mr. Blumstein will be 
speaking on social media as a Town resident or the Town's attorney.  
Jeff Rose asked the Commission regarding the terms of the Interim Town Attorney's 
contract. He stated how Mr. Blumstein does not have the qualifications to be an 
Interim Town Attorney. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments.  

Minutes  
Special Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 45

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2548988/Resolution_No._2023-2996_Employment_Agreement_with_Hector_Gomez-Town_Manager.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2548988/Resolution_No._2023-2996_Employment_Agreement_with_Hector_Gomez-Town_Manager.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2548988/Resolution_No._2023-2996_Employment_Agreement_with_Hector_Gomez-Town_Manager.pdf


Commissioner Coto shared how he trusts Mr. Blumstein's judgement to correct him if 
he is doing something wrong. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul thanked Mr. Blumstein for wanting to work with the Town. She 
shared her thoughts regarding the terms of the Interim Town Manager's contract. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez thanked Mr. Blumstein for his services to the Town. She 
stated how she is confident in the Interim Town Attorney's judgement. 

 
Mayor Burkett expressed he is thrilled to have Mr. Blumstein as Interim Town 
Attorney. He stated how the Interim Town Attorney used previous Town Attorney's 
contracts as template for his own. He addressed the issue regarding why Town 
employees are resigning and why he thought it was happening. He addressed the 
issue regarding the former Mayor's lost phone. He stated how the Town is going 
through a new cycle. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to approve the resolution, 
seconded by Commissioner Vildostegui. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.  
Reso - Town Attorney - April 2024  
Interim Town Attorney - Agreement 

 
3. Adjournment  

There being no further business to discuss before the Commission, a motion was made 
by Vice Mayor Paul to adjourn the meeting at 6:44 p.m., seconded by Commissioner 
Vildostegui. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

 
 

Accepted this ______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________  
Charles W. Burkett, 

Mayor Attest: 

 
___________________________  
Sandra N. McCready, MMC, 
MPA Town Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes  
Special Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 46

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2548887/Reso_-_Town_Attorney_-_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2548886/Interim_Town_Attorney_-_Agreement.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Surfside  
Regular Town Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
April 9, 2024 

7:00 PM 
Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Avenue 

Surfside, Fl 33154 
 
1. Opening 
 

1A.  Call to Order 
 

Mayor Burkett called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

1B.  Roll Call of Members 
 

Town Clerk McCready called the roll with the following members present. 
 

Present: Mayor Charles W. Burkett, Vice Mayor Tina Paul, Commissioner Ruben 
Coto, Commissioner Nelly Velasquez and Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui. 

 
Also Present: Interim Town Attorney Mark Blumstein and Interim Town Manager 
Marisol Vargas. 

 
1C. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Interim Police Chief Dolce provided the pledge of allegiance. 

 
1D. Mayor and Commission Remark - Mayor Charles W. Burkett 

 
Mayor Burkett asked the Commission to provide their Commission remarks. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul welcomed everyone and expressed how it feels great to be at the 
meeting. She shared how she looks forward to serving the Town in the next two 
years. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed he is excited to be at his first Commission 
meeting. He shared how he would like to have weekly office hours with residents at a 
local coffee shop. He continued to share information regarding two events he would 
like the public to attend. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez shared how she is happy to see residents at the meeting. 
She spoke regarding controversial topics the Town might have but how there are 
solutions to everything. She stated the Town will move forward to a direction that will  

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 47



benefit all residents. She welcomed the new Interim Town Attorney, Interim Town 
Manager, and Interim Police Chief. 

 
Mayor Burkett expressed the roundtable session the Commission conducted was 
very effective and wishes to have another one. He thanked Vice Mayor Paul for the 
idea of the roundtable. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul stated the roundtable meeting was a great time to learn from the 
former Town Manager regarding the Town's projects. She continued to thank former 
Town Manager Gomez for suggesting the roundtable. 

 
Commissioner Coto expressed the roundtable was a great idea due to the 
Commission's overlapping individual ideas and visions. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked the Town Clerk what community notes were. 

 
Town Clerk McCready explained how community notes is a section where the Mayor 
and Commission can share announcements regarding community events or other 
community notes they wish the public to know. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul shared announcements regarding Town events. 

 
1E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Vildostegui to move item 9M (Plans for the 3rd 
Anniversary of the Champlain Towers South Collapse and Memorial Design) to the 
beginning of Section 9 (Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications), followed by 
a new item (discussion on holding a special Commission meeting on April 30th, 2024 
regarding the discussion items) in section 9 of tonight's agenda, and item 9H 
(Industrial Use of Single Family Homes in the Residential District), seconded by Vice 
Mayor Paul. 

 
Mayor Burkett agreed with the idea of a special meeting and to discuss a date, since 
the meeting could be sooner than April 30th. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul pulled the meeting minutes from March 12th regarding due to 
missing information at the end of the meeting. 

 
The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

 
1F. Community Notes - Mayor Charles W. Burkett 
 
1G. Appointment of Boards and Committee Members - Town Clerk Sandra N. 

McCready, MMC 
 

Mayor Burkett introduced the item. 
 

The Town Commission appointed the following individuals to the Downtown Vision 
Advisory Committee. 

 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
48



Vice Mayor Paul appointed Sarah Rosenblum to the Downtown Vision Advisory 
Committee.  
Commissioner Coto appointed Louisa Agresti to the Downtown Vision Advisory 
Committee. 
Commissioner Vildostegui appointed Francisco Mallmann to the Downtown Vision 
Advisory Committee. 
Mayor Burkett appointed Cynthia Callaway to the Downtown Vision Advisory 
Committee. 
Commissioner Velasquez appointed Mary Santos to the Downtown Vision Advisory 
Committee. 

 
The Town Commission appointed the following individuals to the Parks and 
Recreation Committee. 

 
Commissioner Coto appointed Frank MacBride to the Parks and Recreation 
Committee. 
Vice Mayor Paul appointed Oliver Sanchez to the Parks and Recreation Committee. 
Mayor Burkett appointed Marina Sarabia to the Parks and Recreation Committee. 
Commissioner Velasquez appointed Joshua Epstein to the Parks and Recreation 
Committee. 
Commissioner Vildostegui appointed Shea Schneider to the Parks and Recreation 
Committee. 

 
Town Clerk McCready reminded the Commission the Pension Board only has two 
members at-large. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui asked Mayor Burkett if he could nominate another 
resident for the Parks and Recreation Committee due to Marina Sarabia being one of 
the two candidates for the Pension Board. 

 
The Commission decided to hold the Pension Board appointments for next month's 
meeting until more applications have been received. 

 
The Town Commission appointed the following individuals to the Personnel Appeals 
Board. 

 
Commissioner Coto appointed Michelle Kligman to the Personnel Appeals Board. 

 
The rest of the Commission Members decided to make their appointments at a later 
date due to not having enough submissions. 

 
The Town Commission appointed the following individuals to the Planning and 
Zoning Board. 

 
Town Clerk McCready reminded the Commission regarding the required 
qualifications for the Board. 

 
Commissioner Coto appointed James McKenzie to the Planning and Zoning Board, 
as he is an architect. 
Commissioner Vildostegui appointed Andrea Travani to the Planning and Zoning  

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

49



Board, as he is an engineer.  
Vice Mayor Paul appointed Lindsey Lecour to the Planning and Zoning Board, as 
she has the desired experience. 
Mayor Burkett appointed Carlos Aparicio to the Planning and Zoning Board, as he is 
an architect. 
Commissioner Velasquez appointed Adrian Chavez to the Planning and Zoning 
Board. 

 
Town Clerk McCready reminded the Commission if they desire to appoint alternate 
Board members they would have to be at-large. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul suggested Horace Henderson as first alternate Board Member and 
Regino Sanchez as second alternate Board member. 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul to approve the alternate Board members 
(Horance Henderson as alternate number 1 and Regino Sanchez as alternate 
number 2), seconded by Commissioner Velasquez. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote. 

 
The Commission agreed to appoint members to the Police Trust Fund at a later time 
due to lack of submissions. 

 
The Town Commission appointed the following individuals to the Tourist Board. 

 
Commissioner Coto appointed Eliana Salzhauer to the Tourist Board.  
Commissioner Vildostegui appointed Jerold Blumstein to the Tourist Board. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul spoke regarding the nepotism section on the Town's charter. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui changed his appointee and appointed Judy Martinez.  
Vice Mayor Paul appointed Diana Gonzalez to the Tourist Board. 
Mayor Burkett appointed Clara Diaz Leal to the Tourist Board, however, it was 
discussed that she did not submit an application to the Board but will be asked if she 
would like to accept. 
Commissioner Velasquez appointed Freddy Giron to the Tourist Board. 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul to approve the appointments made to the 
Tourist Board, seconded by Commissioner Velasquez. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote. 

 
The Commission agreed to appoint members to the Youth Council at the next 
Commission meeting due to applications being considered at the end of the 
academic year. 

 
2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings 
 
3. Consent Agenda 
 

All items on the consent agenda are considered routine or status reports by the 
 

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

50



Town Commission and will be approved by one motion. Any Commission member 
may request that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed 
separately. If the public wishes to speak on a matter on the consent agenda they 
must inform the Town Clerk prior to the start of the meeting by completing a 
speaker card. They will be recognized to speak prior to the approval of the 
consent agenda. 
 
 
Vice Mayor Paul inquired about a section of the March 12th minutes that was not included. 
 
Town Clerk McCready stated she had reviewed the meeting video upon the inquiry of an 
elected official, and the meeting had adjourned when Commissioner Meischeid 
requested to speak. She stated that the Town Commission can amend the minutes by 
motion and majority vote. 
 
Commissioner Vildostegui made a motion to approve consent with amending the 
minutes to state what former Commissioner Meischeid and former Mayor Danzinger 
stated at the end of the March 12, 2024 meeting. 
 
The March 12 minutes were amended as follows: 
 
"Commissioner Marianne Meischeid asked the Commission to speak. She directed to 
the public and stated the following: "I wish we could all follow the golden rule. Do unto 
others as you would have them do unto you. Thank you for your service for two years. 
 
Mayor Danzinger answered to Commissioner Meischeid: "For the record, the golden 
rule is, he who has the gold makes the rule." 
 
The motion received a second by Commissioner Velasquez and the motion carried with 
a 5-0 vote. 
 
 
3A. Approval of Minutes - Sandra N. McCready, MMC, MPA, Town Clerk 
 

Approved on consent as amended.  
March 12, 2024 Town Commission Meeting Minutespdf  
March 21, 2024 Special Town Commission Meeting Minutes.pdf  
March 25, 2024 Special Town Commission Meeting Minutes.pdf 

 
3B. Arbor Day Proclamation/Resolution Approval - Hector Gomez, Town Manager 
 

For the Town Commission to proclaim April 23, 2023, Arbor Day and to adopt 
the resolution. 

 
Approved on consent.  
Reso - Arbor Day 2024  
Proclamation Certificate Coins and Key to the Town Request Form 

 
 
 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
51

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2511907/town-commission_minutes_summary__2_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2548098/2024-03-21_Special_Town_Commission_Meeting_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2548097/2024-03-25_Special_Town_Commission_Meeting_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2536280/Reso_-_Arbor_Day_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2466373/Proclamation_Certificate_Coins_and_Key_to_the_Town_Request_Form.pdf


3C. Emergency Purchase of new Pool Heater  - Hector Gomez, Town Manager 
 

Town Administration is seeking Town Commission authorization to expend 
$33,546.97 for the replacement of the main pool heater in the Community Center. 

 
Approved on consent.  
Attachment A - Heater Corrosion  
Attachment B - Proposal one  
Attachment C - Proposal two  
Reso - Community Center Pool Heater.docx 

 
4. Ordinances 

Second Reading 

First Reading 
 

4B1. Amending Ordinance 2024-1768 Permit Fees - Mark Blumstein, Interim Town  
Attorney 

 
For the Town Commission to discuss and adopt this ordinance on first reading. 

 
Town Clerk McCready read the title of the ordinance into the record. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Jeff Rose asked the Commission regarding the cost per viewing and if this was 
discussed. He asked regarding the price of the permit fees. He asked the Mayor 
regarding the financial implications this might cause. 

 
A conversation between Mayor Burkett and Jeff Rose was conducted regarding this 
matter. 

 
Eliana Salzhauer expressed how the former Commission waived fees and sent the 
money to other Town funds. She voiced how the former Commission had no fiscal 
responsibility. She thanked the Commission for valuing legacy residents and keeping 
condo owners to be able to afford living in the Town. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez shared how the former Mayor advocated SB1526 bill. 

 
Marianne Meischeid shared how she was thankful with the Commission regarding 
this ordinance. 
Jerold Brunabend shared how in 2024 condos are required to do a more extensive 
capital projects study. He expressed how permit fees being waived is just a small 
problem regarding the condo buildings. He believes that if the Town Commission is 
going to waive fees, they should do it for everyone. 
Greg Bitz spoke about the foundation of the different buildings; he expressed 

 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
52

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532067/Heater_Corrosion.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532068/Pool_Heater_Quote_1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532069/Pool_Heater_quote__2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2536454/Reso_-_Community_Center_Pool_Heater.pdf


something should be done before another catastrophe occurs. 
 

Shlomo Danzinger spoke about the fact that this ordinance is not removing any of 
the assessment that the buildings currently have. He expressed how this ordinance 
is removing the permit fees; however, he voiced the Town will not have any funds in 
the enterprise fund. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor for public comments. 

 
Commissioner Coto expressed how he would like to help single-family residents with 
lowering their permitting fees since it will promote more renovation and less new 
construction. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui spoke regarding the coordination problem condos have 
that single- family homes do not face with maintenance issues; however, he did 
mention for a possibility of helping single-family homes with the waiver of the permit 
fees. He stated how condos are under a unique predatory threat from developers. 
He shared how the former Commission was spending money on lobbying for 
SB1526 despite there not being a Commission vote on that matter. He expressed 
how if the enterprise fund was in some sort of danger, the transfer of funds from 
major developments are much more responsible for any difficulties in the enterprise 
fund than the waiving of the permit fees. 

 
Mayor Burkett voiced how Commissioner Vildostegui spoke regarding an elected 
official in Florida who was a sponsor of the provision to be able to allow elected 
bodies to tear down older buildings. He shared how that individual said the former 
Mayor was the biggest proponent of this provision. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul thanked the Commission for agreeing to waive the permit fees. She 
stated she asked the building official regarding permit fees being charged for new 
construction versus old construction and expressed how she did not agree with both 
situations to being charged the same. She shared how by doing this, it helps the 
older condos to stay up to date on their assessments and prevent condo owners 
from being pushed out of their homes. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez shared how this particular ordinance is to help the condos. 
She stated how the Commission will be addressing the issues for the single-family 
zone at a later date. Commissioner Velasquez expressed this is the right decision for 
the Town. 

 
Mayor Burkett stated this issue is directed for the condo owners of the Town. He 
stated how former elected officials have used policies to push residents out of their 
condo homes for developers to be able to buy out buildings that are too old. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul to approve the ordinance on first reading, 
seconded by Commissioner Velasquez. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 
Ordinance Amending Sec.14-29 - Permit Fees 

 
4B2. Ordinance 2024-1770 Amending Section 90-74 Temporary Signs - Mark  

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

53

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2535905/Ordinance_Amending_Sec.14-29_-_Permit_Fees.pdf


Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney 
 

For the Town Commission to discuss and approve ordinance on first reading. 
 

Town Clerk McCready read the title of the ordinance into the record. 
 

Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 
 

The following individuals from the public spoke: 
 

Jeff Rose asked the Commission about freedom of speech regarding the regulation 
of the content of the signs. He expressed the language of the ordinance should be 
changed to reflect how residents can display five signs of the same content rather 
than five individual signs with different content.  
Eliana Salzhauer shared how there are different types of speech and the restrictions 
of them. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui agreed with Mr. Rose regarding the political speech. He 
stated how if people wanted to have five signs of the same candidate it should be 
allowed. He stated he wanted to change the motion to reflect the ordinance without 
lines 27 and 28 that state the regulation of the sign's content. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Coto to approve the ordinance on first reading 
as amended, seconded by Commissioner Velasquez. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote.  
Ord Amend Sec. 90-74 Temporary Real Estate Signs v2 

 
5. Resolutions and Proclamations 
 

If the public wishes to speak on any matters in this section of the agenda, they 
must inform the Town Clerk by completing a speaker card and they will be 
recognized to speak at the beginning of this section. 

 
5A. Education and Sharing Day - Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui 

 
For the commission to approve the resolution as submitted recognizing 
the importance of a moral and ethical education for our children. 

 
Town Clerk McCready read the title of the resolution into the record. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui introduced the proclamation to the public. He believed this 
proclamation should be shared and brought back to the Town. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul thanked Commissioner Vildostegui for bringing this issue forward. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
54

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2546021/Amend_Sec_90-74_-_April_5_204.pdf


The following individuals from the public spoke: 
 

Eliana Salzhauer shared how she does not want religion to be included in politics 
and how she is not in favor of this proclamation. 
Azriel Wasserman thanked Commissioner Vildostegui for bringing this issue forward. 
Mr. Wasserman continued to respond to Ms. Salzhauer's comment and said how this 
is not a matter of religion, but a matter of education. 
Shlomo Danzinger shared how this proclamation is not a religious proclamation but 
highlights the importance of education. 
Eliana Salzhauer clarified the proclamation is for the Rabbi's birthday. 
Shlomo Danzinger clarified proclamations are used for non-governmental issues. 
Moses Pinto shared he is in favor of the proclamation. He expressed it does bring 
issues like not honoring other matters. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed how there should be a continuity on the 
Commission's practice. He shared he is looking forward to speaking on the creation 
of the Community Relations Board; he stated he believes this Board will help to 
advise the Commission regarding what shows of respect are appropriate in a diverse 
community. He stated the proclamation is drafted in secular terms. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul stated she agrees with the proclamation promoting education. She 
stated she supports honoring public figures that influenced people and had strong 
values. 

 
Commissioner Coto expressed the proclamation is a good idea. He stated this is a 
way to move forward and heal the Town. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez agreed with Commissioner Vildostegui regarding being 
diverse and inclusive with everyone. She agreed with the proclamation being about 
education. 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul to approve the proclamation, seconded by 
Commissioner Coto. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.  
Proclamation Request Form  
Education Sharing Day - April 2024 

 
5B. Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 2024 -3276 Related to the Bond 

Referendum for Abbott Avenue Stormwater Improvement - Mark 
Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney 

 
For the Town Commission to discuss and approve. 

 
Town Clerk McCready read the title of the resolution into the record. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
55

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533237/Proclamation_Request_Form_ESD_2024_04_19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532111/Education___Sharing_Day_-_April_2024.pdf


Jarold Brunabend asked the Town Commission what will be the process to put this 
item on a ballot if approved tonight.  
Jeff Rose asked Vice Mayor Paul how he agrees with the stormwater project being a 
great project, but he believes the Town does not have the funds to execute it. 
Eliana Salzhauer stated how the Town just had a special election in November. She 
stated how the previous Commission did not add the stormwater improvement 
project on the ballot. 
Greg Bitz stated how it would be more prudent to leave this matter as it is since there 
are other matters that the Town needs to focus on. 
Shlomo Danzinger shared how the project was being priced out, which is why it was 
not on the ballot in the November special election. He asked for the Finance Director 
to speak on the stormwater project and the other issues shared tonight. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez stated how the undergrounding of the powerlines was a 
project introduced to the residents in November of 2021 approved to borrow $40 
million dollars. She stated how the money for the drainage project will be taken from 
the general fund plus another almost $4 million dollars set aside. She expressed how 
there is no need to put the burden of the residents by borrowing money. 

 
Commissioner Coto stated how there will be revenue for the Town with the new 
projects coming in. He shared how this resolution is a good idea. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui stated how the previous Commission did not put out a bid 
for this project back in November of 2023 during the special election, but that it was 
still foreseeable that the cost of the project was going to be high. He shared how he 
does not want this Commission to face the same problems and how he would like to 
use the Town's general fund. He shared how the Abbott Avenue project needs to be 
renamed as it not only benefits Abbott Avenue but the whole town. He stated he 
would like to place a borrowing question on the ballot for a future project. He stated 
he would like to leave this item for now and revisit it in May or June. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed how the opportunity to have a ballot question will not be 
lost since the deadline is July 26, 2024. She stated how the project can start due to 
the $4 million dollars set aside while the Town waits on the bids. She shared how 
this project has been put off for too long. Vice Mayor Paul had questions for the 
former Town Manager regarding his report. She stated how there is no need to 
borrow $10 million dollars for this project at this time. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein reminded the Commission the Town only has one 
question for the special election as of now. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui asked if there was a limit on questions. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein stated the Town needs to request more questions 
if desired. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to approve the resolution, 
seconded by Vice Mayor Paul. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.  

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

56



Reso Rescinding Special Election Bond Referendum Abbott Ave 
Stormwater Improvements 

 
6. Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.) Public 

comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to Good and Welfare with the following individuals from 
the public speaking. 

 
Louisa Agresti shared her thoughts regarding former employees resigning.  
Jeffrey Platt congratulated the Commission for their successful run for office. He hopes 
that they have a friendly administration for the next two years. He welcomed the Interim 
Chief of Police, the Interim Town Manager, and Interim Town Attorney who are doing a 
great job. He spoke about the decorum statement on the front of the agenda being 
removed and stated that the meeting was running in an orderly fashion.  
Israel Wasserman shared his experience with the new roundabout on 88th street and his 
and his wife's negative experience with Mayor Burkett while driving through the area. He 
would appreciate it if they don’t make assumptions of who voted for who based on a 
yamaka. 

 
Mayor Burkett responded to Mr. Wasserman's comments and stated that he was 
very aggressive while they interacted regarding the 88th street roundabout. 

 
Israel Wasserman stated he came to the meeting to discuss item 9M (Plans for the 
3rd Anniversary of the Champlain Towers South Collapse and Memorial Design).  
Mayor Burkett replied that he was not hostile and that he would like to move forward 
and build instead of divide.  
Freddy Giron shared how religion should not be a topic in the town. He stated that 
the Town is an entity that should not have to deal with religions.  
Eliana Salzhauer shared how it is important to heal and how it is equally important to look 
on what has happened and make sure that the rights that were violated for the last two 
years don’t happen again. She further spoke about her son’s arrest and the quite thorough 
investigation that took place. She spoke about all the baker acts that have happened and 
the inappropriate use of Town resources. She reported the theft of former Mayor 
Danzinger’s Town cellphone, he stated that there are two years of public records that he 
is not turning in. She suggested putting the former Mayor under oath and seeing how fast 
he finds his phone.  
Frank MacBride asked the Commission for their support in restriping the Hawthorne Tot 
Lot because there is a car parked at the entrance of the tot lot and he believes this might 
create an accident. He further asked for parking enforcement to be scheduled every other 
hour to check the area and instead of requesting to move their car, to cite them. He would 
like to see the Town create a welcome packet for new residents explaining how trash 
pickup works, water bills, and other important matters in Town. 

 
 
 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
57

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2538312/48B664503-Reso_Special_Election_Bond_Referendum_Abbott_Ave_Stormwater_Improvements_TAv5__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2538312/48B664503-Reso_Special_Election_Bond_Referendum_Abbott_Ave_Stormwater_Improvements_TAv5__1_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2538312/48B664503-Reso_Special_Election_Bond_Referendum_Abbott_Ave_Stormwater_Improvements_TAv5__1_.pdf


Shlomo Danzinger shared his gratitude to the Town's workers for their unwavering 
dedication during the last two years. He told the residents of Surfside his gratitude for 
allowing him to serve as their Mayor. He further implores the new Commission to 
approach their responsibilities with humility and not allow pettiness to get in the way and to 
overcome the challenges that may lay ahead.  
Ann Finley shared her gratitude to the Commission and their priorities on residents’ 
safety. She stated that Dickens Avenue is now safer for the kids that play on the streets. 
She stated that the drivers that are cutting through are upset residents and encourage 
them to do the right thing for the benefit of the Town’s children.  
Officer Tammy Campbell introduced herself as the union president for the Surfside FOP 
Lodge 135. She asked the Commission for their support in reading statements from the 
Town union members. She stated that if time was a concern, there were other union 
members available to continue to read and finish the statement. The Town Commission 
was ok with Officer Campbell reading the full statement herself. Officer Campbell read the 
concerns of the union members regarding several comments made by Mayor Burkett and 
some other members of the Town Commission and how those comments reflect poorly 
and are disparagement to the police department and its officers. She further stated that 
they make arrests based on probable cause and in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida, and they review arrests with the State Attorney’s Office when necessary. She 
further spoke about a message written by Mr. Blumstein with the approval of Mr. Burkett 
but without the approval of the Town Manager or the Interim Town Chief was sent out 
relating to the arrest of Joshua Epstein. She said in her statement that the national 
climate of law enforcement is being targeted, it is disheartening to see their local leader 
villainizing their police department and their officers, and how they have experienced 
different comments from residents that are causing a division between the residents and 
the department. She spoke about Mayor Burkett’s request to the new Interim Chief to 
remove the tinted windows from all patrol vehicles because they must lower their windows 
and wave to residents. She explained how tinted windows are important for the sun 
exposure of officers in a beachfront community. She also spoke about the 12-hour shifts 
that has been discussed by Mayor Burkett and how the Mayor has contacted officers 
directly to give them orders.  
Moses Pinto shared his thoughts on the noise ordinance and there are a few deliveries 
that have been occurring. He believes it may be a street sweeper or one of the 
businesses. He spoke about the notice sent out related to the 95th street paving. He 
further stated that he is not in favor of the 88th street roundabout, he stated that he 
moved from a gated community, and it doesn’t work unless you put a security guard.  
Jerold Brunnabend shared his thoughts on job openings and staffing. He shared his 
thoughts on transparency regarding all the vacant positions and proper staffing for the 
Town. He asked on how come there was no discussion, and the community was not notified 
prior installing the changes on 88th street. He spoke on what’s going on and how these 
changes will create an accident as people are making illegal turns and until Waze doesn’t 
change the directional pattern on this circle, the Town will continue to have the 
 

 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
58



same issues. He asked who requested the removal of the 15-min parking spots. 
Juliana Velez shared her thoughts about the 88th street roundabout and the traffic 
it creates.  
Greg Bitz shared how his car had been broken into and the neighborhood patrol had 
stopped since the Commission got elected. He shared his thoughts on transparency, and 
he shared his thoughts on the 15-min parking signs and how that affects residents that 
go to CVS and Starbucks.  
Jeff Rose thanked the residents and Town staff for the last two years of his term as Vice 
Mayor. He shared how Mayor Burkett got elected thanks to Vice Mayor Paul, 
Commissioner Coto, and Commissioner Vildostegui’s votes, and how they should hold 
him accountable.  
Marianne Meischeid congratulated the Commission on their win. She stated that people 
are already happier and that they have already held successful workshops. She shared a 
comment regarding the workshop and how Town Manager Gomez brought all the projects 
taking place in the Town. She spoke about the Collins Avenue watermain replacement 
and how it should be looked at it a little harder.  
Gustavo Ortega introduced himself as a special needs teacher and how he is running 
for Miami-Dade School Board District 3. He has been teaching at Biscayne Beach 
Elementary for the last 15 years and he loves his profession. He spoke regarding his 
candidacy.  
Pablo Langesfeld asked the commission to push back into the Surfside Collapse 
investigation. It has been almost three years, and they have no answers. He further 
asked for the Town of Surfside to do their own investigation because NIST is taking 
forever. Ann Findley shared her thoughts on the arrest of Joshua Epstein. She shared 
how she was moved by the police department's statement. She stated that the police 
department serves this community very well. She stated she is in full support of the police 
department and that this has been just a really bad time for this community. 
 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 
 
Commissioner Coto shared his thoughts on residents Ann Findley’s public comment and 
how he did agree with the hard work the police put into the Town. He addressed Gustavo 
Ortega in his comment as well and how teachers should be in the lead. He addressed Mr. 
Langesfeld and he knows is a very tough situation and we all need to know what 
happened. Regarding former Vice Mayor Rose comments, Commissioner Coto believes 
that he ended up with a lot of Mayor Burkett’s votes and he appreciates his support. He 
believes they make a good team and get good things done. Regarding the traffic situation 
on 88th street, he believes it’s tough but that they plan on doing something about it 
quickly. He addressed Mr. MacBride’s comments regarding the Hawthorne Tot Lot issue 
and asked the Chief to look into the matter. 
 
Vice Mayor Paul responded to the police departments statement and stated that the last 
 

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

59



two years have been difficult and unfortunate things happened, but it was important to 
bring a new Chief and she looks forward to seeing him bring the department together. She 
believes that the Town has a great police department and that she supports them and 
hopes they can move pass this. 
 
Commissioner Vildostegui addressed the police officer's statement; he shared his 
gratitude towards the police department, and he stated that they all showed up all together 
to the meeting, it makes an impression, and he wants them to know that he is listening. He 
further stated that he is grateful for the job they do. He shared his thoughts regarding what 
was said related to Mayor Burkett’s comments about the police department and how he 
believes that those comments were not appropriate. He suggested that there has to be 
some room for democratic civilian management and that’s the essence of democracy and 
if there are disagreements with policy there are normal mechanisms to deal with that and 
he hopes those are dealt through the proper channels. He further addressed the tinted 
windows issue and how there may be a possibility of having lighter tints and still have UV 
protection. He spoke about the proper channels and how the Commission has a role in 
setting policy, and he hopes they can find a way to work together and talk about what’s 
best for the town. He shared his thoughts on the traffic and parking issues in the Town 
and how some changes will have a trial-and-error portion to it. Commissioner Vildostegui 
expressed his confusion regarding the removal of the 15 parking spaces. 
 
Commissioner Velasquez spoke regarding the comments from Ms. Campbell and her 
interactions with her a couple of years ago with her husband. She feels that there is a 
better place to deal with situations like this. She suggested a sit-down meeting where they 
can all have a conversation and discuss the different situations that may be affecting 
them. She spoke on how the City of New York police vehicles do not have tinted windows, 
and how having tinted windows provides a disconnect between the police and the 
residents. She believes that residents should feel comfortable with the police. She further 
spoke about Joshua Epstein’s arrest and how it was handled. Commissioner Velasquez 
spoke about another incident where a police officer told her that he was investigating 
some political signs being stolen and that she doesn’t believe that we should be using 
taxpayers’ dollars to investigate who stole $3 signs and she doesn’t find that ok. She 
stated that lying to an elected official is not ok. She further stated that if the Town needs 
more police officers, she would be ok with that and that maybe working 12 hours shifts 
may be the cause of issues because they are not getting sufficient rest and people should 
only work 8 hours a day.  
Commissioner Velasquez further said that the police department was used as a weapon 
against residents for the las two years and she doesn’t believe that’s appropriate. She spoke 
about all the baker acts reports and encouraged the new Police Chief to investigate this 
issue. She further stated that if people are not happy with their jobs, they should look for a 
new one. Commissioner Velasquez agrees with Ms. Agresti that there should be a full 
investigation into what happened in the last two years, and an outside investigation 
 

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

60



into what happened to Joshua because not all 7 witnesses were interviewed. She is in  
support of placing a gate on 88th street and providing Town residents with some type of 
fob to allow the residents to have access. She further stated that the speeding problem 
should be fixed. She spoke about restriping the Hawthorne Tot Lot area. She wants to 
ensure that all Town residents are safe. 
 
Mayor Burkett addressed Officer Campbell who was sitting in the public. Officer Campbell 
responded to Mayor Burkett. This interaction was unable to be transcribed as Officer 
Campbell was not on the podium. Mayor Burkett spoke on how the police department 
used to be back in 2006 and how Chief David Allen was brought into town to fix the 
department and get it accredited. He further addressed some of the comments made by 
Officer Campbell, like the 12-hour shift. He believes that after 8 hours of work, everyone 
should go home. He believes that the police officers like the 12-hour shift because they 
work less days. He further spoke about his actions related to the speeders. He resented 
how some members of the police department were present at this meeting. He spoke 
about the police officer incident where he was saying hello and the police office drove 
away without acknowledging him. Mayor Burkett spoke about the comment that was made 
saying that he wanted to defund the police and how he was never in favor of that. He 
spoke about the position that each one has, they do not want a political police department, 
he believes that there was a better process than trying to embarrass him in public. He 
stated that he sees officers that he has been friends with for years. Mayor Burkett stated 
that he does not want a division between him, and members of the police department, and 
that Officer Campbell did not accomplish anything as they will still look into the tinted 
windows, the 12-hours shift, and the traffic and speeders. 
 
There was no support amongst the Town Commission for Officer Campbell to address 
the Town Commission. 
 
Al Palacios, District 6 Director for the FOP addressed the Town Commission. He stated that 
the Mayor’s comments in previous meetings are flagrant and dangerous, and it was in their 
opinion the reasons why residents and members of the public are addressing their members 
in a negative way. He further spoke on how they were talking about an open case and/or a 
case that just got closed out. The police officers have the power to speak up and say what 
they believe as the power of regress. He stated that it is illegal for the Mayor to stop a vehicle 
because they are speeding, and that is impersonating a police officer. There was an 
exchange between Mr. Palacios and Mayor Burkett. Mr. Palacios spoke about the body worn 
camera video that is on YouTube but he was not going to get into it. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated that Mr. Palacios' role is to stand up and defend the police officers 
and that his message is that they are all getting dragged into something that is not 
good. Surfside has never had a union president standing and speaking against a Mayor. 
 
 

 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
61



Sergeant Diana Leon stated that she has been a police officer for the last 17 years and 
that they are not going to see eye to eye. She stated that they brought their concern 
forward to the Commission and the residents, that they are not calling for the Mayor to 
be ousted, but they are humans not robots that you can turn on and off with a switch. 

 
Mayor Burkett stated that he would like to hear what everyone has to say and that is 
why he allowed Sergeant Leon to come forward and speak, because he cares but he 
doesn’t believe this is healthy. 

 
Sergeant Leon requested not to be interrupted so that she could speak. She suggested 
fixing what is wrong and moving forward, they are making them aware of their concerns. 
She encourages all members of the Town Commission to follow the City of Coral Gables 
Police Department's Instagram page. Two years ago, they brought forward their concerns 
to their elected officials and they are now 37 police officers down and in crisis. She stated 
that is what they are trying to prevent here because they love serving this Town but if 
they do something that makes them unhappy, they will move on. 

 
Mayor Burkett stated that the police officers are unhappy with some of the things, and 
they showed up and stated their concerns but he believes this could have been handled 
differently. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez stated that they have a Chief of Police and that they could have 
addressed their concerns through him, that the way this was done today was 
inappropriate that if they had an issue, they should have gone through their command 
officer which is their Chief of Police. 

 
Interim Attorney Blumstein reminded the Town Commission that this portion of the 
meeting has gone a lot longer than the 45 minutes allowance by town code for Good and 
Welfare. If the will of the Commission is to continue, there should make a motion. 

 
There was no interest in continuing with Good and Welfare. 

 
7.  Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
 

7A. April Town Manager's Report - Hector Gomez, Town Manager 
 

Interim Town Manager Vargas stated how the report was prepared by the former 
Town Manager. She stated if the Commission had any questions, she could answer 
them via email or address them during the next Commission meeting. 

 
Jeff Rose asked the Commission if there was going to be a public comment section 
for the Town Manager's report. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked the Commission if they will be allowing questions on this 

 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
62



portion of the agenda. 
 

The Commission did not agree to allow public comments. 
 

Mr. Rose continued to give his public comment. 
 

Mayor Burkett asked Interim Chief of Police Dolce to give Mr. Rose a time out 
outside of the Commission chambers for 15 minutes. 

 
Jeff Rose asked the Mayor if he was going to remove a resident by having the Chief 
take him out. 

 
Mayor Burkett stated that he was out of order and that he needed to sit down. He 
can return after 15 minutes and if he can learn how to be respectful and follow the 
Commission directions he can return and speak some more. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul stated she had questions regarding the Town Manager's report, but 
that she will discuss them with the Interim Town Manager before the next meeting. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to approve the Town Manager's 
Report, seconded by Commissioner Vildostegui. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 
2024 April Town Manager's Report.pdf 

 
7B. Town Attorney Report - Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney 
 

Interim Town Attorney Blumstein presented the Town Attorney report. He spoke 
about the 9250 Bay Drive case related to the lot splitting (page108 of the agenda 
packet). He explained that this was an item addressed by the previous Town 
Commission and he had an opportunity to review the matter with the Miami-Dade 
Plat Committee. The sequencing of the event resulted in the issuance of the 
resolution that was approved by the previous town commission and certified on the  
day of the election which was March 19th. He subsequently learned that the matter 
resulted in the waiver of plat. He added that it came to his attention that there were 
some issues with the application with the Miami-Dade County code in the process 
and the County requirements for the plat approval and the sequence of event could 
allow the town to challenge if they so choose to. This process is outlined on section 
28 of the Miami-Dade County code and to the extent that the Commission desires for 
the Town Attorney to file in accordance with Chapter 28 to challenge the decision 
and seek the striking of the County records of the finding of the plat as non in 
conformance with Miami-Dade County code. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked if the Interim Town Attorney feels comfortable in arguing that it 
is not in conformance. 

 
 

Interim Town Attorney Blumstein responded that based on the facts and the records 
provided by Miami-Dade County Plat Committee there is an argument to be made as 
to at least one item that required to be before the Miami -Dade County Plat 
Committee before they approved it, and if you strictly apply the code exactly how it

 
 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
63

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532726/2024_April_Town_Manager_s_Report.pdf


was written, there is an argument to be made. He further stated that he can’t say 
now if that will be well received by the County or the applicant, but it is an avenue. 
They will send a letter from the Town to the Miami-Dade County Plat Committee. 

 
The mayor asked if there was a motion to do that. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to move forward and challenge the 
waiver of the plat, seconded by Commissioner Coto. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein spoke about the matter that is open and pending on 
page 210 regarding Schnabel Engineer vs KCE that has led to an initiation in 
Virginia. He is seeking some direction from the Commission as to any authority he 
may have to resolve it for the Town as the Town’s representative for those purposes 
and if they give him that authority, he will seek to resolve it as they are in mediation. 

 
Commissioner Coto asked for the total cost of the matter and what his 
recommendation is. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein stated that he will look to resolve it for less than the 
claim. He further stated that there are claims known as nuisance claims and he 
hopes that he can resolve it. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez stated that in light of everything that happened in the last 
two years she suggested an independent investigation on phones disappeared and 
records lost. 

 
Mayor Burkett explained to Commissioner Velasquez that this is related to the 
Schnabel Engineering case. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui asked if the Interim Town Attorney saw it helpful to hold 
an executive session. 

 
Interim Town Attorney responded negatively. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul would like to discuss with the Interim Town Attorney her knowledge 
of what happened and fully support the Town Commission's direction. 
 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul for the Interim Town Attorney to mediate 
this case, seconded by Commissioner Velasquez. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to approve the Interim Town 
Attorney report, seconded by Commissioner Coto. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote. 
Town Attorney Report - April 9 2024 

 
  

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024
64

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2538214/TA_Report_-_April_9_2024.pdf


8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 
9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 

9A. Miami-Dade County League of Cities Director and Alternate Director 
Designation - Sandra N. McCready, MMC, Town Clerk 

 
For the Town Commission to appoint a Director and an alternate Director to 
the Miami Dade County League of Cities Board. 

 
Mayor Burkett introduced the item. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed his interest in serving as alternate director. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed her interest in serving as director. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to appoint Vice Mayor Paul as the 
Miami-Dade County League of Cities Director and Commissioner Vildostegui as the 
alternate director, seconded by Commissioner Coto. The motion carried with a 5-0 
vote. 

 
Attachment A - Miami-Dade League of Cities 

 
9B. Calvin Giordano & Associates (CGA) Continued IT Services Contract - 

Commissioner Nelly Velasquez 
 

For the Town Commission to cancel Calvin Giordano & Associates contract 
and consider hiring an in house IT employee. 

 
Mayor Burkett introduced the item. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez spoke regarding the need of the Town to have an in-
house IT department instead of a contractor. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul asked regarding the contract and the services being paid, as they 
are not clear on the contract. 
 

Finance Director Collazo stated he does not know the exact number the IT contractor is 
being paid but gave a ballpark of about $180,000.  
 
Vice Mayor Paul asked regarding the maintenance of the website and what is being 
done by the contractor. She stated how the additional services were tech director, 
network manager, and police department services. 
 
Finance Director Collazo clarified how those services were a separate line item, but that 
they were all provided by the same company. 

 
 
  

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024
65

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2466315/Miami-Dade_League_of_Cities.pdf


Vice Mayor Paul listed all the services provided by the company. She asked 
regarding the broadcasting services and how the Town is charged by event. She 
asked if the Town paid for the January 31st meeting services. She stated how she 
supported Commissioner Velasquez's request. She spoke in regards to the time 
frame to have information turned over and conduct a search for an in-house IT 
department. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez voiced how the Commission should give direction to the 
Interim Town Attorney and Interim Town Manager to bring back this item next month 
or to conduct a special meeting to discuss the contract and how to move forward. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein expressed how he will be waiting on the direction 
of the Town Commission regarding this matter. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked Interim Town Manager Vargas to put together a memo that 
reflects how much the Town spent last year on IT services and to give cost 
estimates for an in-house IT department. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed how this job might require more than one person. She 
shared how a cost estimate of multiple employees for the IT department can be done 
or if other IT contracts would benefit the Town. She stated she would like to see 
which of the two options is more cost effective. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez expressed her negative thoughts on the current IT 
contractor and how it is time to bring an in-house IT department. 

 
Mayor Burkett spoke regarding the employee's pension. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein stated he will speak with the Interim Town Manager 
regarding the approach of this matter and discuss it during the next scheduled 
meeting. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Eliana Salzhauer shared her thoughts regarding public records and the competency 
of the IT department. 
Jeff Rose shared his thoughts regarding having an IT contractor and having an in- 
house IT department.  
Louisa Agresti shared her thoughts regarding the current IT contractor and how they 
are not a competent provider. 
Shlomo Danzinger thanked the current IT department for the many years of service. 
He shared his thoughts on how he believed how having an in-house IT department is 
more expensive than having a contractor.  
Jerold Brunnabend spoke regarding how the Commission should not terminate a 
contract without having solutions. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 
  

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
66



 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein expressed he will bring this item back for the next 
Commission meeting.  
Attachment A - RESO 17-2421 

 
9C. Abbott Avenue Drainage Improvements Project - Commissioner Nelly  

Velasquez 
 

For the Town Commission to discuss and provide direction to the Town Manager 
on next steps of how to proceed with the project. 

 
Mayor Burkett introduced the item. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez spoke regarding the delay of this project. She voiced the 
urgency of fixing the flooding issues in the Town. She expressed how the Town has 
3.5 million dollars for the project, but that it should be put out to bid in order to cast a 
wider net. She shared how fixing Abbott Avenue will help with the flooding in the rest 
of the Town. 

 
Mayor Burkett spoke how the former Mayor had said the Town had two mobile 
pumps and how the Public Works Director said the Town did not own any mobile 
pumps. The Mayor expressed how the Town should purchase mobile pumps. He 
stated how the Town should rent the pumps to see if they are beneficial for the 
floodings. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul asked regarding the design for this project made during 2021. 

 
Public Works Director Stokes stated how the first design went out for bid for two 
pumps which came back for $8.9 million dollars. The design was redesigned for one 
pump for $100,000 cheaper. 

 
A conversation between the Commission and Public Works Director Stokes was 
conducted. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Jeff Rose spoke regarding the pump project. He agreed with the Mayor regarding the 
rental of the pumps. 
 
Shlomo Danzinger expressed how he does not appreciate how the Mayor was 
speaking for him and how the statement of the Town having two pumps was 
inaccurate. He stated how there was one pump installed in Harding and Hawthorne 
area. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked the Commission if they wanted to end the meeting al 11 p.m. or 
if they would like to address more items. 

  
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

67

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2527660/RESO_17-2421_ADDENDUM_TO_CGA_AGREEMENT.pdf


 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed how he would like to speak on items 9D 
(Authorize the Town Manager to Negotiate Driveway Access Relocation for 8801 
Collins Avenue to Accommodate Additional Memorial Space) and 9E (Creation of a 
Community Relations Board). 

 
Vice Mayor Paul shared she would like to address some concerns from the Town 
Manager's report. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez expressed how she would like to discuss the parking fees. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to move forward with the Abbott 
Avenue drainage project with the rental of the temporary two pumps, seconded by 
Commissioner Coto. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.  
Abbott Avenue ITB 

 
9D. Authorize the Town Manager to Negotiate Driveway Access Relocation 

for 8801 Collins Avenue to Accommodate Additional Memorial Space - 
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui 

 
Mayor Burkett introduced the item. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed how the memorial for the Champlain Towers 
victims should be the whole 88th street block from Collins Avenue to the beach. In 
order to execute this matter, he proposed the idea to negotiate with the property 
owner on 8801 Collins building which has a small driveway access onto the side 
street, he also spoke regarding the possibility of moving a fire hydrant. 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul to extend the meeting until items 9D (Authorize 
the Town Manager to Negotiate Driveway Access Relocation for 8801 Collins Avenue to 
Accommodate Additional Memorial Space), 9E (Creation of a Community Relations 
Board), 9G (Discussion on Parking Fees), 9H (Industrial Use of Single Family Homes in 
the Residential District), Vice Mayor Paul's questions regarding the Town Manager's 
report, and the lift gate on 88th street were discussed, seconded by Commissioner 
Vildostegui. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed he would like the Town Manager to discuss 
with the 8801 building regarding the cost of this initiative. 

 
Mayor Burkett suggested to Commissioner Vildostegui to personally reach out to the 
Building to express to them the Commission's ideas on this project. 
 
Eliana Salzhuer spoke regarding moving other objects, like electrical, from across 
the street as well since the whole block needs to be cleared out. 

 
Ms. Salzhuer was reminded her comment was not part of the discussed item, but 
that will be addressed in another item in the future. 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul for the Town Manager to negotiate with the 
8801 building to consider moving their driveway for the Champlain Memorial, 
seconded by Commissioner Vildostegui. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.  

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
68

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2538551/Abbott_Avenue_ITB.pdf


9E. Creation of a Community Relations Board - Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui 
 

Commissioner Vildostegui introduced the item. He stated how he would like to create 
a new Committee of residents who are focused on improving the feeling of 
community in the Town and overall improve the neighbor relations. He suggested on 
reviewing the Miami-Dade County version of their Community Relations Board with 
the Interim Town Attorney and come back next month with a better idea to the 
Commission. He suggested for each Commissioner to appoint one member and 
have those members appoint two other members. He expressed the Commission 
should appoint members during the May Commission meeting. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul agreed with the Town Commission to appoint one member each 
and those members will appoint two more members. She furthered stated that the 
section 2-208 duties and function of the Miami- Dade County ordinance should be 
used to create our resolution since the language contains the essence of what they 
want to accomplish. Vice Mayor Paul spoke about the possibility of reinstating the 
Budget Committee and Sustainability Committee. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Jerold Brunnabend stated that this was something that was discussed during the 
debate and he agrees with it. He believes that one topic that is appropriate to speak 
about is Gay Pride month as it is an important topic and the Commission needs to 
add this to the agenda to discuss next month. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Vildostegui to create the Community Relations 
Board with language to adopt the Board, seconded by Commissioner Coto. The 
motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

 
Town Clerk McCready asked Mayor Burkett if Liaisons for the Boards were going to 
be appointed. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked the Town Commission which Board would they like to be 
Liaisons for.  
 
Commissioner Coto expressed he would like to be the Liaison for the Parks and 
Recreation Commitee. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expressed he would like to be the Liaison for the Planning 
and Zoning Board. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul expressed she would like to be the Liaison for the Tourist 
Board.  
community-relations-board-ordinance.pdf 

 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

69

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2533227/community-relations-board-ordinance.pdf


 
9F. Amending Ordinance 21-1716 to Amend Section 90-48 - Setback 

Requirements and Considerations for Retroactive Implementation - 
Vice Mayor Tina Paul 
 
Item was not discussed. 

 
9G. Discussion on Parking Fees - Mayor Charles W. Burkett 
 

Mayor Burkett introduced the item and proposed his suggestions as to how much the 
parking fees should be raised. 

 
There was discussion on how much Bal Harbour chargers. 

 
Interim Town Attorney spoke about the parking tickets. 

 
The Town Commission consensus was for the Interim Town Attorney to work with 
the Interim Town Manager and bring back suggestions related to this matter. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul believes that the Town should keep the $ 4 per hour and have a 3-
hour maximum time limit seven days a week and allow the residents to use the 
overnight parking. She believes that if the price it too high, no one will come to Town. 
She stated the Town needs to tackle the 3 hour limit and be on top of it. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez believes that it should be raised to $10.00 with a 
maximum of three hours and either towed or boot the vehicle after three hours. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul stated that whatever they do have to work with the businesses as 
they already suffer enough. She would like to try different options at peak hours. She 
further stated that the dedicated spots are helpful to business owners. Also to allow 
residents to park overnight between 9pm-7am. 

 
Mayor Burkett suggested overnight decals for those residents that use it. 

 
Mayor Burkett stated that something has to be done and suggested a round table if 
one is needed. He further believes in raising their fees. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul suggested $4.00 per hour and 7 days a week, with at three hours 
maximum time. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui believes that this subject deserves a roundtable 
discussion. He doesn't believe in graduated parking rates. He believes it should be 
an even rate across the board.  
 
He spoke about the possibility of creating a resident system or code within the pay 
by phone app. He would like to workshop this further as he believes that any 
decision tonight feels rush. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul stated that she will not be in support of any changes tonight. 
 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
 

70



Commissioner Coto believes that this should be discussed further and requested 
three different options. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Eliana Salzhauer spoke and advised the Commission not to move forward with 
taking a decision as of yet. She stated that the way to do it is by having a community 
workshop.  
Shlomo Danzinger spoke against raising the fees and spoke about the maximum of 
a parking ticket to be $36.00. 
Jason Nevader thanked the Commission for putting the 15-minute signs back on. He 
stated that he sees beachgoers parking and not Bal Harbour people. He suggested 
incrementing the fees slowly by $0.50 cents and 7 days a week. 
Jeff Rose spoke about the possibility of the Town of Surfside valet and parking 
visitor in the Bal Harbour shops by working with them. 
Louisa Agresti spoke about Mr. Rose's ideas and maybe have the restaurants hire 
employees to valet the visitor's vehicles in the Bal Harbour shops or even hotels in 
town and provide that service to their clients. 
Jerold Brunnabend stated that no one in this Commission is a parking expert and his 
concerns with the Interim Town Attorney acting as the Town Manager. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
Mayor Burkett would like for them to do something about it and possibly changing 
the rates tomorrow. He would like to raise and see who the complainants are. He 
further stated that if they raise them and it doesn't work, they can always change 
them back. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui believes that this is something that it is definitely for 
experts, and he is trying to stay away from raising it to $10.00. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez would like to go to $4.00 every day, seven days a week 
and schedule a workshop where the Town Manager and Town Attorney can provide 
feedback. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to amend resolution 2022-2900 to 
change the hourly parking fees to $5.00 across the board in all municipal lots, 7 days 
a week with a maximum of three hours, seconded by Commissioner Coto. The 
motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul asked regarding the Town Manager's report stating how the field 
will be Turf. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez clarified there is natural grass on the field. 
Item was not discussed.  
Resolution No. 2022-2900-Off-Street Variable Parkins Rates and Time Limitation.pdf 

 
9H. Industrial Use of Single Family Homes in the Residential District - Mayor 

Charles W, Burkett 
Minutes  

Regular Town Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, April 9, 2024 

71

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2531165/Resolution_No._2022-2900-Off-Street_Variable__Parkins_Rates_and_Time_Limitation.pdf


 
Mayor Burkett introduced the item and asked for the Interim Town Attorney to look 
into the code regarding the industrial use of single-family homes in the residential 
district. 

 
Interim Town Attorney stated that there were problematic sites that were in front of 
the Special Magistrate and there were fines accessed to those in violation. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul spoke about an ordinance that can be used in order to obtain 
compliance with those sites. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein stated that sometimes it comes to enforcement and 
staff availability. 

 
Mayor Burkett directed the Interim Town Attorney to look into this to make sure 
these things are no longer allowed. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Eliana Salzhauer spoke on this item and the people that make their sites a dump and 
thanked the Commission for addressing this matter. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez spoke regarding what is not allowed in New York and an 
ordinance from Coral Gables relating to commercial parking. 

 
Shlomo Danzinger stated that this item is to target the former Vice Mayor's business. 
He urged the Town Commission to have in mind that there are many residents that 
have companies, and this may affect those as well.  
Jeff Rose spoke on the item and stated that the house in question has an active 
permit. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez for the Town Manager to put 
together a proposal and bring it back to the Commission, seconded by 
Commissioner Coto. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote.  
Town Code Section 34-66 Definitions.pdf  
Town Code Section 34-67 Penalty for Violation.pdf Town Code Section 34-68 
Assessment of Cost.pdf 
Town Code Section 34-69 Unsightly Accumulations on Improved 
Property.pdf Town Code Section 34-70 Vegetation.pdf Town Code Section 
34-71 Vacant Lots.pdf 
 

9I. Discussion on the Planning Department, Planning Approval Process and 
Planning and Zoning Board - Mayor Charles W. Burkett 

 
Item was not discussed. 
  

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
 

72

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532289/Town_Code_Section_34-66_Definitions.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532287/Town_Code_Section_34-67_Penalty_for_Violation.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532286/Town_Code_Section_34-68_Assessment_of_Cost.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532286/Town_Code_Section_34-68_Assessment_of_Cost.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532285/Town_Code_Section_34-69_Unsightly_Accumulations_on_Improved_Property.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532285/Town_Code_Section_34-69_Unsightly_Accumulations_on_Improved_Property.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532284/Town_Code_Section_34-70_Vegetation.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532288/Town_Code_Section_34-71_Vacant_Lots.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2532288/Town_Code_Section_34-71_Vacant_Lots.pdf


 
9J. Community Center Concession - Vice Mayor Tina Paul 
 

Item was not discussed. 
 
9K. Reverse Resolution No. 2023-Z-3209 Site Plan Approval of 8777 

Collins Avenue - Vice Mayor Tina Paul 
 

Item was not discussed. 
 
9L. Discussion regarding Historic Structures - Vice Mayor Tina Paul 
 

Item was not discussed. 
 
9M. Plans for the 3rd Anniversary of the Champlain Towers South Collapse and 

Memorial Design - Vice Mayor Tina Paul 
 

Mayor Burkett introduced the item. 
 

Vice Mayor Paul expressed how the purpose of placing this item on the agenda is 
because of the three-year anniversary of the Champlain Towers Collapse is 
approaching. She stated how she would like to give the Town Manager direction to 
work with the Memorial Committee. 

 
Commissioner Velasquez asked regarding the change of name for the memorial. 

 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 

 
Martin Langesfeld shared how he lost his sister and her husband nearly three years 
ago in the collapse. He expressed how the previous Memorial Committee had 
different opinions. He stated how the Committee, and the family members of the 
victims should get together and decide on a name. He advised for the new Interim 
Town Manager to be informed and up to date with what has been done in the 
Committee. He expressed the importance of continuing the investigation on the 
collapse. 

 
Mayor Burkett expressed his concerns on making sure the Memorial is properly 
made and named. He expressed how the memorial is to remember the people, not 
the politicians. 

 
Azriel Wasserman stated how he thinks his wife is the only victim family member that 
lives in surfside. Mr. Wasserman said he will ask his wife regarding her opinion on the 
memorial's name. He shared how he would like to put together the Committee. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul stated they will reinstate the former Memorial Committee and add 
another two members to it. One is David Rodan, a family member and architect, and 
survivor Yady Santos. 

 
Mr. Wasserman expressed how his wife would object and to take actions sensitively.  

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 73



Shlomo Danzinger shared his thoughts on why the Town Manager is running the 
Commitee. He expressed how the name of the memorial came from the feedback of 
the former memorial committee, due to them not wanting to hear the words 
Champlain Towers.  
Eliana Salzhauer expressed how the last two years have been filled with delays 
regarding the memorial and the Town's projects. 

 
Mayor Burkett closed the floor to public comments. 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Paul to direct the Interim Town Manager to work 
with the Memorial Committee and Town staff for the memorial anniversary and move 
forward with the Memorial plans, seconded by Commissioner Velasquez. The 
motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 

 
9N. Police Enforcement and Presence throughout Town - Commissioner Ruben A. 

Coto 
 

Item was not discussed. 
 
9O. Discuss Ordinance Changing the Mixed Use for Religious Exemptions - 

Commissioner Nelly Velasquez 
 

Item was not discussed. 
 
9P. Discussion on Lot Splitting and Lot Coverage - Commissioner Ruben A. Coto 
 

Item was not discussed. 
 
9Q. Dock Sizes - Commissioner Ruben A. Coto 
 

Item was not discussed. 
 

Lift Gate on 88th Street - Commissioner Velasquez 
 

Commissioner Velasquez introduced the item and believes that this is a great idea and 
would like to see if the Town Commission would like to provide direction to the Town 
Manager and Interim Town Attorney to look into placing an arm there and providing 
residents and emergency vehicles a fob to allow access. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui voiced how he doesn't believe such a thing exists anywhere in 
Miami-Dade County, he doesn't believe that the Town will be able to accomplish this if it 
is a county road. However, he is in favor of the Interim Town Attorney looking into this. 
 
Mayor Burkett opened the floor to public comments. 

 
The following individuals from the public spoke: 
Jeff Rose spoke about this item and stated that there was a Town Workshop and most of 
the Town residents in attendance like the idea of placing some of these arms on some 
streets in Town. 
 

 
  

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 74



 
Shlomo Danzinger spoke on the item and asked Mayor Burkett if the issue on 88th street 
was an order and/or if the Town obtained approval from the County. He stated that the 
County will make them take this down. He suggested that they should focus on the speed 
limit which is not enforceable. 
Eliana Salzhauer stated that this was discussed in the Town Workshop where only 10 
people attended. She further stated that there were things done in the past without the 
County's approval. She believes that everything this Commission is discussing is to 
benefit their residents. 

 
Interim Town Attorney Blumstein stated that the Town of Surfside streets do not belong 
to the County. 

 
Jared Brunnabend stated that the Town should contact Google and Waze in order to 
change the pattern so that they don't come through the new circle created. He also 
recommended for the Town Commission to visit gated communities to see how those 
work. 

 
Mayor Burkett asked the Town Commission if they will entertain this idea as a pilot 
program. 

 
Vice Mayor Paul stated that in the meantime there needs to be enforcement there. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to direct the Interim Town Manager to 
put together a proposal and bring it back to the Town Commission, seconded by 
Commissioner Coto. 

 
Commission Vildostegui would like to know more about what is legally allowed in that 
area. 

 
Mayor Burkett stated that there is no more traffic in that area. 

 
Commissioner Vildostegui expects that this idea doesn't come at the expense of the 
traffic solutions that they have been talking about. He believes that traffic calming is a 
different issue from cut through. He expressed how he is worried with over promising with 
the gate idea. 

 
Further discussion took place related to possible pros and cons of this idea. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Velasquez to place the lift gate and bring it back to 
the Commission for final approval, seconded by Commissioner Coto. The motion carried 
with a 5-0 vote. 

 
10. Adjournment  

There being no further business to discuss before the Commission, a motion was made by 
Commissioner Velasquez to adjourn the meeting at 12:28am, seconded by Vice Mayor 
Paul. The motion carried with a 5-0 vote. 
 
 
 
   

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024
75



 
Accepted this ______ day of ____________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________  
Charles W. Burkett, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
___________________________  
Sandra N. McCready, MMC, MPA  
Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Minutes  
Regular Town Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, April 9, 2024 
76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 3C.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Sandra N. McCready, MMC, Town Clerk

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Certification of Surfside General Municipal Elections held March 19, 2024

 

 

 

 
 

Town Administration recommends adoption of the Resolution.
 

The Town of Surfside held its General Elections on Tuesday, March 19, 2024.  The general
election consisted of electing a Mayor and four commissioners to serve for a term of two
years.  Attached is a resolution certifying and declaring the official results of the General
Election.
 

Resolution Certifying Town General Elections

Certification Letter - Surfside General Municipal 03.19.24

Results Official EL45 03.29.24 -Surfside 03.19.24 Signed

96

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2593570/Resolution_Certifying_Town_General_Elections.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2541667/Certification_Letter_-_Surfside_General_Municipal_03.19.24.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2541808/Results_Official_EL45_03.29.24_-Surfside__03.19.24_Signed.pdf


Page 1 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. 24 - _____

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA CERTIFYING AND 
DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON 
MARCH 19, 2024, FOR THE ELECTION OF MAYOR AND 
FOUR (4) TOWN COMMISSIONERS; PROVIDINHG FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) held a general municipal election on 
Tuesday, March 19, 2024, for the election of Mayor and four Commissioners of the Town of 
Surfside, Florida (“Election”); and

WHEREAS, the qualifying period for the Election closed on November 22, 2023 at 
noon; and

WHEREAS, Charles W. Burkett and Shlomo Danzinger qualified to run for the Office 
of Mayor, and Jerold Blumstein, Ruben Bravo, Jared Brunnabend, Ruben A. Coto, David 
Forbes, Fred Landsman, Victor May, Tina Paul, Jeffrey Rose, Nelly Velasquez, and Gerardo 
Vildostegui, qualified to run for the Office of Town Commissioner(s); and

WHEREAS, Ruben Bravo withdrew from the race for the Office of Town 
Commissioner on February 21, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Miami-Dade County Canvassing Board has canvassed the returns, has 
tabulated the ballots of the early voting, mail in votes, and election day voting, and has 
determined the total number of votes at said Election; and 

WHEREAS, the results of the March 19, 2024 Election were certified on Friday, March 
29, 2024, by the Miami-Dade County Supervisor of Elections, Christina White (Exhibit A” to the 
Resolution); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission hereby certifies the results of the March 19, 2024
Election.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.   Recitals Adopted.  The above and foregoing recitals are true and correct and 
are hereby adopted and incorporated herein.

97



Page 2 of 3

Section 2. Certification of General and Special Elections.  The Town Commission 
finds, declares and certifies the results of the March 19, 2024 Election for the Office of the 
Mayor and the Office of the Town Commissioner(s) pursuant to the Certificate of County 
Canvassing Board Miami-Dade County (See Exhibit “A” attached).

It is hereby certified and declared that, pursuant to the votes cast in the Election held on 
Tuesday, March 19, 2024, Charles W. Burkett was duly elected Mayor, Tina Paul was duly 
elected Vice Mayor and Ruben A. Coto, Nelly Velasquez and Gerardo Vildostegui were duly 
elected to the Town Commission for the term which shall commence at 8:00 p.m. on 
Wednesday, March 20, 2024 and end on the third Wednesday in March 2026.  

Section 3.   Implementation.   The Town Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to take 
all action necessary and perform all incidental duties in connection herewith as required by law.

PASSED and ADOPTED on this 14th day of May 2024.

Motion by ______________________________________,

Second by ______________________________________.

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION

Commissioner Ruben A. Coto ____
Commissioner Nelly Velasquez ____
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui ____
Vice Mayor Tina Paul ____
Mayor Charles W. Burkett ____

______________________________
Charles W. Burkett, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Sandra N. McCready, MMC, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY:

98



Page 3 of 3

_________________________________
Mark Blumstein
Interim Town Attorney

99



10
0



10
1



 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 4B1.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Ordinance Amending Section 90-41 "Regulated Uses" by Providing
Exemptions to Drug Stores

 

 

 

 

 

For the Town Commission to adopt the ordinance on first reading.
 

Presently, Town Code precludes drug stores within 850 feet of one another. Businesses that
seek to move to Surfside may at times include a pharmacy/drug store as part of, but not the
primary purpose for, the leased premises. The proposed amendment to Town Code would
now allow a drug store to be located within the restricted zone so long as at least eighty (80)
percent of the square footage of the leased space is used for an authorized commercial
purpose under Town Code other than the dispensing of prescription drugs.

90-41 Regulated Uses - Drug Stores

102

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2600876/90-41_Regulated_Uses_-_Drug_Stores_-_MB_changes.pdf


1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. 
Changes between first and second reading are indicated with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline.

Page 1 of 4

               ORDINANCE NO. 2024 - ________

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING THE TOWN 
OF SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING 
SECTION 90-41, “REGULATED USES”, BY PROVIDING
DRUG STORES EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE 
CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Article VIII, Section 2 of the Florida Constitution, and Chapter 166, Florida 1

Statutes, provide municipalities the authority to exercise any power for municipal purposes, except 2

where prohibited by law, and to adopt ordinances in furtherance of such authority; and 3

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Surfside (“Town Commission”) finds it 4

periodically necessary to amend its Code of Ordinances and Land Development Code (“Code”) in 5

order to update regulations and procedures for maintain consistency with state law and to implement 6

municipal goals and objectives; and 7

WHEREAS, the Town Commission seeks to provide an exemption for Drug Stores to be 8

allowed within the eight hundred fifty (850) feet restricted zone so long as at least eighty (80) 9

percent of the square footage of the leased space is used for an authorized commercial purpose 10

under Town Code other than the dispensing of prescription drugs.11

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, as the local planning agency for the Town, held 12

its hearing on the proposed amendment on _____________, 2024 with due public notice and input; 13

and14

WHEREAS, the Town Commission held its first public hearing on May 14, 2024 and 15

recommended approval of the proposed amendments to the Code of Ordinances having complied 16

with the notice requirements by the Florida Statutes; and17

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has conducted a second duly noticed public hearing on 18

these regulations as required by law on ________________, 2024 and further finds the proposed 19

change to the Code necessary and in the best interest of the community.20

21

103



Page 2 of 4

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 22
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA1:23

24
    Section 1. Recitals. The above Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 25

this reference:26
27

Section 2. Town Code Amended.  Section 90-41. – “Regulated Uses” of the Surfside Town 28
Code of Ordinances is hereby amended and shall read as follows1:29

Sec. 90-41. Regulated uses.30

(a) Purpose. Permitted uses are considered to be fundamentally appropriate within the district in 31
which they are located and are deemed to be consistent with the comprehensive plan. These 32
uses are permitted as of right, subject to the required permits and procedures described in this 33
section. Permitted uses require final site plan review and approval for compliance with the 34
standards applicable to a particular permitted use as provided in this zoning code.35

(b) Permits required. Except as explicitly provided herein, no use designated as a permitted use 36
in this chapter shall be established until after the person proposing such use has applied for 37
and received all required development permits.38

(c) Table—Regulated uses.39

*    *    *40

Office Uses and Professional Services SB-B40

Drug stores and sundries P(30)

*    *    * *    *    * 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary P(30)

*    *    * *    *    * 

Sundries P

*    *    * *    *    * 
            Key: P: Permitted Blank: Not Permitted (#): Refer to Notes CU: 41
Conditional Use42

*    *    * 43

                                                
1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. 
Changes between first and second reading are indicated with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline.

104



Page 3 of 4

(d) Uses table notes.44

*    *    * 45

(30) The following uses shall be separated from similar existing uses, or similar approved 46
but unbuilt uses, within the Town limits, by the minimum distances specified below, 47
measured from front door to front door:48

(a) For purposes of this calculation, front door shall mean the primary public 49
access to the business which shall not include any alley, rear or secondary 50
access point.51

(b) Medical Marijuana Dispensary: Eight hundred fifty (850) feet. 52

(c) Drug stores: Eight hundred fifty (850) feet, except this restriction shall not 53
apply when at least eighty (80) percent of the square footage of the leased space is 54
used for an authorized commercial purpose under Town Code other than the 55
dispensing of prescription drugs.56

Section 3. Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held 57
to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in 58
no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.59

Section 4. Inclusion in the Code.  It is the intention of the Town Commission, and it is hereby 60
ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made a part of the Town of Surfside 61
Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to 62
accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed to “Section” or other 63
appropriate word.64

65
Section 5. Conflicts. Any and all Ordinances and Resolutions or parts of Ordinances or 66

Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.67
68

Section 6. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.69

70
PASSED and ADOPTED on first reading this ____ day of _______2024.71

72
PASSED and ADOPTED on second reading this ________day of_______, 2024.73

74
75

On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________76
77

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________78
79
80

105



Page 4 of 4

  81
82

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION:83
84

Commissioner Ruben A. Coto _____85
Commissioner Nelly Velasquez _____86
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui _____87
Vice Mayor Tina Paul             _____88
Mayor Charles W. Burkett _____89

90
91

                                                                                     ______________________________92
    Charles W. Burkett, Mayor93

94
ATTEST:95

96
________________________________97
Sandra N. McCready, MMC, Town Clerk98

99
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE100
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY:101

102
__________________________________103
Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney104

106



 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 4B2.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Ordinance Amending the Resort Tax Powers and Duties and filing
requirements.

 

 

 

 

 

For the Town Commission to adopt ordinance in first reading.
 

Amend the filing requirements and Powers and duties of Resort Tax Board Members such that
board members may serve to advise the Town Commission for resort tax expenditures and
delete any minimum allocations for specified purposes of resort tax receipts.

Ordinance Amending Powers and Duties Resort Tax Board

107

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602945/Ordinance_Amending_Powers_and_Duties_Resort_Tax_Board_-_Form_1_Amendment.pdf


Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline.

Page 1 of 4

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-1
2

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 3
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTIONS 4
70-124 AND 70-126, OF DIVISION 2.–“RESORT TAX 5
BOARD”, OF ARTICLE IV.–“RESORT TAX”, CHAPTER 706
OF THE TOWN CODE, TO AMEND THE POWER AND 7
DUTIES AND DELETE ANY REQUIREMENT FOR 8
SPECIFIC, MINIMUM ALLOCATIONS; PROVIDING FOR 9
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 10
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 11
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS; AND PROVIDING FOR 12
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.13

14
WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (the “Town”) created the Resort Tax Board (the 15

“Board”) to explore, create, and organize events and activities that enhance Town 16

tourism; and17

WHEREAS, Section 70-126 of the Town Code establishes the power and duties 18

of the Board; and19

WHEREAS, the Town Commission desires to align the powers and duties of the 20

Board consistent with other Town boards such that it will be advisory in nature and subject 21

to Town Commission approval, including the deletion of any required minimum allocation 22

directed to advertising, promotion and special events; and23

WHEREAS, in order to achieve the Town’s objectives, the Town Commission 24

seeks to amend Section 70-126 to provide for the Board’s recommendations to the Town 25

Commission of enumerated items and delete any specific allocation directed to particular 26

activities; and27

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that amending Section 70-124 of the 28

Town Code is required to conform to amendments to Section 70-126.29

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that amending Section 70-126 of the 30

Town Code is in the best interest and welfare of the Town.31

32
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE33

HEREBY ORDAINS:34
35

Section 1. Recitals Adopted.   The above-stated recitals are hereby adopted 36
and confirmed. 37

108



Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline.

Page 2 of 4

38
Section 2. Town Code Amended.  The Code of Ordinances of the Town of 39

Surfside, Florida is hereby amended by amending Section 70-124 “Composition; 40
appointment; vacancies; compensation; removal from office, etc.” and Section 70-126, 41
“Power and duties.”, as follows:42

43
Chapter 70 – Taxation44

45
***46

47
Article IV. – Resort Tax48

49
***50

Division 2. – Resort Tax Board51
52

***53

Sec. 70-124. Composition; appointment; vacancies; compensation; removal from 54
office, etc.55

(a) Number, term and qualification of members. The board shall consist of five members. 56
Each commissioner shall appoint one board member. All appointed board members 57
must be ratified by a vote of the town commission. Any newly elected commissioner 58
has the right to appoint a resort tax board member unless the corresponding 59
appointment has yet to reach the end of their two-year term. Each of the five 60
members shall be persons who reside in Surfside and at least three of the five 61
members shall be persons who have experience in any of the following areas: 62
tourism, public relations, marketing, event planning and/or tourism related activities. 63
One town commissioner shall serve as a non-voting ex-officio member of the board. 64

(b) Resiliency member. One board member shall also possess education and/or 65
experience in sustainability and resiliency, which may include environmental science. 66

(c) Vacancies. Any vacancies occurring on the board shall be filled at the earliest,67
possible date by the town commission for the remainder of the unexpired term. 68

(d) Reappointment. Board members shall be eligible for reappointment and shall hold 69
office until their successors have been duly appointed and qualified. 70

(e) Compensation of members. Members of the board shall serve without compensation 71
but shall be reimbursed for necessary expenses occurred in the performance of the 72
official duties, as shall be determined and pre-approved by the town commission. 73

(f) Acceptance of appointment. Before serving on the board entering upon the duties of 74
office, each board member shall file a written acceptance of appointment and take 75
and subscribe to the oath of office prescribed by law, which shall be filed in the office 76
of the Town Clerk. Each appointed member is required to provide the town clerk with 77
a Form 1-Statement of Financial Interests, within three business days of being 78
appointed to the board.79

109



Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline.

Page 3 of 4

(g) Removal of members from office; attendance. A board member may be removed 80
from office only by a majority vote of the entire membership of the town commission; 81
however, whenever a board member shall fail to attend three consecutive meetings 82
without prior notification to the director or town manager, the chairman shall certify 83
such non-attendance to the town commission, and, upon such certification, the board 84
member shall be deemed to have been removed and the Town Commission shall fill 85
the vacancy pursuant to paragraph (c) above. 86

Sec. 70-126. – Power and duties.87
88

The board shall have the following enumerated powers and duties.89
90

(1) To adopt and/or recommend procedures as it related to recommend to the Town 91
Commission the adoption and/or amendment procedures as they relate to92
publicity, advertising, promotional events, tourist board and this board’s activities.93

94
(2) To recommend to the Town Commission any expenditure of expend resort tax 95

funds collected pursuant to Chapter 70 of the Town Code. Specifically, those 96
amounts allocated by the commission during their annual budgetary process, the 97
minimum being 34 percent of the resort tax collected, to advertising promotion and 98
special events as part of the tourist bureau budget.99

100
(3) To recommend to the Town Commission any employ or retain an advertising 101

and/or public relations consultant and/or firm as it relates to specific tourist board 102
activities.  The tourist board shall designate a member to assist the town manager, 103
upon request, in the process of selecting a director for the department.104

105
(4) To recommend to the Town Commission the authorize placement of advertising in 106

various media.107
108

(5) To organize special events to promote the Town for the promotion of Surfside as 109
a tourist destination, as approved by the Town Commission.110

111
(6) To create a formalized timely budget plan, in form and substance approved by the 112

town manager, for consideration by the Town Commission during its annual with 113
staff in consultation with the town manager or designee and to submit the budget 114
plan to the town manager every year as part of the budgetary process.115

116
117

* * *118
119

Section 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this 120
ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 121
then said holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 122
ordinance.123

124

110



Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes 
between first and second reading are indicated with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline.

Page 4 of 4

Section 4. Inclusion in the Code. It is the intention of the Town 125
Commission, and it is hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become 126
and made a part of the Town of Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this 127
Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered to accomplish such intentions; and the word 128
“Ordinance” may be changed to “Section” or other appropriate word.129

130
Section 5. Conflicts. Any and all Ordinances and Resolutions or parts of 131

Ordinances or Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.132
133

Section 6. Effective Date.   That this Ordinance shall become effective upon 134
adoption.  135

136
PASSED AND ADOPTED on first reading this _____ day of _____, 2024.137

138
PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this _____ day of ___________, 2024. 139

140
First Reading: Second Reading:141
Motion by: Motion by:_______________________142
Second by: Second by:______________________143

144
FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION145
Commissioner Ruben A. Coto146
Commissioner Nelly Velasquez147
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui148
Vice Mayor Tina Paul149
Mayor Charles W. Burkett150

151
__________________________________152

Charles W. Burkett, Mayor153
Attest: 154

155
156

Sandra Novoa, MMC157
Town Clerk158

159
Approved as to Form and Legal Sufficiency: 160

161
162

Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney163

111



 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 5A.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Mayor Charles W. Burkett

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Approval of the Interim Town Manager Agreement

 

 

 

 
 

For the Town Commission to review and approve.
 

The Town Commission, during their April 9, 2024 Special Town Commission meeting,
appointed Ms. Vargas as the Interim Town Manager.  The appointment of Ms. Vargas as the
Interim Town Manager was approved unanimously by Town Commission.  The proposed
Agreement memorializes the terms and conditions of her appointment.

Reso - Interim Town Manager

Marisol Vargas - Interim Town Manager Agreement

112

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602079/Reso_-_Interim_Town_Manager_-_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2602931/Marisol_Vargas_-_Interim_Town_Manager_Agreement_-rev3.pdf


Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING THE 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT OF MARISOL VARGAS AS 
INTERIM TOWN MANAGER PURSUANT TO THE 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT ATTACHED HERETO AS 
EXHIBIT “A”; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Surfside (Town”) appointed Marisol

Vargas to the position of Interim Town Manager on April 9, 2024 (“Effective Date”);

WHEREAS, the Town Commission now desires to formalize the terms and conditions of 

her employment as Interim Town Manager in accordance with the Employment Agreement 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A”;

WHEREAS, the Employment Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” has been 

executed by Marisol Vargas, demonstrating her acceptance of the terms and conditions by which 

she will serve the Town as Interim Town Manager.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals Adopted.  Each of the above stated recitals are hereby adopted, 

confirmed and incorporated herein.

Section 2. Approval of Employment Agreement.  The Employment Agreement 

between Marisol Vargas and the Town attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved as of the 

Effective Date.

Section 3. Implementation of Contract.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to take any 

and all necessary or further action to execute and implement said Employment Agreement. 

113



Page 2 of 2

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption and the Employment Agreement as of the Effective Date.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024.

Motion by ______________________________________.
Second by ______________________________________.    

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION

Commissioner Ruben Coto ______
Commissioner Nelly Velasquez
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui
Vice Mayor Tina Paul
Mayor Charles W. Burkett

Charles W. Burkett
Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra N. McCready, MMC
Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

Mark Blumstein
Interim Town Attorney

114



1

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
INTERIM TOWN MANAGER

This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this day of May, 2024, 

between the Town of Surfside, a Florida municipal corporation (the “Town”) and Marisol Vargas

(“Vargas” or “Town Manager”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Section 34 of the Town Charter (the “Charter”) requires that there shall be a Town 

Manager who is the Chief Administrative Officer of the Town; and

WHEREAS, Vargas was appointed as interim Town Manager by the Town Commission at its

April 9, 2024 Special Commission Meeting; and

WHEREAS, Vargas represents that she has the expertise and skills to serve as Town Manager;

and

WHEREAS, the Town desires to employ the services of Vargas as Town Manager and Vargas

wishes to accept such employment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants contained in this 

Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Recitals.

The above and foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. Duties.

2.1 The Town Manager shall have all powers and perform all duties and responsibilities 

required by this Agreement and prescribed in the Charter and applicable sections of the Town Code.

115



2

2.2. The Town Manager shall also perform such other duties and carry out such policy 

directives as determined by a majority of the Town Commission from time to time.

2.3. The Town Manager shall provide the Town Commission with a monthly report, which 

shall include a list of directives from the Town Commission and the status of achievement of the same. 

The report shall be included in the monthly Commission Agenda Package.

2.4 The Town Manager shall attend all Commission meetings unless excused by the 

Commission. She shall also attend the Town’s Planning & Zoning Board meetings, Tourist Board meetings 

and Pension Board meetings. In addition, she shall attend other standing and ad hoc committee meetings 

and other meetings as appropriate to fulfill her duties as Town Manager unless she has schedule conflicts 

that preclude her attendance. The Town Manager may assign a designee to attend certain meetings, if she 

is unavailable.

2.5 The Town Manager shall be available to confer and/or meet with the Mayor and 

Commissioners, as requested and as needed.

Section 3. Salary.

3.1 The Town Manager shall receive an initial annual salary in the amount of $120,000.00, 

retroactive to April 9, 2024, the date of her appointment, payable in equal installments in accordance with 

the Town’s existing pay periods.

3.2 For purposes of this Agreement, the Town Manager’s anniversary date for her first annual 

performance evaluation shall be April 9, 2024 (the “Performance Evaluation Anniversary Date”).

Section 4. Performance Evaluations.

4.1 The Town agrees to conduct formal performance evaluations of the Town Manager in a 

format acceptable to a majority of the Town Commission by July 9, 2024 and after twelve (12) and twenty-

four (24) months of service from the Town Manager’s Performance Evaluation Anniversary Date, if 

applicable. The Town Commission shall thereafter evaluate the performance of the Town Manager at least 

once annually on or before the Anniversary Date of each year. It is understood and agreed that if the Town 

116



3

Manager receives a positive evaluation from the Commission, the Town Manager may receive a salary or 

benefit increase, but any such increase is solely within the discretion of the Commission, approved at a 

public meeting.

4.2 The evaluation specified in Sections 4.1 shall be based upon: (i) the Town Manager’s 

performance of the duties specified in Section 2; (ii) the Town Manager’s achievements of the Town 

Commission’s policy directives; and (iii) the Town Manager’s progress towards completion of appropriate 

professional development programs.

Section 5. Holidays.

The Town Manager shall be entitled to all holidays recognized by the Town.

Section 6. Annual (Vacation) Leave.

6.1 The Town Manager shall accrue 30 business days of annual leave per calendar-year on a 

pro rata basis equally per pay period. The Town Manager shall submit leave slips for annual leave usage 

in accordance with Town policy for all other Town employees. The Town Manager shall be permitted to 

roll over her current accrued vacation leave balance. The carryover and payout of accrued vacation leave 

will be governed by Town policy for non-union civilian employees unless such policy directly conflicts 

with this Agreement, in which case the conflicting provision of this Agreement shall control. After five 

(5) years of continuous employment as Town Manager, she shall accrue 30 business days of annual leave 

per calendar-year on a pro rata basis equally per pay period.

6.2 In all instances other than in the event of an emergency, where prior verbal or written notice 

and approval is not feasible, the Town Manager shall not be absent or take leave more than ten (10) 

consecutive business days without prior verbal or written notice to and approval of the Mayor or designee. 

Prior to such leave, the Town Manager shall notify the Commission of who the Acting Town Manager 

will be during that leave and how the Town Manager may be reached while on leave in case of an 

emergency.

117



4

Section 7. Sick Leave.

The Town Manager shall accrue 20 business days of sick leave per calendar-year on a pro rata 

basis equally per pay period. The Town Manager shall submit leave slips for sick leave usage in accordance 

with Town policy for all other Town employees. The Town Manager shall be permitted to roll over her

current accrued sick leave balance. The carryover and payout of accrued sick leave will be governed by 

Town policy for non-union civilian employees unless such policy directly conflicts with this Agreement, 

in which case the conflicting provision of this Agreement shall control.

Section 8. Retirement Plan.

Within 14 business days of the effective date of this Agreement, the Town Manager shall elect 

either to (i) receive a 15% contribution of her base salary into an ICMA/Mission Square retirement plan 

(such contribution to be made on a pro rata basis equally per pay period) or (ii) she may choose to continue 

to participate in the Town’s Retirement Plan as codified in Chapter 2 of the Town Code, as may be amended 

from time to time. The Town Manager shall make such election in writing to the Town’s Human Resource 

Director. If no such election is made, the Town Manager shall participate in the ICMA/Mission Square 

retirement plan as set forth above.

Section 9. Health Insurance.

The Town shall provide the Town Manager and her eligible dependents with health insurance 

coverage (i.e., medical, dental and vision), at the Town’s cost, in the Town’s health insurance plans 

available to all other Town employees, retroactive to her appointment on April 9, 2024.

Section 10. Life Insurance.

The Town shall provide the Town Manager with term life insurance equal to her annual salary.

118



5

Section 11. Professional Dues and Expenses.

11.1 The Town shall pay for all customary professional dues and subscriptions necessary for the 

Town Manager’s participation in the ICMA/Mission Square, FCCMA and AICP. In addition, the Town 

Manager’s participation in other municipal and professional organizations shall be as approved in the 

Town’s annual budget.

11.2 The Town shall pay for the Town Manager’s participation in those local civic and non-

profit job-affiliated organizations that the Town Manager is authorized to participate in by the Town 

Commission, as approved in the Town’s annual budget.

11.3 The Town, through its Controller, shall pay reasonable non-personal job-related expenses 

incurred by the Town Manager as part of her duties. Such payments shall be made on a reimbursement 

basis, based upon the Town Manager’s actual receipts and expense vouchers. A budget for such 

anticipated expenditures shall be approved in the Town’s annual budget.

11.4 The Town shall provide the Town Manager with an automobile allowance of $750 per 

month, retroactive to her appointment on April 9, 2024.

Section 12. Cellular.

The Town shall provide the Town Manager with a cellular telephone or provide an allowance of

$100 per month.

Section 13. Travel.

The Town Manager is hereby approved to attend the annual FCCMA Conference or an equivalent 

conference at the Town’s expense, provided that her attendance at this Conference does not interfere with 

the performance of her duties as Town Manager. In addition, the Town shall pay for the reasonable and 

customary registration and travel expenses of the Town Manager for meetings and professional 

development activities as directed or annually budgeted by the Town Commission.

119



6

Section 14. Days.

Unless otherwise specified, any reference to days in this Agreement shall mean calendar days.

Section 15. Bonds.

The Town shall pay for the cost of any bonds for the Town Manager required by Florida Law or 

the Town Charter.

Section 16. Indemnification.

The Town shall indemnify the Town Manager against any tort, professional liability claim, or other 

legal action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring during 

the performance of the Town Manager’s duties. This provision shall not apply to acts or omissions of the 

Town Manager committed while acting outside the course and scope of her employment, committed in 

bad faith or with malicious purpose, or committed in a manner exhibiting wanton and willful disregard of 

human rights, safety, or property.

Section 17. Term.

The effective date of this Agreement shall be May 15, 2024, a date subsequent to the Town 

Commission adopting Resolution No. approving this Agreement. However, this effective 

date shall not alter the start date for her salary reflected in Section 3 or the allowance afforded by Section 

11.4 of this Agreement. The Town Manager shall serve at the pleasure of the Town Commission. Nothing 

in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right of the Town Commission to

terminate the services of the Town Manager at any time during a regular or special Town Commission 

meeting, subject to the provisions set forth in this Agreement.

Section 18. Termination.

18.1 In accordance with the Charter, the Town Manager shall serve at the pleasure of theTown 

Commission. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right of the 

Town Commission to terminate the services of the Town Manager at any time during a regular or Special 

Town Commission meeting.

120



7

18.2 In the event the Town Commission wishes to terminate the Town Manager without cause, 

the Town Manager shall return to her Town employment as Human Resources & Risk Specialist, but at 

the annual salary of $110,000.00. The Town shall not provide the Town Manager with her automobile 

allowance, cellular telephone allowance, or any other benefit or reimbursement (except that specifically 

set forth in this paragraph) beyond the date of her termination.

18.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 18.2, in the event Town Manager is terminated 

for misconduct as defined in Section 443.036(29), Florida Statutes, the Town shall have no obligation to 

provide the Town Manager with any form of continued employment with the Town or any severance pay 

or payouts for unused vacation or sick leave. Misconduct includes, but is not limited to: (i) breach of any

material term or condition of this Agreement; (ii) conviction of a felony; (iii) gross insubordination; (iv) 

willful neglect of duty; or (v) adjudicated violation of the Florida Code of Ethics for Public Officers and 

Employees, the Miami-Dade Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics, the Town Charter, or the Town’s 

Conflict of Interest Ordinance.

18.4 Upon satisfaction of contractual provisions specified in Section 18.2, upon resignation as 

provided for in Section 18.5, or inability to perform as provided for in Section 18.6, the Town shall have 

no further contractual obligations to the Town Manager. Any severance payment shall constitute stipulated

and liquidated damages and the maximum amount of financial liability for which the Town may be liable 

in the event of termination or breach of contract.

18.5 In the event that the Town Manager voluntarily resigns her position during the Term of this 

Agreement, the Town Manager shall provide the Town with 30 days’ advance written notice, unless the 

parties agree in writing to a different period of time. In the event of resignation by the Town Manager 

under this Section, the Town Manager may elect to return to her prior Town position, as set forth in Section 

18.2 of this Agreement.

121



8

18.6 If the Town Manager is unable to perform her duties as specified in Section 2 of this 

Agreement for a period of 10 consecutive days or 20 non-consecutive days during any one-year period for 

any reason other an approved Family Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) absence, the Town Commission may 

terminate this Agreement. If the Town Manager takes FMLA-approved leave and exceeds herstatutorily-

protected FMLA-approved leave in any one-year period, the Town Commission may terminate this 

Agreement. In the event of the Town Manager’s death, this Agreement shall be terminated. If this 

Agreement is terminated under this Section, the Town Manager may return to her prior position with the 

Town, as set forth pursuant to Section 18.2 of this Agreement.

Section 19. Miscellaneous Provisions.

19.1 Complete Agreement. It is understood and agreed that this document incorporates and

includes all prior negotiations, correspondence, conversations, agreements, or understandings applicable 

to the matters contained herein and that the parties agree that there are no commitments, agreement, or 

understandings concerning the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained in this document.

Accordingly, it is agreed that no deviation from the terms hereof shall be predicated upon any prior 

representations or agreements, whether oral or written.

19.2 Amendment. No modification, amendment, or alteration in the terms or conditions

contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same formality 

and with equal dignity herewith.

19.3 No Waiver. The waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by

the other shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by that party.

19.4 Severability. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held

to be unconstitutional, illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portions 

thereof, shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.

122



9

19.5 Non-Assignment. The rights and obligations herein granted are personal in nature and

cannot be transferred or assigned by the Town Manager.

19.6 Governing Law. Florida law shall govern this Agreement and any litigation which may

arise from this Agreement shall be filed and litigated in the Circuit Court in and for Miami-Dade County, 

Florida, or, if in Federal Court, in the Southern District of Florida.

19.7 Notice. Notice to either party shall be deemed given if sent by certified mail, return receipt

requested, by recognized public or private postal facilities, by hand delivery, or delivered at a Town 

Commission meeting. Notice shall be sent as follows:

For the Town: Charles W. Burkett, Mayor 
Town of Surfside
9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida 33154
(305) 861-4863 (Telephone)

With a copy to: Mark Blumstein, Esq.
Interim Town Attorney
Town of Surfside 
9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida 33154
(305) 861-4863 x 225 (Telephone)

For the Town Manager: Marisol Vargas
Interim Town Manager
Town of Surfside
9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida 33154
(305) 861-4863 (Telephone) 

Section 20. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.

BOTH THE TOWN AND THE TOWN MANAGER KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY, AND 

IRREVOCABLY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY CIVIL PROCEEDINGS 

THAT MAY BE INITIATED BY EITHER PARTY WITH RESPECT TO ANY TERM OR 

CONDITION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

123



10

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town, by signature of the Mayor, as authorized by the Town 

Commission, in accordance with Resolution No. passed on May 14, 2024, has executedthis 

Agreement the day and year first above written.

TOWN OF SURFSIDE

By:
Charles W. Burkett, Mayor

Date:  
ATTEST:

Sandra N. McCready, MMC
Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE USE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY:

Mark Blumstein, Esq.
Interim Town Attorney

TOWN MANAGER

Marisol Vargas

Date

124



 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 5B.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Approving a Resolution Creating a Community Relations Board

 

 

 

 
 

For the Town Commission to discuss and approve the attached resolution creating a
Community Relations Board.
 

During the April 9, 2024 Regular Town Commission meeting, the Town Commission directed
the Town Administration to bring back a statement of the Board's purpose and objectives. The
Town Commission expressed support for a Board whose composition and appointment would
be as follows:
 
Each member of the Town Commission to appoint one member and then those members can
appoint two other members.
 
Commissioner Vildostegui has worked with the Town Attorney on the attached resolution and
is now proposing that the five original Board members select four additional members, rather
than two, for a total of nine Board members.  The larger Board can be more representative of
different sub-groups within our wider community.

Reso Comm Relations Board - ver3.docx

125

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603685/Reso_Comm_Relations_Board_-_ver3.pdf


Page 1 of 6

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION 
OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, 
ESTABLISHING THE SURFSIDE COMMUNITY 
RELATIONS BOARD; ADOPTING THE BOARD’S 
CHARTER AND ORGANIZATIONAL 
STRUCTURE; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (the “Town”) values and prides itself on 

its community spirit; and

WHEREAS, the Town strives to be a community where residents from

different racial, ethnic, linguistic, religious, cultural, economic, and generational

groups live together in joy and harmony; and

WHEREAS, the Town recognizes that political polarization, both locally and 

nationwide, can undermine the spirit of community in the Town and can, if 

unchecked, promote strife and division among residents; and

WHEREAS, the Town is committed to ending the spread of hate, bigotry, 

and harassment based on race, color, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sex, gender, 

gender identity and expression, sexual orientation, disability, age, or any other 

protected characteristic as defined by law; and

WHEREAS, the Town has expressed and reaffirmed this important 

commitment in previous resolutions, such as Resolution No. 2021-2797

126



Page 2 of 6

(“Cultivating an Inclusive Community”) and Resolution No. 2022-2857 (“Condemn 

Anti-Semitism”); and

WHEREAS, the Town desires to establish the Surfside Community Relations 

Board (the “Board”) as a continuing committee that will foster a spirit of community 

in the Town, as further detailed in the Board’s Charter attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A”; and

WHEREAS, the Board can advise the Town Manager, the Town 

Commission, and its Boards and Committees on how to promote a spirit of 

community and on how to respond to events that might create division and strife in 

the Town; and   

WHEREAS, the Board shall serve in a fact-finding and informational 

capacity that reports to the Town Manager and Town Commission liaison; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the establishment of the Board

is in the best interest and welfare of the Town and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN 

COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals.  The above-stated recitals are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. Establishment of Board. The Town Commission hereby 

establishes the Board as a continuing committee of the Town Manager that will serve 

127



Page 3 of 6

in a fact-finding and informational capacity to the Town in accordance with the 

Board Charter attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

Section 3. Board Charter; Organization. The Town Commission hereby 

approves and adopts the Board’s Charter attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” The Charter 

may be amended by the Town Commission, from time to time, as deemed prudent 

or necessary.

Section 4. Implementation.  The Town Manager is hereby directed and 

authorized to take any and all actions deemed necessary to implement the Board and 

the purposes of this Resolution.

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective 

immediately upon adoption.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024.

Motion By: 
Second By: 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION:
Commissioner Ruben Coto
Commissioner Nelly Velasquez
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui
Vice Mayor Tina Paul
Mayor Charles W. Burkett

Charles W, Burkett, Mayor

128



Page 4 of 6

ATTEST:

Sandra McCready, MMC
Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

Mark Blumstein
Interim Town Attorney

129



Page 5 of 6

Exhibit “A”

SURFSIDE COMMUNITY RELATIONS BOARD

The Town of Surfside (“Town”) Community Relations Board (“Board”) Charter 
establishes the purposes and tasks of the Board as a fact-finding committee of the 
Town Manager, and the organizational structure of the Board.

A. Purpose. The purpose of the Board is to assist the Town in promoting a sense 
of community among residents; in addressing the causes of division and strife 
within the community; and in eliminating hate, bigotry, and harassment based 
on race, color, religion, national origin, ethnicity, sex, gender, gender identity 
and expression, sexual orientation, disability, age, or any other protected 
characteristic as defined by law.

B. Membership and Qualifications. The Board shall consist of nine (9)
members who are registered electors and reside in the Town of Surfside.  In 
selecting members for the Board, the Commission and the Board shall aim to 
appoint a group that, collectively, represents the full diversity of the Surfside 
community and that is broadly representative of the various social, racial, 
religious, linguistic, cultural, economic, and generational groups that make up 
the population of the Town.

C. Appointments. Each Town Commissioner shall appoint one member to the 
Board. The five (5) members thus appointed shall convene within three weeks 
of their appointment to select four (4) additional members. The Board shall 
serve until the March 2026 Town election or as directed by the Town 
Commission, whichever occurs first.

D. Organization. The Board shall be a fact-finding and informational committee
of the Town Manager. The Board shall meet monthly, and its meetings shall 
be open to the public.  The Board shall comply with the Florida Government 
in the Sunshine Law, with all applicable provisions of law governing public 
hearings and public notice, and with all applicable codes of ethics and conflict-
of-interest laws.  Any member who fails to attend three (3) regularly scheduled 
meetings in a twelve-month period may be removed from the Board, and the 
Town Commission shall be given notice of such vacancy.

130



Page 6 of 6

E. Tasks.  The tasks of the Community Relations Board shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following:

1. To study and to discuss the state of community relations in the Town.
2. To develop programs and activities dedicated to the improvement of 

community relations.
3. To attempt to act as a conciliator in controversies involving community 

relations.
4. To recommend to the Town Manager and to the Town Commission such 

resolutions or ordinances as will aid in carrying out the Board’s purpose.
5. To advise the Resort Tax Board and the Parks and Recreation Committee 

on how their programs and activities might better serve to improve 
community relations.

6. To enlist the support of civic and religious leaders in accomplishing the 
Board’s objectives.

F. Commission Liaison. The Town Commission shall annually appoint its 
liaison to the Board, which shall report to the Town Commission on the
Board’s activities on a regular basis.

G. Budget. The Town Commission authorizes a budget of $10,000 for the Board 
in the current fiscal year, with appropriations for future fiscal years to be 
determined by the Town Commission during its budgetary process.

131



 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 5C.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Approval of the Intergovernmental Agency Agreement with Miami-Dade
County to Perform Traffic Engineering Functions

 

 

 

 

 

For the Town Commission to review and approve.
 

Background Summary:
 
The Town of Surfside, in pursuit of enhancing traffic calming measures and pedestrian safety
within its community, embarked on a comprehensive evaluation of existing conditions through
a town-wide Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Study, completed in March of 2024. This initiative,
driven by the Town Commission and Administration, aimed to identify underlying issues and
propose effective mitigation strategies to address the evolving landscape characterized by
population growth, increased pedestrian activity, and ongoing development.
 
Recognizing the importance of updated data and periodic assessments, the Town engaged
the Corradino Group, an engineering firm to develop the study. The scope of services
encompassed various critical components, including comprehensive traffic data collection,
operational analyses, intersection capacity assessments, and community outreach initiatives.
The community outreach workshops hosted over the past year have resulted in an
overwhelming amount of community support for the implementation of traffic calming
measures and speed control efforts throughout the Town.
 
The decision to undertake the recent study was informed by the success of the previous town-
wide Traffic Study conducted in 2012, which led to significant safety enhancements such as
speed humps and traffic roundabouts. However, given the dynamic nature of the community
and transportation patterns, periodic updates were deemed necessary to accurately capture
changing conditions.
 
Town Traffic Engineering Responsibilities:
 
Building upon the findings and recommendations of the 2024 traffic study, the Town identified
the need to assume responsibilities for certain traffic engineering functions exclusively

132



pertaining to its local municipal streets. In alignment with this objective, the Town sought to
enter into an intergovernmental agency agreement with Miami-Dade County to perform these
functions, including the design, construction, and overall implementation of traffic calming
solutions. The Town Administration commenced discussions with the County in 2023 and the
County agreed to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Town for such
functions. 
 
The draft intergovernmental agreement outlines the parameters for the Town to assume traffic
engineering functions, subject to approval and coordination with Miami-Dade County. It
delineates the types of traffic calming devices that the Town may install and maintain, along
with the necessary procedures and approvals required for their implementation.
 
The agreement will further the Town's commitment to enhancing pedestrian safety and traffic
management within its jurisdiction, while also acknowledging the collaborative efforts with
Miami-Dade County to ensure a cohesive approach to traffic management. Hence, the
proposed intergovernmental agreement represents a proactive step by the Town of Surfside to
address traffic-related concerns and prioritize the safety and well-being of its residents and
visitors. 

Reso - Intergovernmental Agency Agreement

Town of Surfside Intergovenmental Agreement - Traffic Engineering Fuctions

Exhibit A - Detail Sheets

133

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2592278/Reso_-_Intergovernmental_Agency_Agmt_-_April_2024.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2592276/Town_of_Surfside_Intergovenmental_Agreement_-_Traffic_Engineering_Fuctions.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2592277/Exhibit_A_-_Detail_Sheets.pdf


Page 1 of 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING AN 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
RELATING TO TRAFFIC ENGINEERING FUNCTIONS 
ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT “A”; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County (“County”) has exclusive jurisdiction of traffic 

control and traffic engineering services; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) has completed its 2023 Townwide 

Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Study (“Study”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town seeks to assume responsibility for its traffic engineering 

functions on its municipal streets in accordance with its Study, including any additional 

engineering studies and installation of traffic calming solutions; and

WHEREAS, the Town’s Public Works Department is capable, equipped and 

qualified to perform any work necessary in this regard; and

WHEREAS, the Town is best suited to perform said functions; and

WHEREAS, the County has proposed entering into an Interlocal Agency 

Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (“Agreement”), relating to traffic engineering 

functions; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission seeks to approve the Agreement and authorize 

the Interim Town Manager to enter into the Agreement with the County relating to traffic 

engineering functions, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that this Resolution is in the best interest 

and welfare of the Town.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF

THTOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

134



Page 2 of 2

Section 1. Recitals Adopted.  Each of the above stated recitals are hereby 

adopted, confirmed and incorporated herein.

Section 2. Approval of Intergovernmental Agency Agreement.  The

Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved as of the Effective Date.

Section 3. Implementation of Contract.  The Interim Town Manager is hereby 

authorized to take any and all necessary or further action to execute and implement said

Agreement. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 

adoption and the Agreement as of the Effective Date.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 30th day of April, 2024.

Motion by ______________________________________.
Second by ______________________________________.    

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION

Commissioner Ruben Coto ______
Commissioner Nelly Velasquez
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui
Vice Mayor Tina Paul
Mayor Charles W. Burkett

Charles W. Burkett
Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra McCready, MMC
Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

Mark Blumstein
Interim Town Attorney

135



 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCY AGREEMENT 
TO PERFORM TRAFFIC ENGINEERING FUNCTIONS 

 

 THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCY AGREEMENT TO PERFORM TRAFFIC 
ENGINEERING FUNCTIONS (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this   day of________ , 
2024, by and between the TOWN OF SURFSIDE (the “Town”), a municipal corporation of the State 
of Florida, and MIAMI-DADE COUNTY (the “County”), a political subdivision of the State of 
Florida. 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 2-95 and 2-96.1 of the Miami-Dade County Code, all 
traffic control and traffic engineering services in Miami-Dade County are under the exclusive 
jurisdiction of the County; and 

WHEREAS, in 2023, the Town conducted the Townwide Traffic and Pedestrian Safety 
Study through the Corradino Group, driven by the primary objective of enhancing traffic calming 
measures and improving pedestrian safety throughout the Town, prompting the need for a 
comprehensive evaluation of existing conditions and effective mitigation strategies; and 

 WHEREAS, following the findings and recommendations of the traffic study, the Town 
desires to assume responsibilities for certain traffic engineering functions pertaining to its local 
municipal streets exclusively and has requested the County to allow it to perform the function of 
conducting any additional engineering studies as needed, and install traffic calming solutions 
throughout Town municipal streets as provided herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has the ability to plan, design, and perform construction inspection 
of such projects within its Public Works Department and has represented to the County that it is 
capable, equipped, and qualified to perform the duties and functions requested herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Town believes it is best suited to perform such functions, given the evolving 
demographic of the community and the prevalent preference for walking as the primary mode of 
transportation within the Town, which may be influenced by various cultural and religious practices 
throughout the area; and 

WHEREAS, additionally the residential neighborhoods of the Town are situated to the west 
of major County and state roads, enabling the Town to effectively manage and maintain traffic 
calming devices on municipal streets while minimizing disruptions and impact to the arterial roads 
along Collins Avenue and Harding Avenue, A1A; and 

WHEREAS, the County and the Town agree that nothing contained in this Agreement shall 
diminish or impact the rights of either entity or constitute an admission with respect to jurisdiction, 
sovereign or permitting powers, or in any other matter related to the installation, use and maintenance 

136



 

of the traffic control devices unless specifically set forth herein, including but not limited to any 
County powers under the Miami-Dade County Code, 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TOWN AND THE COUNTY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals Adopted. That the above-stated recitals are incorporated herein by reference 
and confirmed.  

Section 2.  Traffic Control Devices. The Town may install and maintain the following 
designated types of traffic calming devices, and/or signs (collectively the “Traffic Calming Devices”) 
and only on those local municipal streets operated and maintained by the Town within its boundaries, 
and not less than 250 feet from existing traffic signals, County roadways, State roadways and the 
boundaries of the Town limits; or within school zones, or adjacent to bicycle facilities or hospitals:  

a) Traffic Circles 

b) Speed Humps/Speed Tables/Cushions   

c) In-Street Pedestrian Crossing Signs 

d) Raised Intersections  

 

Section 3. Installation. Any such Traffic Calming Devices may be installed on local municipal 
streets after a traffic engineering study has been performed and signed and sealed by a Florida 
licensed professional engineer and has received written approval by the Town Manager or his/her 
designee. A copy of such traffic study must be submitted to the County Department of Transportation 
and Public Works (“DTPW”). 

Any such Traffic Calming Devices may be installed on local municipal streets only after sealed and 
signed design plans have been reviewed and received written approval by the Town, through its 
Town Manager or his/her designee. Provided that such design plans utilize the standard County 
design attached as Exhibit “A”, no additional review or approval by the County shall be required 
before installation. To the extent that design plans deviate from the standard design attached as 
Exhibit “A”, such plans shall be submitted to the County for its review and written approval before 
installation. A copy of such design plans must be submitted to the applicable Department of the 
County.  

Section 4. Decals. The Town shall attach a decal to the back of the sign panels indicating 
ownership and date of installation. 

Section 5. Standards. All Traffic Control Devices installed by the Town in accordance with this 
Agreement shall conform to the applicable requirements established by the following publications 
including latest revisions:  

137



 

a. Florida Department of Transportation’s Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge 
Construction;  

b. Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways, U.S. 
Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration  

c. Standard Highway Signs, U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 
Administration; and 

d. Miami-Dade County Public Works Manual (available from the Public Works and 
Waste Management Department, Reproduction Services, 111 NW 1st Street, Suite 
1604, Miami, FL 33128).  

e. A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, American Association of 
State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). 

f. Roundabouts: An Informational Guide, Federal Highway Administration, U.S. 
Department of Transportation. 

g. Florida Roundabout Guide, Florida Department of Transportation. 

h. Miami-Dade County Traffic Flow Modification(s)/Street Closure Procedure, Revised 
January, 2009, or any other comparative criteria available to municipalities which 
have been approved by the County, with the decision to elect one option or the other 
to be determined at the TOWN’s discretion. 

i. Florida Greenbook (Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards for Design, 
Construction and Maintenance for Streets and Highways) 

Section 6. Maintenance Responsibility. The Town assumes sole and complete responsibility 
for the maintenance of Traffic Control Devices that are installed by the Town within its boundaries, 
including the Traffic Control Devices installed by the Town prior to this Agreement. The Town shall 
be responsible for the aesthetics of all installed Traffic Control Devices (e.g. peeling, graffiti, flyers, 
stickers, etc.).  If the Town fails to maintain the Traffic Control Devices, then it shall be responsible 
for any and all costs incurred by the County to replace them or remove them. 

Section 7. Liability and Indemnification. The Town assumes sole and complete liability for 
any and all accidents and/or injuries which may, or are alleged to, occur or arise out of the installation, 
operation, or maintenance of Traffic Control Devices and hereby indemnifies to the extent allowed 
by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, and holds the County harmless from any and all claims, 
including but not limited to negligence arising out of or relating to installation, operation, or 
maintenance of the Traffic Control Devices. 

138



 

Section 8. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity. Notwithstanding any other term in this 
Agreement, nothing herein shall be deemed a waiver of the Town or the County’s immunity, 
sovereign rights, or limitations of liability as provided by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as may 
be amended from time to time.  

Section 9. Public Records. The Town shall be responsible for keeping records of any and all 
installations and repairs, and for furnishing pertinent documents as and when said records may be 
requested. The Parties shall each maintain their own respective records and documents associated 
with this Agreement in accordance with the requirements for records retention set forth in Chapter 
119, Florida Statutes 

Section 10. Headings. The headings or captions of sections or paragraphs used in this 
Agreement are for convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit their 
contents, nor are they to affect the construction of or to be taken into consideration in interpreting 
this Agreement.  

Section 11. Ambiguities. The preparation of this Agreement has been a joint effort of the 
Parties hereto and both Parties have had the benefit of consultation with legal counsel of their 
choosing prior to its execution. The resulting document shall not, solely as a matter of judicial 
construction, be construed more severely against one of the Parties than the other. 

Section 12. Entirety. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement between the Parties 
with respect to the matters addressed herein. Previous agreements and understandings of the Parties 
with respect to such matters are null, void, and of no effect.  Notwithstanding any other provision 
contained herein, no third-party beneficiaries are created with respect to any claims against the 
County by virtue of this Agreement. 

Section 13. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended, modified, or altered, and its 
material provisions may be waived, only by written instrument, and only if properly executed by all 
parties hereto.  

Section 14. Effective Date. That this Agreement shall become effective on the date first 
written above after such Agreement is fully executed by all parties hereto.  

Section 15. Termination. Either the Town or the County may, in their respective sole and 
complete discretion, terminate this Agreement, with or without cause and/or convenience of the 
terminating party, upon twenty (20) business days written notice; provided, however, that at the 
option of the County, the Town shall continue to maintain, repair, and be responsible for any Traffic 
Control Devices installed by the Town while this Agreement was in effect.  Prior to the termination 
of this Agreement, however, the Town may elect to remove any one or all Traffic Control Devices 
installed by the Town; provided the Town shall restore the roadway and area in which the Traffic 
Control Devices was located to the condition that existed before the Town’s installation. 

139



 

Section 16. Execution. This Agreement may be executed in one or more hard or electronic 
counterparts, which, when taken together, shall constitute one fully executed instrument.  

Section 17. Notice. Any notices to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 
deemed to have been given if sent by hand delivery, recognized overnight courier (e.g., Federal 
Express), or by written certified U.S. mail, with return receipt requested, addressed to the Party for 
whom it is intended, at the place specified.  The method of delivery shall be consistent among all of 
the persons listed herein. For the present, the Parties designate the following as the respective places 
for notice purposes: 

 
a. For the County: Miami-Dade Department of Transportation and Public Works, Attn: 

Director, 111 NW 1st Street, Suite 1510, Miami, FL 33128 
b. With a Copy To: Miami-Dade County Attorney’s Office, 111 NW 1st Street, Suite 

2810, Miami, FL 33128 
c. For the Town: Town of Surfside, Attn: Town Manager, 9293 Harding Avenue, 

Surfside, Florida 33154 
d. With a Copy To: Town Attorney, 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, Florida 33154 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and the County have set their hands the day and year above 

written.  
 
 
ATTEST:       MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
 
 
                                          BY:   ______________________________ 
                  COUNTY MAYOR OR DESIGNEE 
  
BY: ___________________________ 
        COUNTY DEPUTY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 

140



 

 
 
 
ATTEST:       TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
 
 
BY: ___________________________  BY: _____________________________ 
        TOWN CLERK      TOWN MANAGER 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM, AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
 
 
BY: __________________________  
       TOWN ATTORNEY  
  

141



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

STANDARD DESIGNS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

142



� 

.. 

TYPICAL 

0
1/IIL 

NOTE: TYPICAL PER FHWA ROUNDABOUT GUIDELINE, 
MINIMUM BUFFER BETWEEN BACK OF CURB 

AND FRONT OF SIDEWALK TO BE 'Z. 

� 
TYPE 'B' MEDIAN CURB 

� 
TYPl!V-� 

�--
TYPE 'F"�&GUnl!R 

See Miami Dacie County 
Publlc--
Stondard Rood 0etol« 
CUl'bln9 R 14.1 to R 14.11 

--

� 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 

... 

� 
•11

11: 

�� 

TRAPPIC ENGINEl!RING CHl!CK OFF BOX, -

-------·:z
ft

� 1'1 PW 
'ARTIIENTOFTRANSPORTATIONANDPUBUCWORKSI I I I I TRAFFIC ENGINEERING DMSION 

�CT Noc SHEET 1 Ol' 1 DATE 0£_.TION DCSIGN 

2-r-r,p. 
,.--r,p. 
,r_,,,.. 
20--,,,.. ___ ,,,,_ 

-� 

,_,,.. 
.--c-i:........,,,.. 
r--r-••·--,,.. 

CIRCLE !S0'-50'RW 

143



EXISTING R.P.M. ALONG 
THE t OF SPEED TABLE TO BE 

REPlACED WITH YELLOW 
MONO-DIRECTIONAL R.P.M. 

A 

L m .. [·
� ·.

. . .. .

. . . . 

;.. 

A 

COLORED CONCRETE PAVERS 
. . . . 

12" SOLID WHITE (TYP.) 12" CONCRETE BAND 

FLAT-TOPPED SPEED HUMP DETAIL 

22.0' 

10.0' 

SECTION A-A 

APPROVED: • DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS
REVISED: SEP 2018 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
SCALE: N.T.S. 

STANDARD DETAILS 

FLAT-TOPPED 

SPEED HUMP 
4-23

Page:81 

144



SPEED HUMP 
(SEE FLAT-TOPPED 

SPEED HUMP DETAIL 4•23) 
RIGHT OF WAY

""'\. 
_________ L _______ _ 

SIDEWALK 
----------- r------------

R10HT OF WAY_/ 

W17-1 

NOTES: 

• SPEED HUMPS SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED LESS THAN 260 FEET FROM EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNALS, COUNTY ROADWAYS. STATE ROADWAYS AND THE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY LIMITS; OR IMTHIN SCHOOL ZONES, OR ADJACENT TO BICYCLE FACILITIES OR HOSPITALS. 

• INSTALLATION OF ADVANCED WARNING SIGNS (W17-1, W18-7P). IN A SEGMENT OF MORE THAN ONE BLOCK, WILL BE LIMITED TO THE BEGINNING AND END OF 
THE SEGMENT. 

• THE STREET MUST BE A LOCAL RESIDENTIAL STREET OPERATED AND MAINTAINED BY THE CITY WITHIN ITS BOUNDARIES. 

• THI! STREET SHALL NOT HAVE MORE THAN ONE TRAFFIC LANE IN EACH DIRECTION. 

• THE STREET IS POSTED AT OR HAS A SPEED LIMIT OF 30 MPH OR LESS. 

• SPEED HUMPS IMLL NOT BE CONSIDERED WITHIN 60 FEET OF AN INTERSECTION, IN FRONT OF A DRIVEWAY, WITHIN AN INTERSECTION OR ADJACENT TO FIRE 
HYDRANTS. 

• THE STREET SHOULD NOT BE LOCATED ALONG AN EMERGENCY RESPONSE ROUTE, REGIONAL TRANSIT OR SCHOOL BUS ROUTE. 

_A_PP_RO_YE_D: ____ DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS
REVISED: SEP 2018

ENGINEER I NG DIVISION SCALE: N.T.S.
STANDARD DETAILS 

SPEED HUMP 

SIGNAGE 
4-24

Page:82 

145



J 
f 

t 

vr.-1M 

==:.!!-�-�--f===========;1
rl.lleQ:IC-

,.:,� ,. 

12"SfA8UZl!0.-oE 

CONCRETE PAVER AND BANQING DETAIL AT INIEBSECTJONS 

----·----
fllllll'&&a _ __,, 

=--::r 

?�'ili:; 1/?l:;� ftf;tf·J._:t:t7l 
,: 

@ -��cf&�vasmaa NC. 

@ 

• snu::OU>IGMII 
• CCII.OA:TAH/� 

SIZE: •f' x •t.et xef', etx ,t 
'MCICNESS: 2t 

17CONCf!&TJUNDNI 
·

leJIUIIIIIR00IIPNIH:D 

PEJAILB 

ll5Zilit 
,.ca.oR-NIDlll'ECIPICA110NS 

C,1141!PA-IIWLRSlaanl!D 
TO'IHE CIIYOf' COMl.-.e!IFOR 
-/IL-'IONSfAl.1A11011. 

2.JU00NCIIE'Tl!SHALLR001W.-.U 
IEIOEIII. 

EB 
DAVID PLUMMER & ASSOCIATES.INC. 

-

,.,-.,tv11T,11lt,_ • t l\ff • ,1a n,·11-11, • fe\\'lNO'\'C'Tti' 

··" ........ ...... , . .,_,_ .. ..... ...- ·- ,,; - ,., ""'·. ',.....,., ... • ",.....,,now "' ._ 

=:�
......,__

:; 
�� ..---t�03:�Jtl�=114-'t---llli�s@:9�J��,,� .=2/Vj '--• 

·-

8Pl!ED CUSHl0II 

I ,.., Ir I _. I _..,. 

�;�� 

� 

21 
--+ . nl 

i

t 

.. ,; .... 
FLAT-TOPPED SPEED CUSHION 

-

--•--------
DETAIL A 

-· -::.�-=-�-=--::.-.. ,,.....,.,., .... _____ 
TYPICAL Sl!C1l0N8 AND DEl'MS 

146



FOUR L£G INTfRSECTION 
4-WAY STOP 

_\ 
�� 
:!! '! 
,, ' � "' 

-

'l' � 
- I 

� 

&.L�.m' 
� 

•�.l-1.D 
�J 

',~·* 
� ' 

f � 
� � 

IIID-BLOCK CROSSWAJ.X 
WfTH WARNING SIGNING 

<--

FOUR L£G INTERSECTION 
2-WAY STOP 

IN STREET PEDESTRIAN 

CROSSING SIGNS 

City of Coral Gables 

T-INTERSEC110N 
ON[-IIAY STOP 

DRAW CHECK 

C.M. Y.S. 

SCALE DATE 

1":30" 

APPR 

� 

Y.S. 

08-29-2017 

147



R/W LINE�-----------

... 

�03 I ··· 3

:tt:B!ES. 

RAISED INJERSECTION DETAIL 
SCAI.£: 1"a20' 

� 

1. A IIJU5ED NIERSEClllN � IIISTAUATION IS AT A SGIAI. ClllllROU£D OR AI.L-WIIY 510P C0NIR0Ll£D llllERSECIOI. 

SAW aJI ElllST. 
RCW>IIAY 

AO.W:8IT 
ROMJIIAY 

L l l .t, , . ..,..r . 

k"R 

2-14 BAR--'"•l:::.,:..U 
(lYP.) 

Raised Intersection 

CllY OF CORAL GABLES 

RAISED INTERSECTION DETAIL 
SCALE: , • .JO' 

DRAW CHECK 
C.M. J.K. 

SCALE DATE 
AS NOTED 

APPR 

J.K. 

09-11-2018 

,T 

�sa: 
-.ANS FOR 
ELEVATIONS 

.T CONCRETE 

-

148



KNOW WHAT'S  BELOW
ALWAYS  CALL  811
BEFORE YOU DIG

www.callsunshine.com

SU
R

FS
ID

E 
BO

U
LE

VA
R

D
BE

AU
TI

FI
C

AT
IO

N
PR

EP
AR

ED
 F

O
R

TO
W

N
 O

F 
SU

R
FS

ID
E

BU
LB

-O
U

T 
D

ET
AI

L

EX

©

14
9



 

MEMORANDUM ITEM NO. 5D.

To: Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor and Members of the Town Commission

From: Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

Date: May 14, 2024

Subject: Nurse Enhancement Initiative for School Year 2024-2025

 

 

 

 
 

Consider Approval of MOU to continue support for Nurse at RKBBHE
 

Neighboring Municipalities have supported placement of a Nurse at RKBBHE over the past 6
years and the proposed agreement seeks to continue this initiative for another year.

Reso Approving MOU - Amend. No. 7 to MOU School Nurse Initiative 24-25

Nurse Enhancement Initiative Behavioral Health Services Summary Report and Expanded
Services Update

Nurse Amend No. 7 Municipalities 24-25 (Form Approved)

150

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2603192/Reso_Approving_MOU_-_Amend._No._7_to_MOU_School_Nurse_Initiative_24-25.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2601230/LTC_165-2024_Nurse_Enhancement_Initiative_Behavioral_Health_Services_Summary_Report_and_Expanded_Services_Update.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2601231/Nurse_Amend_No._7_Municipalities_24-25__Form_Approved_.pdf


Page 1 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING 
AMENDMENT NO. 7 TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, 
THE CITY OF MIAMI BEACH, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
TOWN OF BAY HARBOR ISLANDS, BAL HARBOUR 
VILLAGE, AND THE MIAMI BEACH CHAMBER 
EDUCATION FOUNDATION, INC. TO FUND A NURSE 
ENHANCEMENT INITIATIVE FOR SCHOOL YEAR 
2024/2025 FOR RUTH K. BROAD BAY HARBOR K-8 
CENTER; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE AMENDMENT TO THE 
MOU; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2018, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) entered into a 

Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with the City of Miami Beach, North Bay Village, the 

Town of Bay Harbor Islands and the Village of Bal Harbour (“Participating Municipalities”), and 

the Miami Beach Chamber Education Foundation, Inc. (“MBCEF”), to fund and implement the 

Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center; and

WHEREAS, the MOU provides that Participating Municipalities will provide their 

proportionate share of funds for the Nurse Enhancement Initiative; and

WHEREAS, the MOU was amended by Amendment No. 2 to the MOU, executed on 

July 9, 2019, to extend the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for FY 2019-20 and set forth the 

proportionate share of funding for Participating Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the MOU was amended by Amendment No. 3 to the MOU dated August 19, 

2020, to extend the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for FY 2020-2021 and set forth the proportionate 

share of funding for Participating Municipalities; and

151



Page 2 of 3

WHEREAS, the MOU was amended by Amendment No. 4 to the MOU dated July 21, 

2021, to extend the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for FY 2021-22 and set forth the proportionate 

share of funding for Participating Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the MOU was amended by Amendment No. 5 to the MOU dated May 10, 

2022, to extend the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for FY 2022-23 and set forth the proportionate 

share of funding for Participating Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the MOU was amended by Amendment No. 6 to the MOU dated July 11, 

2023, to extend the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for FY 2023-24 and set forth the proportionate 

share of funding for Participating Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to further amend the MOU in order to assign the 

proportionate share of funding to Participating Municipalities for FY 2024-25, requiring the Town 

to contribute $8,112.00, as set forth in Amendment No. 7 to the MOU (“Amendment”), attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that the Amendment is in the best interest and 

welfare of the Town and its residents and wishes to approve the Amendment in substantially the 

form attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals.   That the above and foregoing recitals are true and correct and are 

hereby incorporated by reference.

Section 2. Approval of Amendment to MOU; Authorization.   The Amendment 

between the Town, Participating Municipalities and MBCEF, substantially in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A”, is hereby approved.   The Town Commission authorizes the Town Manager 

152



Page 3 of 3

to execute the Amendment on behalf of the Town, together with such changes as may be approved 

by the Town Manager and Town Attorney as to form and legal sufficiency.

Section 3. Implementation.   The Town Manager is authorized to take all the action

necessary to implement the purposes of this Resolution and the Amendment.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May, 2024.

Motion By: 
Second By: 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION:
Commissioner Ruben A. Coto
Commissioner Nelly Velasquez
Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui
Vice Mayor Tina Paul
Mayor Charles W. Burkett

Charles W. Burkett, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sandra McCready, MMC
Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney

153



DocuSign Envelope ID: CD9E584E-30ED-42O9-8B66-CB7OO2081780 

MIAMI BEACH 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 

LTC# 165-2024 LETTER TO COMMISSION 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Mayor Steven Meiner and Members of the City Commission 

Rickelle Williams, Interim City Manager }tl(-t) 
DATE: May 1, 2024 

SUBJECT: Nurse Enhancement Initiative Behavioral Health Services Summary Report and 
Expanded Services Update 

The purpose of this Letter to Commission is to update the Mayor and City Commission on the 
status of our Nurse Enhancement Initiative for Behavioral Health/Mental Health youth support 
services from August 2023 through April 2024 for North Beach Elementary, Miami Beach South 
Pointe Elementary, Miami Beach Fienberg Fisher K-8, Biscayne Beach Elementary, Treasure 
Island Elementary, Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center, Miami Beach Nautilus Middle School, 
and Miami Beach Senior High School. 

Overall, 131 youth received 779 mental health support sessions in the 2023-2024 school year 
through April 19, 2024 from the Licensed Clinical Social Worker (Social Worker) in select Miami 
Beach feeder public schools. The below provides the number of sessions provided to youth at 
select Miami Beach feeder schools receiving services during the 2023-2024 school year through 
a partnership with neighboring municipalities, Borinquen Medical Centers, The Children's Trust 
and the Miami Beach Chamber Education Foundation: 

School Name 
• Miami Beach Senior High School
• North Beach Elementary
• Treasure Island Elementary
• Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center

# of youth mental health sessions 
509 
116 

39 
115 

The enhanced behavioral services provide on-site access to a licensed clinical social worker to 
provide services including, but not limited to, the following: 

o Academic Issues
o Attention Issues
o Anger Management
o Anxiety
o Attention Issues
o Disruptive Behavior
o Depression
o Stress Management
o Family Issues

154



DocuSign Envelope ID: CD9E5BA4E-30ED-429-8B66-CB7DD2081780 

Services were not provided to some Miami Beach schools through this initiative in the 2023-2024 
school year due to staffing challenges of our partners. Alternate service models were explored by 
staff to fill the open mental health professional position for the 2024-2025 school year to ensure 
services are available for all youth. 

On April 3, 2024 Resolution No. 2024-32980 was approved to expand services to underserved 
Miami Beach public schools including Miami Beach South Pointe Elementary, Miami Beach 
Fienberg Fisher K-8, Miami Beach Nautilus Middle School, and Biscayne Beach Elementary. Staff 
have engaged the Miami-Dade County Public Schools(M-DCPS) and the Miami Beach Chamber 
Education Foundation, Inc. to expand services by providing access to the Whole Child 
Telewellness services program. Anticipated services through this partnership will include but not 
be limited to the following: 

• Implementation of the whole child program to offer telewellness services to approximately 
2,753 students at select Miami Beach public schools for both physical and mental health 
care 

• Access to telewellness visits at no cost to families with provider visits covered by insurance, 
and partnerships with M-DCPS 

• Access to on demand licensed and qualified telewellness providers for delivery of 
comprehensive services for students in select Miami Beach public schools from home via 
phone and/or computer 

• Follow-up and case management support for all students in select Miami Beach schools, 
including appointment scheduling for in-person services, assistance navigating the 
healthcare system/Medicaid, coordination for ongoing wellness supports, and coordination 
with existing school supports 

• Clinical operations conducted on a platform designed specifically for collaboration with 
schools including a self-contained electronic medical record (EMR), emergency contact 
workflow, and data reporting capabilities 

• HIPAA and FERPA compliant 
• All necessary technology (iPads, headphones, etc.) 
• Full training, onboarding, and certification of school and district health office staff to operate 

services 
• Parent/Guardian sign-up (consent) materials, training, and support 
• Dedicated staff support (onsite and virtual) 

Staff from the Office of Education and Performance Initiatives will be reaching to municipal partners 
to determine interest in sustaining the Nurse Enhancement Behavioral/Mental Health Initiative in 
the 2024-2025 school year for those schools funded by neighboring municipalities. Mental health 
professionals currently providing services in select public schools may be reached directly via 
email at the below email addresses: 

Ashley Silverio 
Julia Egbers 

Asilyerio@borinquenhealth.org 
Jeabers@borinquenhealth_ora 

This initiative supports our strategic priority to be known for educational (PreK-12) excellence. If 
you have any questions, please feel free to contact me or Dr. Leslie Rosenfeld, Chief Education 
and Performance Officer. 

JDG/LDR 

155



AMENDMENT NO. 7 
TO 

THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
AMONG 

THE CITY OF MIAMI BEACH, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, THE TOWN OF BAY HARBOR 
ISLANDS, THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, BAL HARBOUR VILLAGE, AND 

THE MIAMI BEACH CHAMBER EDUCATION FOUNDATION, INC. 
TO 

IMPLEMENT A NURSE ENHANCEMENT INITIATIVE FOR SCHOOL YEAR 2024-2025 

Amendment No. 7 ("Amendment") is made and entered into this day of 
, 2024, by and among the City of Miami Beach, Florida("CMB"), a municipal 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, having its principal place 
of business at 1700 Convention Center Drive, Miami Beach, Florida 33139; North Bay Village 
("NBV"), a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, 
having its principal place of business at 1666 John F. Kennedy Causeway, #3, North Bay Village, 
Florida 33141; the Town of Bay Harbor Islands ("TBHI"), a municipal corporation organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, having its principal place of business at 9665 
Bay Harbor Terrace, Bay Harbor Islands, Florida 33154; the Town of Surfside ("TS"), a 
municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida, having its 
principal place of business at 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, Florida 33154; Bal Harbour 
Village ("BHV"), a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Florida, having its principal place of business at 655 96" Street, Bal Harbour, Florida 33154; and 
the Miami Beach Chamber Education Foundation, Inc. ("MBCEF"), a Florida not-for-profit 
corporation, having its principal place of business at 100 16 Street, Suite 6, Miami Beach, Florida 
33139 (collectively, the "Parties") to amend the Memorandum of Understanding entered into on 
May 17, 2018 ("MOU), as amended by Amendments No. 1 through No. 6, as follows: 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Parties have determined that a program to provide healthcare services to 
students attending underserviced public schools is in the best interests of the health and public 
welfare of the City of Miami Beach, North Bay Village, the Town of Bay Harbor Islands, the Town 
of Surfside, and Bal Harbour Village (the "Participating Municipalities"); and 

WHEREAS, following the Parties' determination that students at Miami Beach North 
Beach Elementary, Treasure Island Elementary, and Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center (the 
"Participating Schools") did not have full-time on-site healthcare services and were, thus, 
underserved as compared to other public schools in the feeder pattern that falls within the City of 
Miami Beach, the Parties entered into a Memorandum of Understanding on August 19, 2013 for 
a Nurse Initiative, and another Memorandum of Understanding on April 23, 2014, to provide 
healthcare services to the Participating Schools during the 2013/2014 and the 2014/2015 School 
Years; and 

WHEREAS, due to the success of Nurse Initiatives during the 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 
School Years, the Parties implemented an enhanced nurse initiative ("Nurse Enhancement 
Initiative") for the 2015/2016, 2016/2017, and the 2017/2018 School Years for the Participating 
Schools because the basic healthcare services previously funded in the Nurse Initiative by the 
Participating Municipalities, the MBCEF, and the Children's Trust ("TCT"), were provided by TCT 
via the new School Health Programs; and 

Page 1 of9 

156



WHEREAS, on May 17, 2018, CMB, NBV, TBHI, TS, BHV, and MBCEF executed the 
MOU for the continuation of the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the Participating Schools for the 
2018-2019 School Year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed Amendment No. 1 to the MOU, dated December 24, 
2018, adding an additional day of service at Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center; and 

WHEREAS, on September 11, 2019, the Mayor and City Commission adopted Resolution 
No. 2019-30956, approving Amendment No. 2 to the MOU and approving funding of CMB's 
contribution for each subsequent School Year, on a recurring basis, subject to funding approval 
during CMB's budgetary process and provided that CMB's contribution amount does not exceed 
$15,400.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed Amendment No. 2 to the MOU, dated September 19, 
2019, extending the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the Participating Schools for the 2019-20 
School Year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed Amendment No. 3 to the MOU, dated August 19, 2020, 
extending the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the Participating Schools for the 2020-21 School 
Year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed Amendment No. 4 to the MOU, dated July 21, 2021, 
extending the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the Participating Schools for the 2021-22 School 
Year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed Amendment No. 5 to the MOU, dated July 26, 2022, 
extending the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the Participating Schools for the 2022-23 School 
Year; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties executed Amendment No. 6 to the MOU, dated July 28, 2023, 
extending the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the Participating Schools for the 2023-24 School 
Year; and 

WHEREAS, The MOU and Amendments No. 1 through No. 6 to the MOU shall be 
collectively referred to herein as the "MOU"; and 

WHEREAS, due to the success of the Nurse Enhancement Initiative services, the Parties 
wish to provide the Nurse Enhancement Initiative for the 2024-2025 School Year; and 

WHEREAS, a Nurse Enhancement Initiative should be established at the Participating 
Schools for School Year 2024-2025 as herein provided and pursuant to a separate agreement 
between MBCEF and TCT; and 

WHEREAS, MBCEF shall provide funding to TCT for the 2024-2025 Nurse Enhancement 
Initiative in the amount of $7,000.00. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual conditions and promises contained 
herein, the Parties agree to amend the MOU as follows: 

Page 2 of9 

157



1. ABOVE RECITALS. 

The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated as part of this 
Amendment. 

2. MODIFICATIONS. 

The MOU is hereby amended (deleted items struck through and inserted items underlined) 
as follows: 

Paragraph 3 of the MOU is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

3. On or before October 31, 2024, the Participating Municipalities shall provide their 
proportionate share of the funds for the 2024-2025 Nurse Enhancement Initiative to 
MBCEF, subject to budget approval by the Participating Municipalities, which funds 
MBCEF shall hold in escrow pending the execution of its agreement with TCT, 
referenced in paragraph 1 of the MOU. The Participating Municipalities' proportionate 
share of funding for the 2024-2025 School Year shall be paid by October 31, 2024, in 
the following amounts for 44 weeks, from October 1, 2024 to_June 5 2025 and August 
1,2025 to September 30, 2025: 

) 
ii) 
iii) 

iv) 

v) 

CMB _shall provide funding in the amount of $15,400; 
NBy shall provide funding in the amount of $6,600; 
TBHI shall provide funding in the amount 0f $8,112 for 2 days of service at 
Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center: 
TS shall provide funding in the amount 0f $8,112 for 2 days of service at 
Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center: and 
BHV shall provide funding in the amount of $8, 112 for 2 days of service at 
Ruth K. Broad Bay Harbor K-8 Center. 

4. RATIFICATION. 
Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the MOU shall remain in 
full force and effect. In the event there is a conflict between the provisions of this 
Amendment and the MOU, the provisions of this Amendment shall govern. 

{THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

Page 3 of9 

158



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed by their respective and duly 
authorized officers the day and year first above written. 

ATTEST: CITY OF MIAMI BEACH, FLORIDA, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Florida 

By:----------- 
Rafael E. Granado, City Clerk 

By:------------- 
Alina T. Hudak, City Manager 

Date: ---------- 

APPROVED AS TO 
FORM & LANGUAGE 
& FOR EXECUTION 

if@i. cilskn 
f@wk a " 

Page 4 of9 

=======================
Rickelle Williams, Interim City Manager 

159



ATTEST: NORTH BAY VILLAGE, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Florida 

pf, By: ------------ 

Village Clerk Village Manager 

Date: -------- 

Approved as to Form and Language 
and for Execution 

Page 5 of9 

160



ATTEST: TOWN OF BAY HARBOR ISLANDS, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Florida 

[f., By: -------------- 

Town Clerk Mayor/Town Manager 

Date: -------- 

Approved as to Form and Language 
and for Execution 

By: _ 

Page 6 of9 

161



ATTEST: TOWN OF SURFSIDE, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Florida 

pf, 
Town Clerk 

By: 
Mayor/Town Manager 

Date: --------- 

Approved as to form and Language 
and Legal sufficiency 

Page 7 of9 

162



ATTEST: BAL HARBOUR VILLAGE, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Florida 

[;' 
Village Clerk 

By: 
MayorNillage Manager 

Date: --------- 

Approved as to form and Language 
and Legal sufficiency 

Page 8 of9 

163



ATTEST: MIAMI BEACH CHAMBER EDUCATION 
FOUNDATION, INC., a Florida not-for-profit 
corporation 

[/. By: ------------- 

Date: -------- 

Page 9 of9 

164



 
 

 
 

 
 

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

May 14, 2024 
 

I. TOWN DEPARTMENTS 
 
 

Building Department 
 
A. Building Department permit and inspection numbers as of April 30, 2024, are as 

follows: 
 Building Permits issued – 135 
 Inspections performed – 232 
 Lien search – 15 
 TCOs/COs/CCs issued – 3 

 
           Code Compliance Division 

 
A. As of April 30, 2024, the total number of open cases being managed is 208. Of 

these cases, 106 are actively working towards compliance; five cases are on-hold; 11 
cases are in the Special Master hearing queue; 16 cases are in post-hearing status; 20 
code cases have been issued liens and remain unpaid; 50 code cases have service liens 
and remain unpaid. All properties with unpaid liens are sent reminder letters twice a year.  

 
B. The Code Compliance staff has conducted approximately 172 inspections from 

March 27, 2024, to April 29, 2024.  
 
C. The Division presented 11 cases to the Code Compliance Special Master 

Hearing on April 17, 2024.  
 
D. Collected Civil Penalty Fines – Unresolved cases accrue fines until the code 

violation is resolved. After the violation is corrected, the property owner is notified to remit 
the fine amount due, reach a settlement agreement with the Town, or request a Mitigation 
of Fines Hearing.  

The following is a summary by fiscal year of the fine amounts collected by the Town: 

 FY24: As of April 30, 2024, 55 cases have paid/settled for a total monetary 
collection of $73,284.00. 

165



                                                               Town Manager’s Report for May 2024                           Page | 2 
 

 

 FY23: As of September 30, 2023, 100 cases paid/settled for a total 
monetary collection of $ $90,417.61. 
 

E. The Code Compliance Division has assisted the Finance Department by 
conducting 16 Code lien searches for the month of April 2024. 

 
F. The Code Compliance Division continues to assist the Town Clerk’s Office with 

public records requests.  
 

Community Services/Tourism & Public Communications Department 
 
A. Freebee Launch in Surfside – To help promote the launch of Freebee 

ridesharing in Surfside, the Tourism and Communications team worked with the Freebee 
team to develop visual assets that could be posted across Town channels. The launch 
information was posted on the Town website via banner, the digital sign, Nextdoor, 
Facebook, Instagram as well as text message. Large flyers have also been posted at the 
Publix community billboard.  
 

B. Celebrating Earth Day, Plastic Fishing Festival – The Tourist Board 
partnered with resident activist Rodrigo Butori for the 2024 Earth Day Plastic Fishing 
Festival on April 21. The event was a great success with hundreds of activists and 
participants coming out to take part in the creative endeavor in the name of conservation. 
The Team also supported the Parks & Recreation Earth Day Fair and bird release. 
 

C. Block Party Season Close – The busy season of spring events continues for 
the Tourism team with the continuation of the Music on the Beach ‘Steel Drums’ taking 
place this month on May 12. The Town’s two block party series: Surfstreet Saturdays and 
Third Thursdays, will both end this month with Latin Night (May 4) and Health & Wellness 
(May 16) themes respectively. 

 
D. Surfside Remembrance Event, 98 Points of Light Publication – Tourism 

and Communications Director reached out to vendor Diamonette to solicit an estimate for 
the 2024 Remembrance event footprint. The Diamonette team is standing by for 
additional direction from the Town or Memorial Committee in case any changes are 
needed. Additionally, the team is working on the special “98 Points of Light” publication 
which includes write ups for the victims of the collapse submitted by their direct relatives. 

 
 Human Resources 

 
Human Resources continues to provide support and assistance to the Town 
Administration, departments and staff in relation to a variety of items/services to include: 

166



                                                               Town Manager’s Report for May 2024                           Page | 3 
 

 

A. AFSCME – AFSCME elections were held on April 11, 2024. The tabulation of 
the ballots reported that 45 of 50 eligible members participated. There were 40 YES votes, 
4 NO votes and 1 challenged vote. AFSCME Florida Council prevailed in the election. 

  
B. Positions Filled – Chief of Police, Assistant Chief of Police, Police Captain, 

Executive Assistant to Town Attorney, Capital Improvement Projects Director, Deputy 
Clerk, and Communications Operator. 
 

C. Risk Management – Submitted liability related claims and responded to 
adjuster questions. Attended a training for municipal and law enforcement agencies by 
the United States Department of Justice and the City of Miami Beach on the Americans 
with Disability Act (ADA) rules for employment held on April 18, 2024. 

 
D. Background Investigations – Coordinated and conducted background 

investigations, level 2 screening and FDLE reporting, pre-employment physicals, and 
psychological evaluations when applicable. Facilitated the employment orientation for 
new hires. 
 

E. Safety and Wellness Initiatives – Provided staff with information regarding 
the Town’s Employee Assistance Program, weekly webinars and classes for mental 
health support, nutrition, fitness, support groups, community health initiatives 
and exercise classes. 

 
Finance Department 

 
Monthly Budget to Actual Summary as of March 31, 2024 – Attachment “A” 

 Parks and Recreation Department 
 
A. Facilities/Hours of operation – Parks and Recreation continues to assist in 

the oversight of construction of 96th Street Park. P&R oversees the following facilities: 
The Community Center/Aquatic Facility, Tennis Center, the Beach Lifeguard Tower, 
Beach Chair Service, Hawthorne Tot Lot, and the Dog Park. The Tennis Center is now 
operated through reservations only. Hours for the pickleball programming are in place. 
Hours have been adjusted to maximize tennis and pickleball hours. The pool continues 
to operate with lap swimming registrations during all hours of operation. Pool hours 
continue to be adjusted month to month to maximize daylight hours. Pool hours are from 
7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. for the month of April and the Lifeguard Tower from 9:00 a.m. to 
5:00 p.m. 

 

167



                                                               Town Manager’s Report for May 2024                           Page | 4 
 

 

B. YMCA After School Programming – After school is run weekly from 1:50 
p.m. to 6:00 p.m. at the Community Center. Additionally, the Kids Day Off Program 
continues to run successfully with numbers increasing for each program day. 

 
C. YMCA Spring Camp – Spring Camp ran successfully from Monday, March 

25 through Friday, March 29. The participants enjoyed a curriculum filled with outdoor 
activities, arts and crafts, and other fun and interactive activities.  

 
D. Spring Programming – Registration for the Spring mini session is underway, 

and programs begun the week of April 29, 2024.  
 

E. Events – Our Annual Splash into Spring Egg Hunt was held Sunday, March 
10 at the Community Center. We had a great turnout with over 200 participants, and water 
activities, and prize baskets were provided. The 42nd Annual Baynanza Biscayne Bay 
Cleanup Day took place on Saturday, April 13, from 9 a.m. to 12 p.m.  April is Earth Day 
month and our Resource Fair was Sunday, April 21. 

 
F. Senior Trips & Brunches – The Senior Brunch on Friday, March 15 featured 

a St. Patrick’s Day theme with over 35 seniors, and we had some great rounds of bingo. 
The Brunch for April took place Friday, April 12 from 11 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. Additionally, the 
Senior Trip for April took place on April 24 with a field trip at the Gold Coast Railroad 
Museum. 

 
G. Beach Chair Service – Beach Chair Service continues to be very popular with 

Surfside residents. The hours of operation for March are 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. Beach 
Time Max at this time will adjust on a day-to-day basis and as needed if more than 2 
chairs per family can be provided. The service continues to operate as scheduled. The 
new chairs are now in operation. 

 
H. Miscellaneous items – Artificial turf was installed around all trees inside the 

Hawthorne Tot Lot. The turf will increase the safety of the park as it hides all the exposed 
roots from the trees. The noise cones have been installed on the new AC units at the 
Community Center. Mile Markers on the walking path and hard pack have been replaced 
and updated with a new design.  
 

      Planning Department 
 
Development Application Process (2012 – Present) – Attachment “B” 
 
 
 

168



                                                               Town Manager’s Report for May 2024                           Page | 5 
 

 

Police Department 
 

A. Police Department Statistics (April 1 – April 23, 2024) 
 

o Traffic Citations – 375 
o Parking Citations – 1,199 
o Arrests – 7 
o Dispatch Events – 957 
o Incident/Crime Reports – 40 

 
B. National Police Appreciation Week 

 
May is the month where the Nation celebrates Memorial Day and National Police 
Appreciation Week. The National Police Appreciation Week is celebrated annually and 
will take place this year from May 13th to May 18th, 2024. National Police Appreciation 
Week is a collaborative effort of many organizations dedicated to honoring America’s law 
enforcement community. 
 
In 1962, President John F. Kennedy signed a proclamation which designated May 15th 
as Peace Officers Memorial Day and the week in which that date falls as Police Week. 
Tens of thousands of law enforcement officers from around the world traditionally 
converge on Washington, D.C.  to participate in several planned events which honor 
those that have paid the ultimate sacrifice. The Memorial Service began in 1982 as a 
gathering in Senate Park of approximately 120 survivors and supporters of law 
enforcement. Decades later, the event, more commonly known as National Police Week, 
has grown to a series of events which attracts thousands of survivors and law 
enforcement officers to our Nation's Capital each year. Locally there are several events 
to honor the men and women of law enforcement.  
 
The Police Department personnel will be honored by the Town and Command Staff for 
their exemplary service and dedication to the law enforcement profession during National 
Police Appreciation Week.  
 

C. Police Events/Community Outreach   
 

o The 43rd Annual Miami-Dade Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Ceremony is May 
2, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. at Tropical Park. Chief Enrique Doce and Assistant Chief Wayne 
Holbrook will attend this event. 

o The SurfStreet Saturdays block party is May 4, 2024 from 6:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. on 
93rd Street between Collins and Harding Avenue. The Police Department will assist 
the Tourist Board with traffic control, street closures and pedestrian safety from 1:00 
p.m. to 10:00 p.m.  

169



                                                               Town Manager’s Report for May 2024                           Page | 6 
 

 

o The Surfside Farmers Market will be located at the 96th Street Beach Entrance and 
the Hard Pack from 9:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. The Police Department will assist with traffic 
control during set up and breakdown, security during the event, and ensuring 
pedestrian safety from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on the following dates: 

• May 5, 2024  
• May 12, 2024 
• May 26, 2024  

o The Surfside Police Department will host three community blood drives from 10:00 
a.m. – 5:00 p.m. on the following dates and locations: 

• May 5, 2024 -Town Hall municipal parking lot 
• May 11, 2024 - 94th Street municipal parking lot 
• May 29, 2024 - Town Hall municipal parking lot 

o Arley Flaherty will be sworn in as the Police Department’s new Captain on May 6, 
2024 in the Town Manager’s Office.  

o The Police Department is hosting a Meet and Greet with the Community and 
Command Staff on May 8, 2024 from 5:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. in the Commission 
Chambers. 

o Officer Donoso will proudly represent the Surfside Police Department as a member of 
a multijurisdictional Honor Guard Team on May 10, 2024 for the graduation ceremony 
for Criminal Justice students from St. Thomas University.  

o Music on the Beach, hosted by the Tourist Board, is May 12, 2024 from 2:00 p.m. to 
4:00 p.m. at 9300 Collins Avenue (on the beach). The Police Department will assist 
with traffic control during set up and breakdown, security during the event, and ensure 
pedestrian safety. 

o The Town of Surfside’s Third Thursday event is May 16, 2024 from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 
p.m. in the 200 block of 93rd Street.  The Police Department will assist with traffic 
control during set up and breakdown, security during the event, and ensuring 
pedestrian safety from 1:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

o Community Service Aides Felix Fermin, Donald Laurent and Henry Popoteur will 
attend a Police Service Aide Foundations course from May 20th to June 6th, 2024 at 
Broward College. 

o The Grand Opening of the Miami-Dade College North Campus School of Justice will 
be May 21, 2024 at 9:00 a.m. Chief Enrique Doce, Assistant Chief Wayne Holbrook 
and Captain Arley Flaherty will attend this event. 

o The inauguration (ribbon cutting) of the new Civic Center/Police Headquarter in the 
Town of Golden Beach will be May 23, 2024 from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Chief Enrique 
Doce, Assistant Chief Wayne Holbrook and Captain Arley Flaherty will attend this 
event. 

o The Parks and Recreation Department will host their annual Memorial Day Ceremony 
on May 27, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. at Veterans Park. Chief Enrique Doce, Assistant Chief 
Wayne Holbrook and Captain Arley Flaherty will attend this event. Members of the 
Police Department’s Honor Guard Team will participate in the ceremony. 

170



171



Agenda  Item # Page 1 of 3

ACTUAL 
ANNUAL 
BUDGET

%    BUDGET

REVENUE 18,348,228$         $20,587,470 89%

EXPENDITURES 11,361,116           $20,587,470 55%
Net Change in Fund Balance 6,987,112$           

18,071,829           A
25,058,941$         B

REVENUE 3,389,199$           $6,806,630 50%
EXPENDITURES 2,930,252 $6,806,630 43%
Net Change in Fund Balance 458,947$              

7,231,674 C
7,690,621$           D

REVENUE -$  $55,308 0%
EXPENDITURES 9,435$  $55,308 17%
Net Change in Fund Balance (9,435)$  

125,863
116,428$              

REVENUE 85,966$  $338,126 25%

EXPENDITURES 262,675$              $338,126 78%
(176,709)$             
567,333
390,624$              

818,879$              $1,323,037 62%
875,251 $1,323,037 66%
(56,372)$  

2,963,482
2,907,110$           

REVENUE 2,974,844$           $15,994,344 19%
EXPENDITURES 7,927,098             $15,994,344 50%
Net Change in Fund Balance (4,952,254)$          

8,349,476
3,397,222$           

NOTES:

A

B

C

D

Includes $9,471,791 committed for operations & maintenance, hurricane/natural disaster, budget stabilization, and capital. The balance of
$15,587,150 is unassigned fund balance (reserves).

Includes $985,816 committed for hurricane/natural disaster, budget stabilization, and capital. The balance of $6,704,805 is unassigned fund
balance (reserves).

The total fund balance of $7,231,674 includes $849,846 committed for hurricane/natural disaster, budget stabilization, and capital. The balance
of $6,381,828 is unassigned fund balance (reserves).

1) Many revenues for March 2024 are received in subsequent months (timing difference) and are recorded on a cash basis in the month received. 

Fund Balance-March 31, 2024 (Reserves)

REVENUE
EXPENDITURES

Fund Balance-September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

Fund Balance-September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

Net Change in Fund Balance

BUILDING FUND - 150

Fund Balance-September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

Fund Balance-September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

Fund Balance-September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)

TOURIST RESORT FUND - 102

GENERAL FUND - 001

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

POLICE FORFEITURE FUND - 105

2) Expenditures include payments and encumbrances. An encumbrance is a reservation of a budget appropriation to ensure that there is sufficient
funding available to pay for a specific obligation.

Fund Balance-March 31, 2024 (Reserves)

TRANSPORTATION SURTAX FUND - 107

Fund Balance-March 31, 2024 (Reserves)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance-March 31, 2024 (Reserves)

As of MARCH 31, 2024

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA
MONTHLY BUDGET TO ACTUAL SUMMARY

FISCAL YEAR 2024

42% OF YEAR EXPIRED (BENCHMARK)

Fund Balance-September 30, 2023 (Unaudited)
Fund Balance-March 31, 2024 (Reserves)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - 301

5/14/2024

The total fund balance of $18,071,829 includes $8,721,494 committed for operations & maintenance, hurricane/natural disaster, budget
stabilization and capital. The balance of $9,350,335 is unassigned fund balance (reserves).

Fund Balance-March 31, 2024 (Reserves)

Attachment "A" 

172



173



Page  3 of 3

9/30/2020 9/30/2021 9/30/2022 9/30/2023 3/31/2024 CAGR (a)

18,286,748$       21,091,150$       17,599,304$       18,071,829$       25,058,941$       ‐0.4%

2,109,658           4,264,457           6,766,124           7,231,674           7,690,621           50.8%

168,289               221,034               176,457               125,863               116,428               ‐9.2%

442,856               569,453               625,174               567,333               390,624               8.6%

1,991,388           1,904,548           3,079,893           2,963,482           2,907,110           14.2%

4,899,128           5,894,823           12,354,395         8,349,476           3,397,222           19.4%

(1,733,610)          (1,389,877)          (491,258)             (350,162)             313,121               70.4%

1,293,993           1,657,883           2,284,812           3,239,589           11,836,406         35.8%

219,615               (271,836)             (18,214)                (56,952)                (141,910)             ‐163.8%

3,205,050           3,581,622           3,447,087           3,123,948           3,181,762           ‐0.9%

825,468               1,091,020           1,349,961           1,313,289           1,214,721           16.7%

31,708,583$       38,614,277$       47,173,735$       44,579,369$       55,965,045$       12.0%

Town of Surfside

Net Funds Historical Balances 

Period 2020 ‐ March 2024

FUND

Water & Sewer

Capital Projects

Police Forfeiture

Transportation Surtax

General

Tourist Resort 

Building 

Total

Stormwater

Solid Waste

Municipal Parking

Fleet Management

(a) ‐ CAGR stands for Compound Average Growth Rate, and is a useful measure of growth over multiple time periods.  It 

represents the growth rate of a Fund Balance from the initial time value to the ending balance if you assume that the fund 

has been compounding over a time period. Time period presented 9/30/2020 to 9/30/2023.

174



La
st

 u
pd

at
ed

 o
n 

1/
30

/2
02

4

Al
lo

w
ed

Ap
pr

ov
ed

Re
qu

es
te

d 
Re

ce
iv

ed
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
N

o.
 

St
at

us

O
rig

in
al

 su
bm

itt
al

: 7
/1

3/
20

12
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Si

te
 p

la
n 

am
en

dm
en

t: 
4/

16
/1

6 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
11

 C
ol

lin
s A

ve
nu

e 

Su
rf

 C
lu

b 
- r

es
to

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

fa
m

ou
s s

ur
f c

lu
b 

hi
st

or
ic

 st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
fo

r t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 
ne

w
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

DR
G 

- 7
/3

1/
20

12
, 8

/2
3/

12
, s

ite
 p

la
n 

am
en

dm
en

t: 
5/

16
/1

6,
 8

/4
/1

6,
 3

/9
/1

7,
 5

/1
1/

17
P&

Z 
- O

rig
in

al
 si

te
 p

la
n:

 9
/2

7/
12

, s
ite

 p
la

n 
am

en
dm

en
t: 

8/
31

/1
7

TC
 - 

O
rig

in
al

 si
te

 p
la

n:
 1

0/
15

/1
2,

 si
te

 p
la

n 
am

en
dm

en
t: 

10
/1

0/
17

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Ex

t -
   

  

76
2 

un
its

 
25

7 
un

its
 

N
on

e
N

on
e

13
-7

27
Is

su
ed

 

Fo
rt

 P
ar

tn
er

s h
as

 in
di

ca
te

d 
a 

de
sir

e 
to

 o
bt

ai
n 

a 
fin

al
 C

O
 a

nd
 

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
.  

A 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
w

as
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 a
nd

 c
om

m
en

ts
 w

er
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

To
w

n 
Pl

an
ne

r o
n 

N
ov

em
be

r 5
, 2

02
1.

  O
nc

e 
th

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

a 
fin

al
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

 A
w

ai
tin

g 
CO

7/
20

/2
01

2
   

   
   

  
94

50
 C

ol
lin

s A
ve

Th
e 

Sh
ul

 - 
N

ew
 m

ul
tiu

se
 g

la
ss

 a
tr

iu
m

 a
nd

 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

le
ar

ni
ng

 c
en

te
r (

3 
st

or
ie

s)

DR
G 

- 2
/1

1/
13

, 3
/2

7/
13

, 7
/9

/1
3

P&
Z 

- 2
/2

7/
14

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

TC
 - 

10
/2

8/
14

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Ex

t -

N
on

e
N

on
e

14
-5

09
Is

su
ed

 

W
or

k 
is 

w
el

l u
nd

er
w

ay
 a

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 in

 th
re

e 
ph

as
es

:  
Ph

as
e 

I i
s 

th
e 

ne
w

 sc
ho

ol
 w

hi
ch

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
op

er
at

in
g 

 w
ith

 a
 T

CO
 a

s P
ha

se
 I.

  P
ha

se
 II

 is
 th

e 
m

ul
ti-

us
e 

gl
as

s 
at

riu
m

.  
Ph

as
e 

III
 is

 th
e 

re
m

od
el

 o
f t

he
 o

ld
 se

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g.

 

8/
12

/2
01

5 
12

/2
3/

20
  9

/2
0/

23
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t  

   
   

   
  

91
33

 C
ol

lin
s A

ve
 &

 9
14

9 
Co

lli
ns

 A
ve

Su
rf

 C
lu

b 
II 

- R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f p
ro

pe
rt

y 
w

ith
 a

 m
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 re
no

va
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
hi

st
or

ic
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e.
   

Re
du

ct
io

n 
of

 d
w

el
lin

g 
un

its
 a

nd
 h

ot
el

 ro
om

s.
 

Re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 e
xp

an
d 

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 
ba

lc
on

y 
de

si
gn

. S
ite

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t s

ub
m

itt
ed

 9
/2

0/
20

23
 

to
 re

m
ov

e 
ho

te
l e

le
m

en
t a

nd
 e

xp
an

d 
re

st
au

ra
nt

.  
H

is
to

ric
 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
ov

ed
 1

00
 fe

et
 fo

r c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 
ga

ra
ge

 n
ow

 m
ov

ed
 b

ac
k 

to
 it

s 
or

ig
in

al
 lo

ca
tio

n.

DR
G 

- 9
/4

/1
5,

 3
/9

/1
7,

 9
/1

7/
17

, 2
/9

/2
1

P&
Z 

- 1
2/

7/
17

, 2
/1

1/
21

, 4
/2

9/
21

TC
 - 

2/
13

/2
01

8,
 4

/1
3/

21
,  

6/
8/

21
 S

ch
ed

ul
ed

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Ex

t -
 S

ite
 P

la
n 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 T
C 

on
 7

/2
8 

TC
 M

ee
tin

g.
 A

pp
lic

an
t 

re
qu

es
te

d 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 si

te
 p

la
n 

du
e 

to
 F

L 
De

cl
ar

at
io

n 
of

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y.

  A
dd

iti
on

al
 

Co
vi

d 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

- N
ew

 P
er

m
it 

Du
e 

Da
te

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
6,

 2
02

1 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 S
ite

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t -

  P
&

Z 
N

ov
em

be
r 3

0t
h,

 2
02

3 
w

/ D
RG

 1
1/

17
/2

3 
 T

C 
- 1

/9
/2

02
3 

Re
so

 2
4-

Z-
32

64

19
9 

un
its

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t  

23
 a

pa
rt

m
en

ts
, 0

 h
ot

el
 

ro
om

s a
nd

 7
 c

ar
et

ak
er

 
qu

ar
te

rs

N
on

e
N

on
e

20
-5

36
 P

er
m

it 
Is

su
ed

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 1

2 
st

or
y 

co
nd

om
in

iu
m

 is
 fu

lly
 u

nd
er

w
ay

:  
Co

re
 sh

el
l b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
23

.  
N

ow
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
cu

st
om

 in
te

rio
r c

om
pl

et
io

ns
 o

f u
ni

ts
 a

nd
 c

om
m

on
 a

re
as

.

O
rig

in
al

 su
bm

itt
al

: 2
/1

1/
20

16
 

Re
vi

se
d 

su
bm

itt
al

: 5
/3

1/
18

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
93

80
, 9

37
2,

 9
36

4,
 9

34
8,

 9
34

0,
 

93
22

, 9
31

6 
&

 9
30

0 
Co

lli
ns

 A
ve

 
(s

ee
 P

ag
e 

2)

93
00

 C
ol

lin
s A

ve
 - 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 o

f a
ll 

ex
ist

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 3
-s

to
ry

  
bu

ild
in

g 

DR
G 

- O
rig

in
al

 su
bm

itt
al

: 3
/1

0/
16

, 4
/2

7/
16

 R
ev

ise
d 

su
bm

itt
al

: 6
/2

7/
18

, 8
/2

8/
18

, 
11

/1
/1

8 
   

   
   

  P
&

Z 
- O

rig
in

al
 a

pp
ro

va
l: 

7/
18

/1
6,

 R
ev

ise
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

: 1
1/

29
/1

8 
   

   
   

   
   

TC
 - 

O
rig

in
al

 a
pp

ro
va

l: 
11

/1
0/

16
, A

pp
ro

ve
d2

/2
6/

19
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Si

te
 P

la
n 

Ex
t -

 R
eq

ue
st

 su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 e

xt
en

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 d

ue
 to

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

de
cl

ar
at

io
n 

(H
ur

r. 
Do

ria
n)

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 C

O
VI

D 
an

d 
TS

 E
lsa

 e
xt

en
sio

ns
 - 

 P
er

m
it 

Du
e 

Da
te

 2
/4

/2
4.

 
N

ew
 R

eq
ue

st
 su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 d
ue

 to
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
de

cl
ar

at
io

ns
 H

ur
ric

an
e 

Ia
n 

an
d 

Su
bt

ro
pi

ca
l S

to
rm

 N
ic

ol
e)

 - 
N

ew
 P

er
m

it 
Du

e 
Da

te
 to

 5
/2

8/
25

25
0 

un
its

 
 R

eq
ue

st
 is

 fo
r 2

05
 u

ni
ts

  
N

on
e

N
on

e
21

-1
41

2B
C

Fo
un

da
tio

n-
O

nl
y 

Pe
rm

it 
re

ad
y 

to
 is

su
e 

SU
BS

EQ
U

EN
TL

Y 
AB

AN
DO

N
ED

 B
Y 

AP
PL

IC
AN

T.

Fo
un

da
tio

n-
O

nl
y 

Pe
rm

it 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

in
 li

eu
 

of
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
ch

an
ge

 o
f p

ro
pe

rt
y.

  N
ew

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
es

ig
n 

is 
un

de
rw

ay
.  

M
us

t b
e 

a 
m

ix
ed

 u
se

 st
ru

ct
ur

e.

5/
4/

20
16

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

89
55

 C
ol

lin
s A

ve
Re

sid
en

tia
l C

on
do

m
in

iu
m

s

DR
G 

- 6
/2

0/
16

, 7
/2

7/
16

P&
Z 

- 1
0/

27
/1

6 
11

/1
0/

16
TC

 - 
11

/1
0/

20
16

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Ex

t -
 

11
0 

un
its

16
 u

ni
ts

 
N

on
e

N
on

e
16

-6
02

Is
su

ed
 

Th
e 

To
w

n 
Pl

an
ne

r s
ig

ne
d 

of
f o

n 
th

e 
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

Pl
an

 o
n 

Ju
ne

 1
7,

 
20

22
.  

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

s w
or

ki
ng

 to
 re

so
lv

e 
a 

co
up

le
 o

f 
iss

ue
s s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
Bu

ild
in

g 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t c
an

 is
su

e 
a 

pe
rm

an
en

t C
O

.

3/
14

/2
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
93

09
 - 

93
17

 C
ol

lin
s A

ve
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

93
 O

ce
an

 - 
De

m
ol

iti
on

 o
f 2

 e
xi

st
in

g 
3 

st
or

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
  a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 1

2 
st

or
y 

co
nd

om
in

iu
m

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
w

ith
 2

7 
dw

el
lin

g 
un

its
.  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

DR
G 

- 8
/2

3/
22

P&
Z 

- 8
/2

5/
22

   
   

   
   

   
 

TC
  -

  1
1/

29
/2

2
Si

te
 P

la
n 

Ex
t. 

- f
ile

d 
11

/2
7/

23
58

 U
ni

ts
27

 u
ni

ts
N

on
e

N
on

e

Pe
nd

in
g 

de
m

ol
iti

on
 o

f t
w

o 
ex

ist
in

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
.A

pp
lie

d 
fo

r o
n-

sit
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

tr
ai

le
r

Pe
nd

in
g 

De
m

ol
iti

on
 o

f T
w

o 
Ex

ist
in

g 
Co

nd
om

in
iu

m
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

.

5/
19

/2
01

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4/

1/
22

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

89
95

 C
ol

lin
s A

ve

Su
rf

 H
ou

se
 - 

sit
e 

pl
an

 a
pp

ro
va

l f
or

 e
xp

an
sio

n 
to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

de
em

ed
 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

ly
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
er

 S
ec

. 9
0-

33
(3

) 
 o

f 
th

e 
To

w
n 

Co
de

.

DR
G 

- 6
/1

9/
17

, 8
/2

4/
17

, 9
/2

8/
17

, M
ay

 2
02

2
P&

Z 
- 2

/2
2/

18
, 4

/2
6/

18
, 5

/3
1/

18
, a

pp
ro

ve
d 

on
 1

0/
27

/1
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
TC

 - 
12

/1
0/

19
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Si

te
 P

la
n 

Ex
t -

 2
 C

O
VI

D 
Ex

te
ns

io
ns

 N
ew

 P
er

m
it 

De
ad

lin
e 

9/
27

/2
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t -

 P
&

 Z
 a

pp
ro

va
l M

ay
 2

6,
 2

02
2

TC
 - 

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 S
ite

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t J

un
e 

16
, 2

02
2

99
 u

ni
ts

 

Re
so

lu
tio

n 
# 

19
-2

66
1 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

To
w

n 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
on

 
De

ce
m

be
r 1

0,
 2

01
9 

fo
r 

12
 st

or
ie

s,
 3

4 
un

its
 a

nd
 

72
 p

ar
ki

ng
 sp

ac
es

.  
 

O
rig

in
al

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

re
qu

es
te

d 
3 

Va
ria

nc
es

. F
in

al
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
di

d 
no

t 
in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
Va

ria
nc

es
.

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t -

De
ns

ity
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

fr
om

 3
4 

to
 1

9 
U

ni
ts

;  
O

th
er

 in
te

rio
r, 

ex
te

rio
r a

nd
 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

re
vi

sio
ns

. 

N
on

e

De
m

o 
pe

rm
it 

(r
et

ai
ni

ng
 N

W
 

co
rn

er
) i

ss
ue

d;
  T

em
p.

 
Co

ns
t. 

Fe
nc

in
g 

iss
ue

d;
 N

o 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pe

rm
it 

ap
pl

ie
d 

fo
r 

ye
t. 

Re
vi

sin
g 

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 d
riv

ew
ay

.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 Z
on

in
g 

Bo
ar

d 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f S

ite
 P

la
n 

Am
en

dm
en

t w
ith

 re
du

ct
io

n 
to

 1
9 

un
its

 a
nd

 in
te

rio
r a

nd
 e

xt
er

io
r 

re
vi

sio
ns

 o
n 

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
02

2.
  T

ow
n 

Co
m

m
iss

io
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 S
ite

 P
la

n 
Am

en
dm

en
t o

n 
Ju

ne
 1

6,
 2

02
2.

  P
oo

l a
nd

 p
oo

l d
ec

k 
m

ay
 re

m
ai

n 
in

 
hi

st
or

ic
 lo

ca
tio

n 
w

ith
 re

pa
irs

 a
s n

ec
es

sa
ry

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
Ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
ly

 
Si

gn
ifi

cn
at

 st
at

us
 o

f t
he

 si
te

.  
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

02
3 

ve
rt

ic
al

 d
em

ol
iti

on
  o

f 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

is 
co

m
pl

et
e 

ex
ce

pt
 1

st
 st

or
y 

N
W

 c
or

ne
r t

o 
be

 sa
ve

d 
by

 
de

sig
n.

O
rig

in
al

 S
ub

m
itt

al
: 1

/0
6/

20
15

 
Re

vi
se

d 
su

bm
itt

al
s:

 
8/

01
/2

01
6,

 1
2/

23
/2

01
6,

 
03

/0
9/

20
18

, 1
0/

29
/2

01
8 

9/
25

/2
02

0
88

51
 

Ha
rd

in
g 

Av
en

ue
 (S

ee
 p

ag
e 

2)

18
 m

ul
ti-

fa
m

ily
 u

ni
ts

 

DR
G 

- 0
1/

22
/1

5,
 0

8/
18

/1
6,

 0
1/

23
/1

7,
 0

3/
23

/1
8,

 1
1/

29
/2

01
8 

M
ee

tin
g 

Pe
nd

in
g,

 
2/

25
/2

1 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
P&

Z 
- 0

1/
31

/1
9 

P&
Z 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 (R

eq
ui

re
s P

&
Z 

Re
co

nd
sid

er
)  

   
   

   
 

2/
25

/2
1 

P&
Z 

De
ni

ed
 P

la
n

TC
 - 

De
ni

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n 
(r

eq
ui

re
s r

ec
on

sid
er

at
io

n 
by

 T
C)

,
TC

  A
pp

ro
va

l 5
/2

6/
21

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Ex

t -
 

33
 u

ni
ts

Cu
rr

en
t r

eq
ue

st
 is

 fo
r 1

8 
un

its
.  

 T
ow

n 
Pl

an
ne

r, 
DR

G 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ap
pr

ov
al

, P
&

Z 
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
de

ni
al

1 
re

qu
es

te
d:

 S
ec

tio
n 

90
-8

2.
 –

 O
ff-

st
re

et
 lo

ad
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 (L

oa
di

ng
 

Sp
ac

e 
Si

ze
).

N
ot

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
in

 2
02

1 
Pl

an

N
ot

 
ne

ed
ed

 in
 

20
21

 
re

qu
es

t 

Ha
s n

ot
 a

pp
lie

d 
fo

r p
er

m
it;

 
af

te
r 5

/2
6/

23
 th

e 
sit

e 
pl

an
 

is 
nu

ll 
an

d 
vo

id
 si

nc
e 

no
 

pe
rm

it 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ap

pl
ie

d 
fo

r.

Si
te

 P
la

n 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 5

/2
6/

21
; P

er
 S

ec
. 9

0-
20

.3
 a

fte
r 2

4 
m

on
th

s f
ro

m
 

th
e 

da
te

 th
e 

fin
al

 si
te

 p
la

n 
is 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pe
rm

it 
fo

r a
 

pr
in

ci
pa

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
ha

s n
ot

 b
ee

n 
iss

ue
d 

an
d 

re
m

ai
ns

 in
 e

ffe
ct

, t
he

 
sit

e 
pl

an
 sh

al
l b

e 
nu

ll 
an

d 
vo

id
.

Bu
ild

in
g 

Pe
rm

it 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
AP

PL
IC

AT
IO

N
 P

RO
CE

SS
 (2

01
2 

- P
RE

SE
N

T)
 

St
at

us

Va
ria

nc
es

 

3 
st

or
y 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
of

 8
,5

58
.9

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 

Pr
oj

ec
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n 

D
en

si
ty

/I
nt

en
si

ty

Zo
ni

ng
 P

ro
ce

ss
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
D

at
e 

Lo
ca

tio
n

Attachment "B"

17
5



Allowed Approved Requested Received Application 
No. 

Status

7/3/2019
9580 Abbott Ave

Young Israel Variance Request to eliminate 
landscaping to provide for a handicapped 
accessible ramp

DRG - N/A
P&Z - 8/29/2019
TC - 10/29/19
Site Plan Ext - 

1 requested: eliminate landscaping along the north 
side of the building None Complete Construction of ramp complete

1/7/2020
8926 Collins Avenue

Arte request to have FPL vault encroach into 
landscape buffer.

DRG - N/A
P&Z - 1/30/20
TC - 2/11/20
Site Plan Ext - 

Landscape buffer Approved Complete
This parcel on the west side of Collins Avenue was also inspected along with the 
residential component on the east side of Collins Avenue. See discussion on first 
page speadsheet.

11/18/2021  9165 Collins 
Ave (formerly the Hillcrest) 
now Surfclub Residences 
North

Site Plan approval to develop an 11 story, 14 
unit MF Bldg with 33 parking spaces in the 
H120 Zoning District on the north side of the 
Seaway and south side of the Carlisle.

DRG - 1/14/22 - Via Zoom - Approved Proceeding to P & Z                                                                                                               
P&Z - 1/27/22   - Deferred to 2/24/22 P&Z Mtg
P&Z - 2/24/22 - Recommended approval
TC - Site Plan Approval received 4/12/22

58 units Proposing 14 units None None
Demolition of Hillcrest is 
complete.  Applied for 
Foundation-Only Permit.

DRG recommmended on January 14, 2022 proceeding to P&Z on January 27, 2022.  
After discussion, P&Z decided to continue the item to the February 24, 2022. P&Z 
recommended approval at the February 24, 2022 meeting.  TC approved Site Plan 
on 4-12-22.  Foundation-Only permit has been issued and non vibrational Deep Soil 
Mixing is underway.

4/27/2022
8809 Harding Avenue Site Plan Application for 8 Townhouse Units

DRG - September 27th 2022
P&Z -September 29, 2022
TC - Set for 11/29/22

33 Units Proposing 8 units

None.
Preliminary review comments were prepared at 
the request of the Applicant.  Actual Site Plan 
submission for September 29th P & Z.

Applied for permit 1/27/23, 
under review at present. Unity 
of Title and ROW Dedication 
to be finalized.  FPL 
transformer location 
identified, no variance needed.

Site Plan Application received 4/27/22.  Applicant requested preliminary review 
prior to proceeding to formal Site Plan Review.  Resubmission for 9/29/22 P & Z 
with DRG on 9/27/22. P&Z approved site plans with addition of street trees.  Met 
with Development team on 10/27/22. Town Commission approved at 11/29/22 TC 
meeting. Application for Building Permit is pending applicant's response to plan 
review comments by Planning and Plumbing.

10/1/2016,  5/6/21 , 
9/1/22
9116 Harding Ave (AKA 303 
Surfside Blvd.)

303 Surfside - 4 Townhouses (2018)
303 Surfside - 6 Townhouses (2021) and 
(2022)

DRG - 11/2/16, 2/7/17, 5/18/17, 6/21 TBD
P&Z - 6/27/18, 6/21, 10/27/22
TC - 4/14/2018      New approval 2/14/23
Site Plan Ext - 

6 units Due to 
15% reduction for 

aggregation
6 units None None 23-5066 In Review

Submitted plans on 9/1/22 and were reviewed at the P&Z on 12/15/22 with a DRG 
held on 10/17/22.  Concerns with density at the site; pulled from 10/27/22 P&Z 
agenda.  Density issues resolved 11/28/22, 6 units allowed. Approved at 12/15/22 
P&Z. Approved by TC on February 14th, 2023.

12/15/22  9100 Collins - 
Market Hall

Part of Surf Club complex - Office space for 
hotel staff, office/business center for hotel 
guests, market hall (café and market), 
underground parking and roof top tennis 
court

DRG- 10/17/22
P&Z - 12/15/22
TC - 2/14/2023

68 units No residential None None Has not applied for permit yet Approved by P&Z at 12/15/22 meeting. Approved by TC on February 14th, 2023. 

8/29/2022
200 96th Street

Surf Harbor, LLC.                                  Proposed 
3 story Office Building with at grade parking 
garage.        Application for new construction 
of a 3-story office bldg. including parking 
garage at grade and roof deck (15,790 SF of 
office space)

DRG - TBD
P&Z - TBD
TC  - TBD
On-hold as office is not an allowable use under the Comp Plan.  
Project would need ability to use the Parking Trust Fund

Will require Zoning Change No Building Permit appication 
filed to date.

Application, plans and check submitted for 3 story Office Building.    Proposed plans 
require possible Land Use Plan Amendment and rezoning.  Site will need access to 
the Parking Trust Fund to comply with parking requirements. Discussions underway 
to determine needed activities in order to process application. Lawyers discussed 
plans with Mayor, Commissionser and Town Staff. Aim to seek Zoning change.

6/12/2023
8777 Collins Avenue

Site Plan Application proposing 52 unit multi-
famliy building

DRG - 8/9/2023
P&Z - 8/31/2023
TC  - 9/27/23         Approved with conditions

207 Units 52 Units proposed None None Building Permit not filed.

Application, plans and check submitted on June 12th, 2023.  Two design options 
presented. One attempts to meet current code.  The other will need an ordinance 
change. Only the second plan was presented to P&Z.  FEMA Map Change  Approval 
or Preliminary Maps to go into effect prior to Building Permit submittal.  Otherwise 
no underground parking garage allowed on single use building per FEMA. Approved 
by Town Commission with condition of FDOT approval for Collins Avenue Loading 
Dock.

Latest Submittal 8/22/2023    
8851 Harding Avenue

8 townhome units

DRG - 9/15/2023
P&Z -  9/28/23
TC -  11/14/2023   Approved
Site Plan Ext - 

33 units Current request is for 8 
units None None 23-5091 In Review Site requires unity of title prior to permitting.

10/16/2023
9300 Collins Avenue

Site Plan Application proposing 87 unit multi-
famliy rental building, underground garage 
and synagogue

DRG -11/16/2023
P&Z - 11/30/2023                 
TC  - 1/9/2023

103 Residential 
Units

87 Units proposed None None Approved at Town Commission and RLUIPA relief granted

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION PROCESS (2012 - PRESENT), Cont.

Application Date 
Location Project Description Zoning Process

Density/Intensity Variances Building Permit 
Status

176



Project Detail Sheet

96th Street Park 

Current Project Phase 

Construction phase

Project Contact Information
Department

Director
Architect of Record Project 
Management General 
Contractor

Funding
Contract Amount 
contracted*

Budget Approval Date

Commission Authorization 

to Expend Date
*Refer to Change Order
Memo dated Feb. 29, 2024
for additional construction
costs included.

Capital Improvement Projects

Andre Eugent
Savino Miller Design 300 
Engineering Lunacon 
Construction 

$7,800,000

September 28, 2022

November 15, 2022

Scope

The project is a full park re-development with a 2-story multi-use structure, an artificial turf field, and 
play ground area.  A kayak launch component has also been incorporated.

Project Timeline

Refer to the attached schedule. 

Project Update

Construction is 80% complete with a targeted completion date of July 1st, 2024. Project was running 
behind schedule due to time extensions resulting from weather and material lead time.  

Attachment "C"

177



Activity ID Activity Name Activity 
Status

Critical Original
Duration

Start Finish Total
Float

Duration
%

Complete
Surfside 96th Street Park_Monthly Update -March2024Surfside 96th Street Park_Monthly Update -March2024Surfside 96th Street Park_Monthly Update -March2024Surfside 96th Street Park_Monthly Update -March2024 73 15-Apr-24 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

MilestoneMilestoneMilestoneMilestone 73 15-Apr-24 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

General MilestonesGeneral MilestonesGeneral MilestonesGeneral Milestones 30 28-May-24 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

BL011070 Substantial Completion Not Started 0 28-May-24 -118 0%

BL011080 Project Final Completion Not Started 0 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

Client MilestonesClient MilestonesClient MilestonesClient Milestones 0 15-Apr-24 15-Apr-24 -120 0%

ADD1000 Permanent Power On Not Started 0 15-Apr-24* -120 0%

Focus AreasFocus AreasFocus AreasFocus Areas 73 16-Apr-24 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

BL14720 Punchlist Duration Not Started 30 28-May-24 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

Hydraulic ElevatorHydraulic ElevatorHydraulic ElevatorHydraulic Elevator 43 16-Apr-24 28-May-24 -118 0%

BL15540 Remaining Interior Works after Elevator Installation (Estimated Time) Not Started 18 07-May-24 28-May-24 -99 0%

Elevator MilestonesElevator MilestonesElevator MilestonesElevator Milestones 0 24-Apr-24 24-Apr-24 -119 0%

ELEV0011Elevator at Site Not Started 0 24-Apr-24 -119 0%

Pre-InstallationPre-InstallationPre-InstallationPre-Installation 8 16-Apr-24 24-Apr-24 -99 0%

BL13120 Material Deliveries for Elevator (Long Lead Item) Not Started 8 16-Apr-24 24-Apr-24 -99 0%

InstallationInstallationInstallationInstallation 10 25-Apr-24 06-May-24 -99 0%

BL14340 Mechanical Equipment Installation Not Started 6 25-Apr-24 01-May-24 -99 0%

BL14350 Elevator Car Installation Not Started 6 30-Apr-24 06-May-24 -99 0%

Testing/Commissioning and PunchoutTesting/Commissioning and PunchoutTesting/Commissioning and PunchoutTesting/Commissioning and Punchout 30 28-May-24 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

BL14680 Creation of Punchlist Not Started 5 28-May-24 02-Jun-24 -118 0%

BL14690 Completion of Punchlist Rectifications Not Started 25 02-Jun-24 27-Jun-24 -118 0%

Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2024

27-Jun-24, Surfside 96th Street Park_Monthly Update -March2024

27-Jun-24, Milestone

27-Jun-24, General Milestones

Substantial Completion

Project Final Completion

15-Apr-24, Client Milestones

Permanent Power On

27-Jun-24, Focus Areas

28-May-24, Hydraulic Elevator

Remaining Interior Works after Elevator Installation (Estimated Time)

24-Apr-24, Elevator Milestones

Elevator at Site

24-Apr-24, Pre-Installation

Material Deliveries for Elevator (Long Lead Item)

06-May-24, Installation

Mechanical Equipment Installation

Elevator Car Installation

27-Jun-24, Testing/Commissioning and Punchout

Creation of Punchlist

Completion of Punchlist Rectifications

Remaining Level of Effort

Actual Level of Effort

Actual Work

Remaining Work

Critical Remaining Work

Milestone

Summary LCG-Surfside96thStreet-Critical Path

Surfside 96th Street Park_Monthly Update -March2024

Page 1 of 1

PC-758-BLRS1_UP14

Data Date: 29-Mar-24

178



Total Budgeted*

Project Detail Sheet

Townwide Utilities Undergrounding
Current Project Phase 

Engineering and Design Phase

Project Contact Information
Department
Director
Engineer of Record
Architect of Record
Project Management

Project Timeline

Refer to attached schedule. 

Project Update

Kimley-Horn received the survey for Area 3 – North, and have begun to develop the Construction 
Plans, which are anticipated to be completed in the July/August 2024 timeframe. Additionally, Town is 
currently working on procurement documents for Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR). 
Refer to attached timeline. 

Budget Approval Date**

Commission Authorization 

to Expend Date

Scope
The project consists of the undergrounding all current above ground utilities throughout Town. These utilities 
include electrical mains, feeders, communications and residential drop connections. The project debt issuance 
was approved through voter referendum during the 2022 General Elections. 

* - Budget figure is based on Surfside Executive Summary estimate

Funding

** - Various agreements have been approved to date.

Capital Improvement Projects
Andre Eugent

N/A
Kimley-Horn

$37,178,512
Varies

Various agreements have 
been approved to date

Kimley-Horn

179



Surfside Undergrounding Tentative Timeline - Design 9/29/23 

Area 3 - North 

Feb-26 Mar-26 Apr-26 May-261 J un-261 Jul-261 Aug-261 Sep-261 Oct-26 Nov-261 Dec-26 
Utility Provider Coordination 
Data Collection I I I I I I 
Easement Acquisition 

Construction Documents I 
I I I I Permitting Assistance I 
I I I I I Sid Phase Services 

Area 2 • Central 

Nov-241 [>c·c-241 Jan-251 Fcb-251 Mar-251 Allr-251 Mav-251 Jun-251 Jul-251 All�-251 Sc tr251 Ocl-251 Nov-251 Dec-251 Jan-26 
Ulililv Provider Coordination 
Data Collection I I I I I I I I I I I I 
Ea•ement Acuui•ition 

I I lconstruction Documents I I 
I I I I I I I IPermittine: Assisunce I I 
I I I I I I I I I I I I I Bid Pha•e Servi,.,. 

Area l - South 

N0V-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-241 Mar-241 Apr-241 May-241 Jun-241 Jul-241 Aug-24 Sep-241 Oct-24 
Utility Provider Coordination 
Oat.I Collection I I I I I I I 
Easement Acquisition 

Construction Documents I 
I I I I I Permitting Assistance

I I I I I I Bid Phase Services 

180



181



CIP
Andre Eugent
N/A
N/A

Scope
The Town is seeking to  create the Surfside Memorial to honor and remember the lives lost in 
the tragic event that occurred on June 24, 2021, when the CTS Building collapsed. The 
Surfside Memorial will serve as a permanent remembrance of the immense loss suffered by 
the Surfside community and will offer a place for families, friends, and visitors to reflect, 
understand the truth of that day, and find solace through the peace and serenity conveyed 
through this site.

Project Timeline

Refer to attached schedule. 

Project Update 

Town Commission at its January 2024 Commission meeting approved the design team 
(Keith) to start designing the Surfside Memorial. Town staff met with Surfside Memorial 
Committee members and Keith.  The design phase it anticipated to last 15 months. 

Project Detail Sheet

Surfside Memorial 

$2,500,000

Current Project Phase 
Design Phase 

Project Contact Information
Department 
Director
Engineer of Record 
Architect of Record

Funding
Total Budget
Design $248,000

*All funding from grants and appropriations

182



Project Detail Sheet

Abbott Avenue Drainage Improvements
Current Project Phase

Town Commission to discuss for further 
direction. 

Project Contact Information

Capital Improvement Projects 
Andre Eugent
Keith Engineering NA
NA

$3,850,000 
September 28, 2022

TBD - Administration will seek 
authorization to expend upon 
awarding work to contractor

Scope
The construction will entail the addition of one new pump station with respective force main in order to 
alleviate flooding on Abbott Avenue from 90th Street to 94th Street.  

Project Timeline* 
Engineering and Design 
Permitting

Procurement (est.)

NTP for Construction (est.) 
Construction (est.)* Based on 
redesign

Department
Director
Engineer of Record 
Architect of Record 
Project Management

Funding
Total Budgeted*
Budget Approval Date

Commission Authorization 
to Expend Date

* - Construction and CEI budget

Phase Start Phase End
August 2023 October 2023

TBD TBD

Done
April  2024

   Done 
May 2024

TBD TBD

Project Update

ITB was put out for bid on April 15, 2024 and bid opening scheduled for May 2024. The bids received will 
be evaluated and a contractor selected. 

183



Scope
The current undersized water main on Collins Avenue is past its use life and requires upsizing with
replacement. The Town sought and obtained a grant for design services for the project. The water main
currently services all the facilities along the Collins Avenue corridor.

Funding
Total Budgeted

Budget Approval Date

Architect of Record
Project Management

Project Detail Sheet

Collins Avenue Water Main 
Current Project Phase 

Design Phase

Project Contact Information
Department
Director

Commission Authorization 

to Expend Date

Capital Improvement Projects 
Andre Eugent
Nova Consulting N/A
Nova Consulting

$340,206 (Design) September 
28, 2022

August 9, 2022

Engineer of Record

Project Timeline

Refer to attached schedule. 

Project Update

Projects is in 60% design phase. Town submitted an appropriation request to the State. 

184



185



Project Detail Sheet

Dune Resiliency and Beautification 
Current Project Phase 
Design/Permitting Phase

Project Contact Information
Department Capital Improvement Projects
Director Andre Eugent

Commission Authorization 

to Expend Date

Engineer of Record Kimley-Horn
Architect of Record TBD
Project Management Public Works

Funding
Total Budgeted

Scope
The Commission tasked Town administration to promote both dune beautification and resiliency improvements. 
Town administration is seeking engineering and design services in order to meet the objective in a manner that 
is Florida Friendly and promotes the natural plant diversity of the dunes.

Project Timeline

Refer to attached schedule. 

Project Update

Town is pursuing another Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP))grant to assist with funding. 
Town is in the process of permitting. 

Budget Approval Date

$72,000 
September 28,2022

TBD

186



Task Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24
Task 1 - Kickoff Meeting

Task 2 - Topographic Survey

Task 3 - Construction Plans

30% Plan preparation

60% Plan preparation

Final Plan preparation

Task 4 - Permit Coordination

Project Coordination

Dune Resiliency and Beautification Project Schedule

187



Project Timeline

TBD TBD

TBD

Project Update

Town Administration will task 9300 Development to commence design phase per development order. 

Department
Director
Engineer of Record
Architect of Record

Commission Authorization 

to Expend Date
N/A

Capital Improvement Projects
Andre Eugent
N/A
N/A

Total Budgeted

Budget Approval Date

Design Procurement 

Design 

Funding

Scope
93rd Street is the hub for all Town Hall and Community Center events. Town Commission has commissioned 
staff with enhancing the 93rd Street corridor between Harding Avenue & Collins Avenue with pavers and 
hardscape improvements.

Cosntruction 

Phase Start Phase End

January 2024

TBD

January 2024

Project Detail Sheet

Current Project Phase

Town Commission to discuss for further direction. 

Project Contact Information

$400,000

93rd Street 200 Block Paver Beautification 

188



Project Timeline

Department
Director

TBD TBD

Project Detail Sheet

$165,000

Town Hall Improvements (Commission Chambers and Police Department)
Current Project Phase

Replacing from material purchased. 

Project Contact Information

Funding

February 13, 2024

Public Works/Police Dept 
R. Stokes/E. Doce
 N/A
N/A

Engineer of Record
Architect of Record

Commission Authorization 

to Expend Date

Total Budgeted

Budget Approval Date

Scope

The Town of Surfside Commission Chambers located at 9293 Harding Avenue is highly utilized for various Town 
meetings. The Commission Chambers is in need of an upgrade to include replacing carpeting, chairs, lighting, amongst 
other items. Remodel, replace flooring and update sections of the Police Department. The Police Department 
Communications section is more than 15 years old and in need of replacement. The project scope includes: remodel 
Communications room; convert a portion of the Communications room into Sergeants office space for four work stations (from 
three) to alleviate overcrowding; remodel existing sergeants office space into a interview room to provide a private setting for 
officers to use during interviews of both suspects and victims. The Police Department has private setting to interview victims 
and suspects; replace the linoleum flooring throughout the police department and the upstairs training room; remodel kitchen 
area.

Project Update

At its February meeting, the Town Commission approved the requested upgrades. 

TBD

Procurement 

Contract

Construction 

Phase Start Phase End

TBD

TBD

TBD

189



Project Timeline

TBD

Project Update

Town Commission approved a resolution which authorizes to expand on video surveillance and 
recording camera system for parking lots located at Town Hall Lot and 94th Street Lot.
Equipment has been ordered.

Department
Director
Engineer of Record
Architect of Record

Commission Authorization 

to Expend Date
January 2024 

Finance/IT
Jose Feliz
AT&I Security Systems
N/A

Total Budgeted

Budget Approval Date

Procurement

Implementation

Project Contact Information

Funding

Scope

Security updates consisting of surveillance cameras and Cloud services at various parking lots.

Phase Start Phase End

December 2023

TBD

January 2024

Project Detail Sheet

Current Project Phase 

Procurement Phase

$80,000

Parking Lot Security Cameras

190



Project Detail Sheet

Downtown Walkability Improvements

Current Project Phase 

On hold until further Commission direction.
)

Project Contact Information

Department
Director
Engineer of Record 
Architect of Record

Funding
Total Study Cost

Design and Implementation 

strategy cost*

Capital Improvement Projects 
Andre Eugent

$50,000

$120,000

* Approved by Resolution at Dec. 13,Town Commission

meeting

Additional $20,000 budgeted to account for Phase I 
permitting

Scope

The 2 blocks of Harding Avenue from 94th Street to 96th Street provide the entrance to the Town for those 
arriving from the north. It is also the commercial hub for residents and is visited by vehicles, pedestrians 
and bicyclists. The corridor carries through traffic traveling south along busy A1A. An evaluation of the 
feasibility of providing wider sidewalks in this section of Harding Avenue to support safety, provide a 
more walkable experience for shoppers and slow vehicle speeds has been conducted. Marlin 
Engineering presented findings to the Town Commission in September 2022. 

Project Timeline
Refer to attached schedule. 

Project Update

On hold until further Commission direction.

191



Project Detail Sheet

91st Street - "Surfside Boulevard" Beautification Project

Current Project Phase 

On hold until further Commission direction.

Project Contact Information
Department Capital Improvement Projects
Director Andre Eugent

Commission Authorization 
to Expend Date

Engineer of Record Kimley-Horn 
Architect of Record
Project Management

Funding
Total Budgeted
Budget Approval Date

$1,050,000 (construction) 

September 28, 2022

Scope
Through various sources, the Town has obtained funds with the intent to beautify the current 91st Street 
also known as Surfside Boulevard. The project beautification scope of services is to be determined 
but will follow after major utilities project occur in the area.

Project Timeline

Refer to attached schedule.

Project Update

On hold until further Commission direction.

192



�

Page 1 of 6

TOWN OF SURFSIDE

Office of the Town Attorney
MUNICIPAL BUILDING

9293 HARDING AVENUE
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 33154-3009

Telephone (305) 861-4863 x225

TO: Mayor and Town Commission

FROM: Mark Blumstein, Esq., Interim Town Attorney

CC: Marisol Vargas, Acting Town Manager

DATE: May 14, 2024

SUBJECT: Office of the Town Attorney Report for Regular Commission Meeting

The Interim Town Attorney attended/prepared and/or rendered advice for the 
following Commission meetings, workshops, roundtables, public meetings and/or  
Board and Committee meetings:

April 25, 2024 – Planning & Zoning Board Meeting
April 30, 2024 - Special Town Commission Meeting
May 6, 2024 – Resort Tax Board Meeting
May 7, 2024 – CTS Committee Meeting

Assisted with the agendas and drafted the resolutions and ordinances, where applicable, 
for the above noted meetings, in addition to drafting or assisting with the preparation of 
communications, reviewing, revising and, as appropriate, negotiating the legal 
requirements of the relative contracts, agreements and supporting documents.
  

193



Page 2 of 6

Participated in settlement discussions with KCE and Schnabel Engineering regarding 
pending claims before the Henrico Circuit Court in the Commonwealth of Virginia.

I. Commission Support:

Assisted members of the Town Commission and Staff with Sunshine Law, Public Records, 
and policy initiatives. Always available in the office, by phone or email.

II. Staff Support:

Assist the Town Administration and Staff with application review, contract and agreement 
review; preparation of ordinances, as directed by the Commission; procurement and 
purchasing, various solicitations for Town services and providers (RFQs and RFPs) and 
agreements; IT related agreements; Parks & Recreation Department contracts and 
services; Tourist Board purchases and agreements; Code enforcement and interpretation, 
and attendance at Special Master Hearings, upon request; ethics issues and complaints; 
police funding, matters and agreements, forfeiture, public records and complaints; 
building permit and enforcement issues; public records and media requests; litigation 
representation and support, subpoenas, oversight and case management; Town Code 
interpretation and application; labor, employment and pension matters; assistance with 
implementation of the AFSCME Florida Council 79 for Town civilian employees; collective 
bargaining negotiations and agreement with the FOP; Town Manager recruitment process 
and employment agreement; EEOC complaints;  ethics complaints and inquiries; various 
procurements and service provider contracts for Town Departments and the Tourist 
Board; Zoning Code clarifications and ordinances; and implementation of utilities 
undergrounding project.  

III. Key Issues and Action Items:

The workload has been diverse and has included specific issue support to many 
departments. Key issues and action items since the last report of April 9, 2024 include:

1. Review of outside counsel billing statements.

2. Assist with public records requests.

3. Prepare correspondence to Miami-Dade Plat Committee regarding 9250 Bay Drive 
lot split and corresponding Town Resolution 2024-3268.

4. Assist with issuance of ITB for Abbott Avenue Stormwater Project.

194



�

Page 3 of 6

5. Review and approve Unity of Title documents pertaining to 932 and 940 88 Street, 
Surfside, FL 33154.

6. Prepare Resolution and corresponding contract for engagement of new Town 
Planner.

7. Prepared Resolution and corresponding contract for Acting Town Manager.

8. Prepared proposed Ordinance pertaining to Resort Tax Board.

9. Prepared proposed Ordinance amending Regulated Uses in business district.

10.Prepared resolution for newly established parking rates.

11.Review of requirements for board appointments by Town Commission.

12.Review of Town contracts pertaining to 96 Street Park.

13.Review of pending litigation of which the Town is a party.

14.Assist Town Manager with engagement of Building Official.

15.Assist Town Manager with engagement of Floodplain Manager.

16.Assist Code Compliance with implementation of newly enacted Temporary Sign 
Ordinance.

17.Assist Building Department with implementation of newly enacted Permit Fees 
Ordinance.

18.Review of IT Department for purposes of new solicitation for IT Services.

19.Review of KCE Agreement with the Town and status of same.

20.Review of proposed new contract from Police for fuel card services.

21.Communicate with Miami-Dade County regarding Interlocal Agreement.

195



Page 4 of 6

IV. PENDING LITIGATION:

Solimar Condominium Association, Inc. v. Town of Surfside, Case No. 3D23-1572 in the
Third District Court of Appeal.  On August 30, 2023, Solimar filed a Notice of Appeal of 
the Final Judgment Order (from the underlying trial court Case No. 2019-025481-CA-01 
in the Circuit Court 11th Judicial Circuit, Miami-Dade County, Florida) in the Third District 
Court of Appeal. The Town filed a Notice of Appearance on September 20, 2023. Solimar 
filed its Initial Brief on December 15, 2023. The Town filed its Answer Brief on March 14, 
2024. Solimar’s Reply Brief is due by May 13, 2024, by agreement of the parties.

This litigation pertains to the Town’s Stormwater Ordinance enacted in 1998 and was 
deemed time barred by the lower tribunal. Solimar challenges the ruling on appeal.  

Schnabel Engineering, LLC, Plaintiff, v. KCE Structural Engineers, P.L. and Town of
Surfside, Defendants, Case No. CL23-7597, Henrico County Circuit Court, Virginia. A 
lawsuit by Schnabel Engineering was served on KCE Structural Engineers on November 
28, 2023. Prior Town counsel concluded that, pursuant to the agreement between the 
Town and KCE for the CTS collapse investigative services, the Town agreed to defend, 
indemnify, and hold KCE harmless from any and all claims, expenses and damages not 
caused by KCE's sole negligence arising from or alleged to arise from the performance 
or nonperformance of services by KCE, including other Town consultants and KCE's 
subconsultants.

KCE engaged Schnabel Engineering to provide services pursuant to written agreements 
requiring prior written authorization by the Town to perform work by Schnabel and/or
COSMO (Italian Space Agency).

On December 12, 2023, the Town Commission authorized the retention of attorneys in 
Virginia to respond to the lawsuit. By agreement of the parties, a response to the 
Complaint is due by May 31, 2024. Mediation is a condition precedent to suit. The parties, 
through counsel, are seeking to resolve without a formal mediation conference. A “shade” 
meeting is scheduled to proceed on May 14, 2024. The amount of the controversy is less 
than $100,000.00, exclusive of interest, fees and costs.

Information on other pending litigation matters, including matters handled by the FMIT 
appointed defense counsel, has or will be provided individually to members of the Town 
Commission, upon request.

196



Page 5 of 6

V. Special/Anticipated Future Matters:  

Continued assessment of the impacts of new case law and legislation from Federal, State 
and County, challenging local home rule authority and analysis of legislation proposed in 
the 2023 Florida Legislative Session. Preparation and establishment of the Town’s 
legislative priorities for the 2024 Legislative Session.

Anticipated future work includes:

1. Monitoring of NIST’s investigations as to the cause of the CTS collapse;

2. CTS memorial site/park and 88th Street closure to vehicular traffic;

3. Public records requests;

4. Ethics complaints, inquiries and opinions;

5. Implementation of various policy directives from the Commission;

6. Contract for construction and administration of for 96th Street Park construction;

7. Review and monitoring of all Development Orders and approvals;

8. Police matters and mutual aid and other agreements;

9. Various procurements and service or provider agreements for Town improvements, 
equipment, facilities and programs, including sewer regulatory services;

10.Dune Resiliency and Beautification, Collins Avenue Water Main Design and 
Permitting, Stormwater Masterplan, Transportation Masterplan;

11.Tourist Board Programs and Events Vendors;

12.Upgrades to Zoning Code Design Standards; Zoning Code ordinances;  Ordinance 
Regulation Public Rights-of-Way and R/W Encroachment Agreement;

13.Revised Invitation to Bid and Contract negotiations for the Abbott Avenue Drainage 
Improvements Project, including grant funding;

14. Implementation and funding for Surfside Boulevard improvements;

15. Implementation of undergrounding of utilities project, bond financing, and alley and 
easement issues;

197



Page 6 of 6

16. Implementation of walkability initiatives and traffic directives;

17.Grant funding and implementation of CTS Memorial Site, including assistance with 
RFQ and RFP for design of CTS Memorial Site;

18.Updates to telecommunications ordinance; People’s Gas System (TECO) 
Franchise Agreement renewal;

19.MOU with Indian Creek Village for Sewer Facilities;

20.RFQ for CCNA specialized engineering services;

21.Selection of Firm for CTS Memorial Design Services and negotiation of agreement;

22.RFP for stormwater maintenance services;

23.RFP for Insurance Services; and

24.RFQ/RFP for Utility Undergrounding Project.

198



Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9A.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Mark Blumstein, Interim Town Attorney
Subject: CTS/KCE and Memorial Updates

Suggested Action: – Provide direction as it pertains to Town contracts with KCE and with
regard to Town Memorial.

Background/Analysis: – The Town has engaged professionals to investigate the cause of the
building collapse. To date, no report or conclusion has been provided to the Town. Direction is
sought as to whether to unconditionally terminate any Town agreements with KCE.
 
The committee formed following the CTS tragedy desires to maintain the Town's name for
purposes of identifying the memorial and to maintain its location on 88 Street. Direction is
sought to proceed with design accordingly.   

199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR INFRASTRUCTURE MONITORING SERVICES

BETWEEN SCHNABEL ENGINEERING, LLC AND
KCE STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS, PC

THIS ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT FOR INFRASTRUCTURE MONITORING

SERVICES ("Addendum") is made and entered into as of June 28, 2021 ("Effective Date") by
and between SCHNABEL ENGINEERING, LLC ("Schnabel") and KCE STRUCTURAL
ENGINEERS, PC ("KCE"), joined by the TOWN OF SURFSIDE, a Florida Municipal
Corporation ("Town").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Schnabel and KCE entered into that certain Infrastructure Monitoring
Services Agreement for services to be provided on behalf of the Town of Surfside ("Town") in
connection with the Champlain Towers South Building Collapse on June 24,2021 attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter the "Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, Schnabel and KCE wish to amend the Agreement to (i) add and require the
prior written authorization of the Town and Allyn Kilsheimer of KCE in order to proceed with any
work or services under the Agreement, and to acquire or purchase any data or images from the
Italian Space Agency ("Products"), (ii) provide for a not to exceed amount of $12,000 for any
Products acquired or purchased from the Italian Space Agency, and (iii) require compliance with
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (Florida Public Records Law);

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained,
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, Schnabel and KCE do hereby agree and covenant, notwithstanding the
terms and conditions of the Agreement, as follows:

1. Defined Terms. All initial capitalized terms used in this Addendum shall have the
same meaning as set forth in the Agreement unless otherwise provided.

2. Recitals. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part of
this Addendum.

3. Prior Written Authorization to Proceed with Services and Products. Schnabel

shall not provide any work or services pursuant to this Agreement, and shall not acquire or
purchase Products from the Italian Space Agency without the prior written authorization of the
Town and Allyn Kilsheimer of KCE. The parties agree that no work, services, or Products shall
be incurred or purchased until such time as the Town and Allyn Kilsheimer of KCE provide written
authorization to proceed with requested services and Products, including images and data from the
Italian Space Agency selected by KCE and the Town.

4. Not to Exceed Amount. In no event shall fees and costs payable by the Town
and/or KCE exceed $12,000 for all Products acquired or purchased from the Italian Space Agency.
All fees and costs payable by the Town and/or KCE for the Products shall not exceed $12,000.

227



5. Ownership and Access to Records; Public Records, Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary in the Agreement, the Agreement and all deliverables and services provided by
Schnabel are subject to Florida's Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), including
but not limited to the following:

5.1 All records, books, documents, maps, data, images, deliverables, papers and
financial information (the "Records") that result from Schnabel providing
Services or Products to KCE and the Town under the Agreement shall be
the property of KCE and the Town.

5.2 Schnabel agrees to keep and maintain public records in its possession or
control in connection with Schnabel's performance under the Agreement.
Schnabel additionally agrees to comply specifically with the provisions of
Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Schnabel shall ensure that public
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law, for
the duration of the Agreement, and following completion of the Agreement
until the records are transferred to the Town.

5.3 Upon request from KCE or the Town custodian of public records, Schnabel
shall provide KCE and the Town with a copy of the requested records or
allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a
cost that does not exceed the cost provided by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes,
or as otherwise provided by law.

5.4 Upon completion of this Agreement or in the event of termination by either
party, any and all public records relating to the Agreement in the
possession of Schnabel shall be delivered by Schnabel to KCE and the
Town Manager, at no cost to the Town, within seven (7) days. All such
records stored electronically by Schnabel shall be delivered to KCE and
the Town in a format that is compatible with the Town's information
technology systems. Once the public records have been delivered upon
completion or termination of this Agreement, Schnabel shall destroy any
and all duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt
from public records disclosure requirements.

5.5 Any compensation due to Schnabel shall be withheld until all records are
received as provided herein.

5.6 Schnabel's failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this section
shall result in the immediate termination of the Agreement by KCE or the
Town.

Section 119.0701(2)(aL Florida Statutes

228



IF SCHNABEL HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO
THE SCHNABEL 'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS

RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS.

Custodian of Records: SANDRA MCCREADY, MMC,
TOWN CLERK

Mailing address: 9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida 33154

Telephone number;

Email:

305-861-4863

smccreadv(a:to\vnofsurfsidefLgpv

6. Counterparts. This Addendum may be executed in counterparts and any
counterpart evidencing signature by one party may be delivered by telecopy, facsimile or
electronic mail. Each executed counterpart of this Addendum will constitute an original document
and all executed counterparts, together, will constitute the same Agreement.

7. Ratification: Addendum Controls. Except as expressly amended herein, all of
the terms and provisions of the Agreement remain unmodified and in full force and effect. In the
event of any conflict between the tenns of the Agreement and the terms of this Addendum, the
terms of this Addendum shall govem as necessary to resolve any such conflict.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;
SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

229



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Addendum on the dates set
forth below their respective signatures:

SCHNABEL ENGINEERING, LLC

By:.
/iMuU

Name: Allen Cadden, PE, D.GE

Title: Principal

Date: 8-5-21

KCE STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS, PC

By:.

Name

Title: •V, re S

Date:

f

ATTEST: JOINED BY: THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, a

Florida Municipal Corporation

A

Sandra I

Town G!

APPRGVEri AS TO FORM AND LEGAL ^
SUFFICIENCY:

Andrew Hyatt

Title: Town Manager

8

^0-
Town Attorney

230



Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9B.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Commissioner Nelly Velasquez
Subject: Discussion on Chapter 3 "Purchasing" related to the Town Manager's
Expending Authority

Suggested Action: – For the Town Commission to discuss amending the ordinance for the
$25,000 expenditures allowance to be used specifically for Public Works emergencies.  The
Town Commission should further discuss what should be the Town Manager's authority for
any other expenditure of public funds. 

Background/Analysis: – The Town Manager's expenditure is currently $25,000 per
ordinance number 2020-1708 adopted on January 14, 2020 attached as Attachment "A". 
The Town Commission should consider lowering the threshold for non emergency
expenditures.   

231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9C.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui
Subject: Recognition of LGBT Pride Month in June

Suggested Action: – At the June meeting, I will propose a formal resolution recognizing June
as LGBT Pride Month.  For now, I am asking my fellow Commissioners to vote to direct the
Town Manager to organize a raising of the LGBT Pride Flag at the Community Center
sometime on or around the first Friday of June (June 7), in accordance with past practice in
2023 and 2021.  I also ask the Commission to authorize the Manager and staff to plan
additional Pride Month events and activities, at their discretion.

244



Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9D.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Commissioner Gerardo Vildostegui
Subject: Discussion of Sec. 66-7 Ban on Gas-Powered Leaf-Blowers and of the Related
Public-Education Campaign and "Warning Period"

Suggested Action: – (1) The Commission should direct the Town Manager and the
Communications staff to prepare an educational campaign regarding the specific threats to
human health from gas-powered leaf blowers.  The campaign should include printed materials
such as a flyer or brochure, and it should, if possible, contain information in English, Spanish,
and Creole.  Communications staff should be encouraged to cooperate with their counterparts
in nearby cities that have recently banned gas-powered leaf-blowers, such as Miami Beach
and North Bay Village, to produce and distribute the materials.
 
(2) Furthermore, during the "warning period" that precedes enforcement of sec. 66-7 (i.e., Mar.
1 - Sept. 1, 2024), Code Enforcement should offer these printed materials to residents and to
paid landscape workers whenever Code Enforcement issues a warning.
 
(3) Finally, the Commission should clearly announce its policy that the provisions of 66-7
should be widely and uniformly enforced beginning Sept. 1, 2024.

Background/Analysis: – Gas-powered leaf blowers pose a serious threat to human health,
especially for people who routinely operate them.  The vibrations from these machines can
cause neurological damage, the noise can damage hearing and raise blood pressure, and the
resultant air-pollution from chemicals and from particulate matter is linked with a variety of
negative health outcomes.
 
Sec. 66-7 of our Code already institutes a ban on gas-powered leaf blowers, beginning Mar. 1,
2024.  Sec. 54-78(15)(a) creates a six-month "warning period" beginning Mar. 1, with stricter
enforcement set to begin on Sept. 1, 2024.
 
The extant provisions of our Code supplanted an earlier ban on gas-powered leaf blowers. 
Under that previous ban, however, enforcement appears to have been sporadic.  It is
important that the existing ban, when it takes full effect in September, be consistently and
reliably enforced, as failure to enforce this provision undermines the authority of this law and
of other laws that protect public health, public safety, and the natural environment.  The
Commission should take steps now to ensure that the "warning period" achieves its intended

245



aims and to set the stage for proper enforcement of sec. 66-7 beginning September 1.
 
 
 

Budget Impact: – Estimated $2000 for outside translation and printing services, plus staff
time. 

246



Please call us with any questions or concerns

For more information, please scan
the QR code.

305-861-4863 ext. 233.

Llámenos si tiene alguna pregunta o inquietud

Para obtener más información,
favor de escanear el código QR.

Beginning March 1, 2024, the use of gas-powered leaf
blowers is prohibited within the Town of Surfside.

 Please help us transition to battery or electric-powered 
leaf blowers by Sep. 1, 2024.

E D U C A T I O N A L  B U L L E T I N

A partir de Marzo 1, 2024, el uso de los sopladores de hojas que son
operados con gasolina quedará prohibido. 

 Por favor ayúdenos a hacer la transición a sopladores de hojas eléctricos
o de  batería recargable antes del 1 de septiembre, del 2024.

TRANSITIONING FROM GAS-POWERED TO ELECTRIC
OR BATTERY-OPERATED LEAF BLOWERS

247



Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9E.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Vice Mayor Tina Paul
Subject: Ballot Question regarding Food & Beverage Tax (1 percent Homeless and
Domestic Violence tax)

Suggested Action: – To consider allowing a ballot measure in the upcoming general election
for Surfside voters to decide if they would like to participate in the countywide food & beverage
penny tax program to combat homelessness and support victims of domestic violence by
removing our exemption for the 1 percent tax or for the Town to continue providing a
significant donation to the Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust on a yearly basis. 

Background/Analysis: – Surfside is one of three communities currently exempt from the 1
percent tax program which has been in place for 30 years. The other two exempt
municipalities are Miami Beach and Bal Harbour. Both Miami Beach and Bal Harbour are
placing a ballot measure for voters to decide this issue on their respective ballots on
November 5, 2024.  
 
Surfside donated $50,000. to the Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust in 2019 and 2020, a
total amount of $100,000. donation. This donation was provided to compensate our exemption
from the 1 percent tax and prompted the other municipalities who do not contribute the 1
percent tax to also provide donations to the Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust, and resulted
in the Florida State Legislature also providing a $100,000. donation in 2019.
 
Prior to Surfside’s generous donation to the Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust, the County
pursued the 1 percent tax on Surfside and the two municipalities, as a legislative priority by
Resolution (see attached). 
 
The Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust works closely with the Domestic Violence Oversight
Board in efforts to combat homelessness and support victims of domestic violence. These
efforts can not fully address this issue until the current housing crisis and root cause for
homelessness are addressed. 
 
While the addition of the beach communities to the local 1 percent food & beverage tax option
will generate more funds for the Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust, our communities,
visitors, and businesses will absorb the cost. There may be a better option, if Miami-Dade
County considers adding a 1 percent tax on luxury developments and new developments. By

248



taxing luxury developments and new developments with the 1 percent tax instead of the beach
municipalities, more revenues for these needed services would be generated while providing a
level of accountability for the displacement of county residents and community gentrification
caused by these developments. This option is not currently being considered though it would
ultimately provide a benefit to the general public and the communities most affected by the
surge of Homelessness. 
 
In the letter to the Town from Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust dated January 13, 2021,
(see attached), the two $50,000. donations from Surfside were acknowledged with details of
how the funds provided necessary assistance to Homeless and Domestic Violence victims.
The beach municipalities should be able to continue providing a substantial donation to the
Miami-Dade County Homeless Trust in lieu of the 1 percent tax, however an actual solution for
Homelessness and Domestic Violence needs to be sought after by all municipalities in Miami-
Dade County and the Florida State Legislature.
 
Additional Information: If you or someone you know is Homeless or about to become
homeless, please call the Homeless Helpline at 1-877-994-HELP (4357).
 
 

249



OFFICI.U-FTLE COPY

CLEBX OF THE BOAJID

OF COLTVTV COirO^ISSIOSTRS
MIAMI-D.4DE COtJ>TY, FLORIDA

0-3

{,09

MEMORANDUM

Agenda Item No. 11(A) (14)

TO: Honorable Chairwoman Audrey M. Edmonson
and Members, Board of County Commissioners

DATE: February 20, 2019

FROM: Abigail Price-Williams
County Attorney

SUBJECT; Resolution urging the Florida
Legislature to expand the local
option food and beverage tax to
include food and beverage sales in
Bal Harbour Village, the City of
Miami Beach, and the Town of
Surfside which are currently
exempt; waiving the requirements
of Resolution No. R-764-13 limiting
the number of state legislative
priorities and amending Resolution
No. R-1105-18 to include this item

as an additional state legislative
priority for the 2019 session;
preliminarily identifying this item
as a priority for the 2020 session;
urging Bal Harbour Village, the
City of Miami Beach, and the Town
of Surfside to support the County's
legislative efforts to expand the
local option food and beverage tax;
and authorizing the members of the
Domestic Violence Oversight Board
to lobby those municipalities for
that purpose

Resolution No. R-214-19

The accompanymg resolution was prepared and placed on the agenda at the request of Co-Prime Sponsors
Vice Chairwoman Rebeca Sosa and Chairwoman Audrey M. Edmonson.

Aw^M Price-Williams
County Attorney

APW/cp

250



MEMORANDUM
(Revised)

TO: Honorable Chairwoman Audrey M. Edmonson
and Members, Bo^d of County Commissioners

DATE: February 20, 2019

FROM: ice-WallT

ttomev

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11(A) (14)

Please note any items checked.

"3-Day Rule" for committees applicable if raised

6 weeks required between first reading and public hearing

4 weeks notification to municipal officials required prior to public
hearing

Decreases revenues or increases expenditures without balancing budget

Budget required

Statement of fiscal impact required

Statement of social equity required

Ordinance creating a new board requires detailed County Mayor's
report for public hearing

No committee review

Applicable legislation requires more than a majority vote (i.e., 2/3's
3/5's , unanimous , CDMP 7 vote requirement per 2-116.1(3)(h)
or (4)(c) , CDMP 2/3 vote requirement per 2-116.1(3)(h) or (4)(c)

, or CDMP 9 vote requirement per 2-116.1(4)(c)(2) ^) to approve

Current information regarding funding source, index code and available
balance, and available capacitj' (if debt is contemplated) required

251



Approved

Veto

Override

Mayor Agenda Item No. 11(A)(14)
2-20-19

RESOLUTION NO. R-214-19

RESOLUTION URGING THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE TO

EXPAND THE LOCAL OPTION FOOD AND BEVERAGE TAX

TO INCLUDE FOOD AND BEVERAGE SALES IN BAL

HARBOUR VTLLAGE, THE CITY OF MIAMI BEACH, AND
TliE TOWN OF SURFSIDE WHICH ARE CURRENTLY

EXEMPT; WAIVING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RESOLUTION
NO. R-764-13 LIMITING THE NUMBER OF STATE

LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES AND AMENDING RESOLUTION

NO. R-1105-18 TO INCLUDE THIS ITEM AS AN ADDITIONAL

STATE LEGISLATIVE PRIORITY FOR THE 2019 SESSION;
PRELIMINARILY IDENTIFYING THIS ITEM AS A PRIORITY

FOR THE 2020 SESSION; URGING BAL HARBOUR VILLAGE,
THE CITY OF MIAMI BEACH, AND THE TOWN OF

SURFSIDE TO SUPPORT THE COUNTY'S LEGISLATIVE

EFFORTS TO EXPAND THE LOCAL OPTION FOOD AND

BEVERAGE TAX; AND AUTHORIZING THE MEMBERS OF

THE DOMESTIC VIOLENCE OVERSIGHT BOARD TO

LOBBY THOSE MUNICIPALITIES FOR THAT PURPOSE

WHEREAS, certain Florida counties are permitted by section 212.0306, Florida Statutes,

to levy a local option food and beverage tax (the "Food and Beverage Tax"); and

WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County (the "County") authorized the levy of tlie Food and

Beverage Tax by ordinance, now codified in section 29-51 of the Miami-Dade County Code of

Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, at least 15 percent of the proceeds of the Food and Beverage Tax must be

used for the construction and operation of new domestic violence centers, with the remaining

proceeds to be used for the provision of homeless services, shelter and housing; and

252



Agenda Item No. 11(A) (14)
Page No. 2

WHEREAS, no Food and Beverage Tax is levied upon food and beverage sales in Bal

Harbour Village, the City of Miami Beach, or the Town of Surfside (the "Beach Municipalities")

as those municipalities are exempt pursuant to section 212.0306(2)(d), Florida Statutes, which

expressly exempts sales in municipalities which pay the municipal resort tax authorized by chapter

67-930, Laws of Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Domestic Violence Oversight Board (the "DVOB") is empowered to

advise this Board as to all matters relating to domestic violence, including the use of the Food and

Beverage Tax proceeds; and

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2018, the DVOB adopted Resolution No. 2018-1 (the "DVOB

Resolution"), attached hereto as Attachment A, describing the need for increased funding for

shelter and services for those experiencing homelessness and those fleeing domestic violence and

urging this Board to act; and

WHEREAS, as explained in the DVOB Resolution, domestic violence is a safety threat

countywide, with no exception to the violence for the Beach Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, as explained in the DVOB Resolution, all three of the County-owned or

operated emergency domestic violence shelters are at or near full capacity, with some domestic

violence survivors tumed away for lack of space, and a fourth shelter currently under development

is expected to be operating at full capacity as soon as it is opened; and

WHEREAS, as explained in the DVOB Resolution, the County's homeless and domestic

violence centers serve residents in need countywide, including residents of the Beach

Municipalities; and

f
253



Agenda Item No. 11(A) (14)
Page No. 3

WHEREAS, the DVOB Resolution urges this Board to include in the County's 2019

legislative priorities that the Florida Legislature and the Miami-Dade Legislative Delegation work

to expand the Food and Beverage Tax to include food and beverage sales in the Beach

Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, this Board desires to identify this issue as a 2019 state legislative priority,

and to preliminarily identify this issue as a 2020 state legislative priority; and

WHEREAS, the DVOB Resolution further urges this Board to adopt and support a

resolution to urge the Beach Municipalities to support the County's legislative efforts to expand

the Food and Beverage Tax to include food and beverage sales in the Beach Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, this Board agrees with the DVOB Resolution that additional revenues need

to be identified in order to fiind cuiTent and future needs for services, shelter and housing for those

experiencing homelessness and tliose fleeing domestic violence; and

WHEREAS, the DVOB Resolution estimates that collecting the Food and Beverage Tax

in the Beach Municipalities could increase the annual tax proceeds by approximately $6.5 million;

and

WHEREAS, collection of the Food and Beverage Tax in the Beach Municipalities requires

a legislative amendment to section 212.0306, Florida Statutes, specifically section 212.0306(2)(d),

to remove the exemption for sales in those areas; and

WHEREAS, this Board desires to adopt the DVOB Resolution and incorporate it as if

fully set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, this Board desires to expand the Food and Beverage Tax to include sales in

the Beach Municipalities in order to provide additional funding to provide shelter and related

services to those experiencing homelessness and those fleeing domestic violence; and

254



Agenda Item No. 11 (A) (14)
Page No. 4

WHEREAS, this Board desires to autliorize the members of the DVOB to lobby the Beach

Municipalities to support the expansion of the Food and Beverage Tax,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COLTVTY

COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA, that this Board:

Section I. Approves the foregoing recitals, which are incorporated herein by

reference.

Section 2. Urges the Florida Legislature to expand the Food and Beverage Tax to

include food and beverage sales in the Beach Municipalities.

Section 3. Waives the requirements of Resolution No. R-764-13 limiting the number

of state legislative priorities and amends Resolution No. R-1105-18 to include this item as an

additional state legislative priority for the 2019 session.

Section 4. Preliminarily identifies the legislative action set forth in Section 2 above as

a priority for the 2020 legislative session.

Section 5. Urges the Beach Municipalities to support the County's legislative efforts

to expand the Food and Beverage Tax to include food and beverage sales in the Beach

Municipalities.

255



Agenda Item No. 11(A)(14)
Page No. 5

Section 6. Authorizes the members of the DVOB to lobby the Beach Municipalities to

support the legislative amendment and expansion of the Food and Beverage Tax described in this

resolution.

Section 7. Directs the Clerk of the Board to transmit a certified copy of tliis resolution

to the Governor, Senate President, House Speaker, the Chair and Members of the Miami-Dade

State Legislative Delegation, and the members of the Bal Harbour Village Council, Miami Beach

City Commission, and the Mayor, Vice Mayor and Town Commission of the Town of Surfside.

Section 8. Directs the County's state lobbyists to advocate for the actions set forth in

Section 2 above, and autliorizes and directs the Office of Intergovernmental Affairs to amend the

2019 State Legislative Package to include this item as a priority and to preliminaiily identify this

item as a priority when this Board determines priorities for the 2020 session as provided in

Resolution No. R-764-13.

The Co-Prime Sponsors of the foregoing resolution are Vice Chairwoman Rebeca Sosa

and Chairwoman Audrey M. Edmonson. It was offered by Commissioner Rebeca Sosa ,

who moved its adoption. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Audrey M. Fdmonson and

upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Audrey M. Edmonson, Chairwoman aye
Rebeca Sosa,Vice Chairwoman aye

Esteban L. Bovo, Jr. aye Daniella Levine Cava aye

Jose "Pepe" Diaz aye Sally A. Heyman aye

Eileen Higgins aye Barbara J. Jordan aye

Joe A. Martinez aye Jean Moncstime aye

Dennis C. Moss aye Sen. Javier D. Souto aye

Xavier L. Suarez aye

1

256



Agenda Item No. ll(A)(14)
Page No. 6

The Chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 20^^ day

of February, 2019. This resolution shall become effective upon the eai'lier of (1) 10 days after the

date of its adoption unless vetoed by the County Mayor, and if vetoed, shall become effective only

upon an override by this Board, or (2) approval by the County Mayor of this resolution and the

filing of this approval with the Clerk of the Board.

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

BY ITS BOARD OF

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

HARVEY RUVIN, CLERK

Linda L. Cave

By:

Approved by County Attorney as
to form and legal sufficiency.

Brenda Kuhns Neuman

Deputy Clerk

257



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-1 / .

I<£SOLUTION OF THE DOMESTIC VIOLENCE OVERSIGHT

BOARD URGING THE MIAMI-DADE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS TO INCLUDE IN THE COUNTY'S 2019

LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES THAT THE FLORIDA

LEGISLATURE AND THE MIAMI-DADE LEGISLATIVE

DELEGATION WORK TO AMEND AND EXPAND THE

LOCAL OPTION FOOD AND BEVERAGE TAX,
AUTHORIZED TO BE LEVIED BY SECTION 212.0306,

FLORIDA STATUTES TO INCLUDE FOOD AND BEVERAGE

SALES IN THE MUNICIPALITIES OF BAL HARBOR,

SURFSIDE, AND MIAMI BEACH; URGING TI-IE MIAMI-
DADE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS TO ADOPT

AND SUPPORT A RESOLUTION TO URGE SUCH

MUNICIPALITIES TO SUPPORT THE COUNTY'S

LEGISLATIVE EFFORTS TO EXPAND THE LOCAL OPTION

FOOD AND BEVERAGE TAX, AUTHORIZED TO BE LEVIED
BY SECTION 212.0306, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO INCLUDE
FOOD AND BEVERAGE SALES IN EACH OF THESE

MUNICIPALITIES; AND URGING THE Ml AMJ-DADE BOARD

OF COLTNTY COMMISSIONERS TO AUTHORIZE MEMBERS

OF THE DOMESTIC VIOLENCE OVERSIGHT BOARD TO

LOBBY SUCH MUNICIPALITIES TO SUPPORT THE

COUNTY'S LEGISLATIVE EFFORTS TO EXPAND THE

LOCAL OPTION FOOD AND BEVERAGE TAX TO INCLUDE

FOOD AND BEVERAGE SALES IN EACH OF THESE

MUNICIPALITIES

WHEREAS, Florida counties are permitted by Section 212.0306, Florida Statutes, to levy

a local option food and beverage tax ("Food and Beverage Tax"); and

WHEREAS, Miami-Dacte County (the "County") authorized the levy of the Food and

Beverage Tax by ordinance, now codified in Section 29-51 of the Miami-Dade County Code of

Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, at least 15 percent of the proceed.s of (he Food and Beverage Tax must be

used for the construction and operation of new domestic violence centers, with the remaining

proceeds to be used for the provision of homeless services, shelter and housing; and

IQ

9

258



Agenda Item No.
Page No. 2

WHEREAS, no Food and Beverage Tax is levied upon food and beverage sales in Bal

Harbor, Surfside or Miami Beach (the "Beach Municipalities") as those municipalities arc exempt

pursuant to Section 212.0306(2)(d), Florida Statutes, which expressly exempts sales in

municipalities which pay the municipal resort tax authorized by chapter 67-930, Laws of Florida-,

and

WHEREAS, domestic violence is a safety threat countywide, with no exception to the

violence for the Beach Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, according to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement ("FDLE")

Uniform Crime Report ("UCR"), between 2013 and 2017, there were 47,086 dome.slic violence-

related offenses In Miami-Dade County and 21,562 domestic violeiice-relaled arrests; and

WHEREAS, according to FDLE, those numbers include, for that same time period, 2,143

domestic violence-related offenses and, according to the Miami-Dade County Criminal Justice

Information System ("CJIS"), 1,698 domestic violence-related arrests, combined, in the Beach

Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, domestic violence and homelessness are closely related; and

WHEREAS, nationally, 63 percent of women experiencing homelessness have

experienced domestic violence as adults and more than 90 percent of women experiencing

homelessness have had physical or sexual abuse some time tn their lives, according to the National

Network to End Domestic Violence; and

WHEREAS, the Domestic Violence Oversight Board (the "DVOB^') desires to help those

fleeing domestic violence and those experiencing homelessness to secure safe, sustainable

housing; and

10

259



Agenda Item No.
Page No. 3

WHEREAS, to assist those fleeing domestic violence, advocates focus first on safety and

security, including emergency shelter; and

WHEREAS, to meet the need for emergency shelter from domestic violence, the County

owns three state-certified domestic violence emergency shelters with a total of 163 beds and 18

cribs, one of which was constructed with the proceeds of the Food and Beverage Tax; and

WHEREAS, all three of the County's emergency domestic violence shelters are operating

at or near full capacity, with some domestic violence survivors turned away for lack of space; and

WHEREAS, the County's homeless and domestic violence centers serve residents in need

countywide, including residents of the Beach Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, according to the Homeless Management Information System ("HMIS"),

between May 2013 and May 2018, 4,020 residents of Miami Beach who received homeless

emergency shelter and other housing assistance reported that they were fleeing domestic violence;

and

WHEREAS, according to the OSNIUM database management information system used

by the three County-owned state-certified domestic violence emergency shelters, as well as

program records from these shelters, over the last three years, 60 residents of Miami Beach have

stayed in these three County domestic violence shelters; and

WHEREAS, the construction of a fourth County domestic violence shelter is scheduled to

be completed in late 2019, using proceeds of the Food and Beverage Tax for domestic violence ;

and

WHEREAS, once completed, the fourth domestic violence shelter will add 60 beds for

domestic violence survivors but is expected to also be operating at or near full capacity as soon as

it is completed; and

II

260



Agenda Item No.
Page No, 4

WHEREAS, additional domestic violence shelters need to be built to meet current and

future needs of people fleeing domestic violence; aiid

WHEREAS, the Miami-Dadc Office of Budget Management estimates that the Food and

Beverage Tax proceeds for domestic violence will not support the construction of a fifth domestic

violence shelter until FY 2035-2036; and

WHEREAS, additional revenues need to be identified in order to fund current and future

needs for services, shelter and housing for those experiencing homelessness and those fleeing

domestic violence; and

WHEREAS, according to information received from the Miami-Dade County Tax

Collector's office, collecting the hood and Beverage Tax in the Beach Municipalities, based on

reliable estimates, should increase the annual tax proceeds by approximately $6.5 million; and

WHEREAS, these additional tax proceeds would significantly help provide the funding

that will be needed for additional domestic violence shelters and homeless services, shelter, and

housing that would serve residents countywide; and

WHEREAS, collection ofthe Food and Beverage Tax in The Beach Municipalities requires

a  legislative amendment to Section 212.0306, Florida Statutes, specifically Section

212.0306(2)(d), to remove the exemption for sales in those areas; and

WHEREAS, the role of the DVOB is to advise the Miarai-Dade Board of County

Commissioners (tlie "County Commission") as to all matters relating to domestic violence,

including the use of the Food and Beverage Tax proceeds; and

WHEREAS, the DVOB desires to increase funding for domestic violence shelter and

services in order to meet current and future needs of the residents of the County; and

II-

261



Agenda Item No.
Page No, 5

WHEREAS, expanding the Food and Beverage Tax to include sales in the Beach

Municipalities would provide much-needed funds and assist the County in providing shelter and

related services to those fleeing domestic violence; and

WHEREAS, the DVOB desires to urge the Count:>' Commission to include in the County's

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 legislative priorities that the Florida Legislature and the Miami-Dade

Legislative Delegation, work to amend and expand the Food and Beverage Tax to include food and

beverage sales in the Beach Municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the DVOB further desires to urge the County Commission to adopt and

support a resolution to urge the Beach Municipalities to support the County's legislative efforts in

order to solve the countywide need to assist those fleeing domestic violence and those experiencing

homelessness, which include residents of the Beach Municipalities,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

OVERSIGHT BOARD, that;

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated in this resolution and arc approved.

Section 2. This Board urges the County Commission to include in the County's 2019

legislative priorities that the Florida Legislature and the Miami-Dade Legislative Delegation work

to amend and expand the Food and Beverage Tax to include food and beverage sales in the Beach

Municipalities.

Section 3. This Board urges the County Commission to adopt and support a resolution

to urge the Beach Municipalities to support the County's legislative efforts to amend and expand

the Food and Beverage Tax to include food and beverage sales in the Beach Municipalities.

15

262



Agenda Item No.
Page No. 6

Section 4. This Board further urges the County Commission to authorize tlie members

of tiie DVOB to lobby the Beach Municipalities to support the legislative amendment and

expansion of the Food and Beverage Tax described in this resolution.

Section 5. This Board directs the County staff to transmit a copy of this resolution to

the County Commission and the Clerk of the Board.

It was offered by Board Member Carrie Q. Soubal, who moved its adoption. The motion

was seconded by Chairman Miguel De Grandy, Esquire, and upon being put to a vote, the vote

was as follows;

Miguel De Grandy, Esq., Chair aye
Carrie Q. Soubal, Vice-Chair aye

Sharon Aaron absent Ronald L. Book, Esq. aye
Constance Ann Collins, Esq. ab.sent Hon. Councilwoman Lisa Davis absent
Lucia Davis-Raiford aye Hon. Rosa Figarola absent
Chaplain Hector Figueroa aye Rosa E. Kasse aye
Ivon Mesa absent Hon. Migna Sanchez-Llorens aye
Kay M. Sullivan absent

The Chairperson thereupon declared the resolution duly passed and adopted this 27th day

of July, 2018.

Approved by County Attorney as
to form and legal sufficiency.

Brenda Kuhns Neuman

Assistant County Attorney

MlAMl-DAr>E CO

:Epvviol™

Miguel D^G,
Domestic Vic

Chairf
ght Board

263



5/3/24, 12:30 PMStatutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine

Page 1 of 3http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0212/Sections/0212.0306.html

 

Select Year:   2023  Go

The 2023 Florida Statutes (including Special Session C)

Title XIV
TAXATION AND FINANCE

Chapter 212
TAX ON SALES, USE, AND OTHER TRANSACTIONS

View Entire Chapter

212.0306  Local option food and beverage tax; procedure for levying; authorized uses; administration.—
(1) Any county, as defined in s. 125.011(1), may impose the following additional taxes, by ordinance adopted

by a majority vote of the governing body:

(a) At the rate of 2 percent on the sale of food, beverages, or alcoholic beverages in hotels and motels only.

(b) At the rate of 1 percent on the sale of food, beverages, or alcoholic beverages in establishments that are

licensed by the state to sell alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises, except for hotels and motels;

however, the tax shall not apply to any alcoholic beverage sold by the package for off-premises consumption.

(2)(a)1. The sales in any establishment licensed by the state to sell alcoholic beverages for consumption on

the premises, except for hotels and motels, that had gross annual revenues of $400,000 or less in the previous

calendar year, are exempt from the tax authorized by paragraph (1)(b).

2. For purposes of determining qualification for this exemption, each such establishment must determine the

annual gross revenues of the business at the end of each calendar year. If an establishment’s exemption status

changes, the establishment must cease or begin collection of the tax effective the following February 1, in

accordance with its new exemption status. An establishment must notify the tax collector of the county levying

the tax of such change in writing no later than 20 days after the end of the calendar year.

3. Each newly opened establishment must collect the tax authorized by paragraph (1)(b) for 45 days

commencing with its first day of business. After such time a newly opened business may cease collecting the tax

if its projected gross annual revenues are $400,000 or less. Projected gross annual revenues shall be determined

by dividing gross revenues for the first 45 days by 45, and multiplying the resulting quotient by 365. Newly

opened businesses which cease collecting the tax must notify the tax collector of the county levying the tax

within 20 days after the last day the tax is collected. A newly opened establishment which has been in business

for less than 45 days as of the end of its first calendar year is exempt from the provisions of subparagraph 2. for

that calendar year.

(b) Sales in any veterans’ organization are exempt from the tax authorized by paragraph (1)(b).

(c) All transactions that are exempt from the state sales tax are exempt from the taxes authorized by

subsection (1).

(d) Sales in cities or towns presently imposing a municipal resort tax as authorized by chapter 67-930, Laws of

Florida, are exempt from the taxes authorized by subsection (1); however, the tax authorized by paragraph (1)

(b) may be levied in such city or town if the governing authority of the city or town adopts an ordinance that is

subsequently approved by a majority of the registered electors in such city or town at a referendum held at a

general election as defined in s. 97.021. Any tax levied in a city or town pursuant to this paragraph takes effect

on the first day of January following the general election in which the ordinance was approved. A referendum to

264

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Index&Title_Request=XIV#TitleXIV
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0200-0299/0212/0212ContentsIndex.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0200-0299/0212/0212.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0125/Sections/0125.011.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0000-0099/0097/Sections/0097.021.html
Tina Paul



5/3/24, 12:30 PMStatutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine

Page 2 of 3http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0212/Sections/0212.0306.html

reenact an expiring tax authorized under this paragraph must be held at a general election occurring within the

48-month period immediately preceding the effective date of the reenacted tax, and the referendum may

appear on the ballot only once within the 48-month period.

(3)(a) The proceeds of the tax authorized by paragraph (1)(a) shall be allocated by the county to a

countywide convention and visitors bureau which, by interlocal agreement and contract with the county, has

been given the primary responsibility for promoting the county and its constituent cities as a destination site for

conventions, trade shows, and pleasure travel, to be used for purposes provided in s. 125.0104(5)(a)2. or 3.,

1992 Supplement to the Florida Statutes 1991. If the county is not or is no longer a party to such an interlocal

agreement and contract with a countywide convention and visitors bureau, the county shall allocate the

proceeds of such tax for the purposes described in s. 125.0104(5)(a)2. or 3., 1992 Supplement to the Florida

Statutes 1991.

(b) For the first 12 months, the proceeds from the tax authorized by paragraph (1)(b) shall be used by the

county to assist persons who have become, or are about to become, homeless. These funds shall be made

available for emergency homeless shelters, food, clothing, medical care, counseling, alcohol and drug abuse

treatment, mental health treatment, employment and training, education, and housing. Thereafter, not less

than 15 percent of these funds shall be made available for construction and operation of domestic violence

centers, and the remainder shall be used for the other purposes set forth in this paragraph. In addition, the

proceeds of the tax and the interest accrued on those proceeds may be used as collateral, pledged, or

hypothecated for projects authorized by this paragraph, including bonds issued in connection therewith. Prior to

enactment of the ordinance levying and imposing the tax provided for by paragraph (1)(b), the county shall

appoint a representative task force including, but not limited to, service providers, homeless persons’

advocates, and impacted jurisdictions to prepare and submit to the governing board of the county for its

approval a plan for addressing the needs of persons who have become, or are about to become, homeless. The

governing board of the county shall adopt this countywide plan for addressing homeless needs as part of the

ordinance levying the tax.

(c) The county and each municipality in that county shall continue to contribute each year at least 85 percent

of aggregate expenditures from the respective county or municipal general fund budget for county-operated or

municipally operated homeless shelter services at or above the average level of such expenditures in the 2 fiscal

years preceding the date of levying this tax.

(4) A certified copy of the ordinance that authorizes the imposition of a tax authorized by this section shall be

furnished by the county to the Department of Revenue within 10 days after the adoption of the ordinance.

(5) A tax authorized by this section may take effect on the first day of any month, but may not take effect

until at least 60 days after the adoption of the ordinance levying the tax.

(6) Any county levying a tax authorized by this section must locally administer the tax using the powers and

duties enumerated for local administration of the tourist development tax by s. 125.0104, 1992 Supplement to

the Florida Statutes 1991. The county’s ordinance shall also provide for brackets applicable to taxable

transactions.

(7) Each county shall also appoint an oversight board including, but not limited to, service providers,

domestic violence victim advocates, members of the judiciary, concerned citizens, a victim of domestic

violence, and impacted jurisdictions to prepare and submit to the governing board of the county for its approval

a plan for disbursing the funds made available for the construction and operation of domestic violence centers.

Each member of the county’s governing board shall appoint a member, and the county manager shall appoint

1

265

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0125/Sections/0125.0104.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0125/Sections/0125.0104.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0125/Sections/0125.0104.html
Tina Paul



5/3/24, 12:30 PMStatutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine

Page 3 of 3http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0200-0299/0212/Sections/0212.0306.html

two members, to the oversight board.
History.—s. 2, ch. 89-362; s. 4, ch. 93-233; ss. 1, 2, ch. 94-351; ss. 71, 72, ch. 94-353; s. 21, ch. 2023-157.

Note.—As amended by s. 71, ch. 94-353. Paragraph (b) was also amended by s. 1, ch. 94-351. The ch. 94-353 version is published

here as the last expression of legislative will. Paragraph (b), as amended by s. 1, ch. 94-351, reads:

(b) For the first 12 months, the proceeds from the tax authorized by paragraph (1)(b) shall be used by the county to assist persons

who have become, or are about to become, homeless. These funds shall be made available for emergency homeless shelters, food,

clothing, medical care, counseling, alcohol and drug abuse treatment, mental health treatment, employment and training, education,

and housing. Thereafter, not less than 15 percent of these funds shall be made available for construction and operation of domestic

violence centers, and the remainder shall be used for the other purposes set forth in this paragraph. In addition, the proceeds of the

tax and interest accrued may be used as collateral, pledged or hypothecated, for any projects authorized by this paragraph, including

bonds issued in connection therewith. Prior to enactment of the ordinance levying and imposing the tax provided for by paragraph (1)

(b), the county shall appoint a representative task force including, but not limited to, service providers, homeless advocates, and

impacted jurisdictions to prepare and submit to the governing board of the county for its approval a plan for addressing the needs of

persons who have become, or are about to become, homeless. The governing board of the county shall adopt this countywide plan for

addressing homeless needs as part of the ordinance levying the tax.

Note.—Former s. 125.0104(3)(n).

Copyright © 1995-2024 The Florida Legislature • Privacy Statement • Contact Us

1

266

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=privacy.html&Directory=welcome/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=contact.html&Directory=Info_Center/help/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4


5/6/24, 3:14 PMWhich states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

Page 1 of 6https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/

Home / Economy / Articles / Which states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

About 653,000 Americans experienced homelessness in January 2023

according to Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

point-in-time data, which measures homelessnessmeasures homelessness across the US on a

single night each winter. That’s a 12.1% increase from the same report in

2022.

The national rate of Americans experiencing homelessness in 2023 was

approximately 19.4 people per 10,000. Mississippi had the lowest rate of

homelessness, at 3.3 people per 10,000, while in other states — namely New

York and Vermont — the rate jumps to more than 50 per 10,000.

Washington, DC, comprised entirely of a single city, had rates higher than

any state, 72.5 per 10,000.

New York and Vermont have the nation's highest homelessness rates among
US states.
Homeless population per 10,000 people, 2023

 Page 1 of 3  Search in table

Which states have the highest and
lowest rates of homelessness?

New York, Vermont, and Oregon have the highest rates of homelessness across the 50

states.

Updated on Fri, March 29, 2024 by the USAFacts Team

All topics   AboutReports

267

https://usafacts.org/
https://usafacts.org/economy
https://usafacts.org/articles/category/economy
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sites/default/files/pdf/2023-AHAR-Part-1.pdf
https://usafacts.org/articles/how-many-homeless-people-are-in-the-us-what-does-the-data-miss/
https://usafacts.org/editorial-guidelines/
https://usafacts.org/
https://usafacts.org/reports


5/6/24, 3:14 PMWhich states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

Page 2 of 6https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/

In terms of raw numbers, California had the highest number of people

experiencing homelessness of any state: 181,399. New York had the nation’s

second-most with 103,200, followed by Florida with 30,756.

Homelessness isn’t a particularly urban or rural issue. Vermont is the

nation’s most rural statemost rural state — as of 2020, 65% of its population lived in rural

Source: Department of Housing and Urban Development • Get the data • Embed • Download image • Download SVG

State Homeless people per 10,000

Washington, DC 72.5

New York 52.7

Vermont 50.9

Oregon 47.6

California 46.6

Hawaii 43.4

Washington 35.9

Alaska 35.6

Maine 30.5

Massachusetts 27.3

Nevada 27.1

Colorado 24.6

Montana 19.2

Arizona 19.2

New Mexico 18.2

New Hampshire 17.4

Rhode Island 16.5

Minnesota 14.6

South Dakota 13.9

Florida 13.6

Data is based on point-in-time count that occurred during January 2023.

268

https://www.census.gov/newsroom/press-releases/2022/urban-rural-populations.html
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sites/default/files/pdf/2023-AHAR-Part-1.pdf
javascript:void(0)
https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/#
https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/#


5/6/24, 3:14 PMWhich states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

Page 3 of 6https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/

areas — and had one of the highest rates of homelessness. California and

Nevada are the states with the highest percentages of inhabitants in urban

areas, and their homelessness rates were also in the top 10.

Homelessness also always doesn't look the same; 4% of Vermont’s

unhoused population were unsheltered, compared to 68% of Californians

experiencing homelessness.

Where have homelessness rates changed the
most? 
From 2018 to 2023, homelessness in Vermont increased from 20.6 per

10,000 people to 50.9, the biggest increase in any state. California, Oregon,

and Maine saw increases of more than 10 people per 10,000.

Get facts first
Unbiased, data-driven insights in your inbox each week

Your email address... SIGN UP

Some states with high rates of homelessness have seen large increases in
the last five years.
Change in number of homeless people per 10,000 residents, 2018–23

New York
Vermont
Oregon
California
Hawaii
Washington
Alaska
Maine
Massachusetts
Nevada
Colorado
Montana
Arizona
New Mexico
New Hampshire
Rhode Island
Minnesota
South Dakota
Florida
Tennessee
Nebraska

Delaware

+5.7
+30.2

+13.0
+13.6

−2.5
+6.3
+8.3

+11.7
−1.8

+2.2
+5.5

+6.0
+5.4

+6.0
+6.7

+6.1
+1.7

+0.8
−1.0

+1.3
−0.1

+0.9

2018
|

2023
|

269



5/6/24, 3:14 PMWhich states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

Page 4 of 6https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/

Connecticut, Hawaii, and Maryland had the largest decreases in their

homelessness rates, though those decreases were comparably modest —

each had two to three fewer homeless people per 10,000 residents.

Why do some states have higher rates of
homelessness?
According to a 2020 Government Accountability O!ce report, rent prices

can play a role in homelessness rateshomelessness rates. California, Washington, DC, and

Hawaii had the nation’s highest rents in 2022 and among the highest rates

of homelessness in 2023; all three were in the top 10 nationally. West

Virginia and Mississippi had among the country’s lowest rents, and lower

homelessness rates.

Source: Department of Housing and Urban Development • Get the data • Embed • Download image • Download SVG

Delaware
Idaho
Oklahoma
Georgia
New Jersey
Missouri
Utah
Kentucky
North Dakota
Pennsylvania
Ohio
Illinois
Maryland
Wyoming
North Carolina
Texas
Kansas
Michigan
Indiana
Arkansas
Connecticut
Iowa
Wisconsin
West Virginia
Virginia
South Carolina
Louisiana
Alabama
Mississippi

+0.9
+0.2
+1.6

+2.1
+0.5
+1.2
+1.7
+2.3

+2.9
−0.9

+0.9
+1.2

−2.3
−1.9

+0.1
+0.1
+1.4
+0.6
+0.9

−0.5
−2.8
−0.5
−0.2

+1.1
+0.7

−0.2
+0.4

−0.6
−1.2

Data based on point-in-time counts from January 2018 and January 2023.

270

https://www.gao.gov/assets/gao-20-433.pdf
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/ahar/2023-ahar-part-1-pit-estimates-of-homelessness-in-the-us.html
javascript:void(0)
https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/#
https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/#


5/6/24, 3:14 PMWhich states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

Page 5 of 6https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/

These "gures are likely also a#ected by di!culties counting the homeless

population. Rural states and states with lots of unsheltered homeless

people face unique challenges in estimating their homeless populations.

Read more about di!culties counting homeless populationsdi!culties counting homeless populationsdi!culties counting homeless populationsdi!culties counting homeless populations, learn

about standard of living in the USstandard of living in the USstandard of living in the USstandard of living in the US, and get the facts every week by

signing up for our newslettersigning up for our newslettersigning up for our newslettersigning up for our newsletter.

S O U R C E S  &  F O O T N O T E S

Source: Department of Housing and Urban Development • Get the data • Embed • Download image • Download SVG

States with more expensive rent tend to have higher homelessness rates.
2023 homelessness rate and 2022 median gross rent for each state and Washington, DC

0

25

50

75

800 1K 1.2K 1.4K 1.6K $1.8K

Washington, Washington, 
DCDC

Washington, 
DC

New YorkNew YorkNew YorkVermontVermontVermont

CaliforniaCaliforniaCaliforniaHawaiiHawaiiHawaii
WashingtonWashingtonWashington

West VirginiaWest VirginiaWest Virginia

Median gross rentMedian gross rentMedian gross rentMedian gross rentMedian gross rentMedian gross rentMedian gross rent

Median gross rent

Homeless per 10KHomeless per 10KHomeless per 10KHomeless per 10KHomeless per 10KHomeless per 10KHomeless per 10K

Homeless per 10K

Median gross rent reported in the Census Bureau's American Community Survey.

Which states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

271

https://usafacts.org/articles/how-many-homeless-people-are-in-the-us-what-does-the-data-miss
https://usafacts.org/topics/standard-of-living/
https://usafacts.org/signup/
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sites/default/files/pdf/2023-AHAR-Part-1.pdf
javascript:void(0)
https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/#
https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/#
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Py4JxuH9nms


5/6/24, 3:14 PMWhich states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness?

Page 6 of 6https://usafacts.org/articles/which-states-have-the-highest-and-lowest-rates-of-homelessness/

Our nation, in numbers
USAFacts is a not-for-profit, nonpartisan

civic initiative making government data

easy for all Americans to access and

understand.

Topics to
explore

Crime

Defense and
security

Economy

Education

Environment

Government

Health

Population

More

About USAFacts

Reports

Editorial
Guidelines

Data Sources

FAQ

© 2024 USAFacts. All rights reserved. Contact Us Privacy Policy Terms of Service

Department of Housing and Urban Development
2023 Annual Homeless Assessment Report to Congress

Last updated
December 2023

272

https://usafacts.org/crime/
https://usafacts.org/defense-and-security/
https://usafacts.org/economy/
https://usafacts.org/education/
https://usafacts.org/environment/
https://usafacts.org/government/
https://usafacts.org/health/
https://usafacts.org/population-and-society/
https://usafacts.org/about-usafacts/
https://usafacts.org/reports/
https://usafacts.org/editorial-guidelines/
https://usafacts.org/data-sources/
https://usafacts.org/faq/
https://www.facebook.com/USAFacts
https://twitter.com/USAFacts
https://www.instagram.com/usafacts
https://www.tiktok.com/@usafacts.org?lang=en
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UChwTFs3rYtFi-6ujmKtv-9Q
https://usafacts.org/rss/
https://usafacts.org/contact-us/
https://usafacts.org/privacy-policy/
https://usafacts.org/terms-and-conditions/
https://www.huduser.gov/portal/sites/default/files/pdf/2023-AHAR-Part-1.pdf


273



274



275



Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9F.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Vice Mayor Tina Paul
Subject: Sustainability Initiatives for the Town to Implement.

Suggested Action: – For Surfside to continue to lead with Sustainable initiatives by
eliminating single use plastics in Town facilities and Town sponsored events, implementation
of a Composting program, encouragement of Edible Gardens, and to consider reestablishing
the Sustainability and Resiliency Committee.

Background/Analysis: – Surfside has been a leader in developing a wide range of
sustainability and resiliency initiatives related to the impacts of climate change as well as
programs that demonstrate a culture of environmental stewardship. These activities are
fundamental to promoting and maintaining a well-informed and capable community. This is
evidenced by 1) mitigation including such initiatives as creating a Property Assessed Clean
Energy (PACE) District, establishing Florida Friendly landscaping requirements, enhancing our
urban canopy, incentivizing the installation of solar PV systems, and completing a greenhouse
gas emissions inventory; 2) adaptation including such initiatives as revamping our floodplain
management regulations, improving our stormwater system, advocating for beach re-
nourishment and enhancing our Zoning Code; and 3) resiliency including such initiatives as
creating a community garden and green dog park, and various programs that build a sense of
community. In addition, Surfside forged strategic relationships with the South Florida Regional
Climate Compact, the Resilient 305 Program through the 100 Resilient Cities Initiative of the
Rockefeller Foundation, the Compact of Mayors, the American Flood Coalition, the Youth
Environmental Alliance, Florida International University, the University of Miami, Environment
America’s “Mayors for Solar Energy,” Solar United Neighbors, ICLE-Local Governments for
Sustainability, and the CLEO Institute to build a broad coalition to support strengthening our
adaptation, mitigation and resiliency initiatives. This Commission shall revisit these alliances
and continue efforts to create a more sustainable and resilient community.
 
Environmental efforts for protection of our fragile ecosystem have stalled in recent years. By
reactivating these initiatives within Town owned facilities and events, we can build upon a
more conscientious, kinder, thoughtful community with initiatives that minimize our
environmental impacts. 
 

276



EARTH�ORG IS POWERED BY OVER ��� CONTRIBUTING WRITERS

CLIMATE CHANGE� GUIDES

Explainer: What Is Ecotourism?
What can I do

CRISIS � VIABILITY OF LIFE ON EARTH  BY ROSE MORRISON GLOBAL COMMONS JAN ��ND ���� � MINS

�e world has slowly become more connected over time. People take an interest in other cultures
and want to experience them themselves. Traveling is an exciting part of life because it broadens

MOVEMENT SUPPORT

Climate Change  Energy  Pollution  Policy & Economics  Oceans  Biodiversity  Conservation

Solutions  Guides

ABOUT SEARCH
SIGN
UP

277

https://earth.org/write-for-us/
https://earth.org/climate-change
https://earth.org/climate-change
https://earth.org/guides
https://earth.org/what-can-i-do
https://earth.org/Crises/viability-of-life-on-earth
https://earth.org/author/rose-morrison/
https://earth.org/location/polar-regions
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://movement.earth.org/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://kids.earth.org/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://www.facebook.com/earth.org
https://www.instagram.com/earthorg/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/earth-org/
https://twitter.com/EarthOrg
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCiKZx3j6WlIoQBU6h7WqF7A/videos


your horizons and provides excellent educational opportunities, but how can you do so
sustainably? To celebrate World Tourism Day ���� under the theme “Tourism and green
investment”, we dive deep into the world of ecotourism and explore new and innovative
solutions to promote the movement of people around the world. 

—

What Is Ecotourism?
Ecotourism involves traveling sustainably. When you vacation, domestically or abroad, you stay
conscious of the environment as much as possible. Ecotourists try to limit their carbon footprint
and support local ecosystems by contributing positively. For example, they could eat at a local
restaurant or refrain from using plastic on their trip. Ecotourism has become critical as people try
to expand their worldview while staying environmentally conscious. 

Why Should You Practice Ecotourism?
Tourism is vital for many communities worldwide. Vacationers spend their money to help small
businesses thrive and to stimulate local economies. However, tourism can negatively impact the
environment. A ���� study found that tourism is responsible for nearly �% of the world’s carbon
dioxide (CO�) emissions, most of which came from food and waste management. 

Your Contribution Makes a Di�erence
Every donation counts in our �ght against climate change. Join us in making a real impact by supporting our

research, data analysis, and policy solutions.

DONATE TODAY

�e pandemic hit the tourism industry with a steep ��% decline in international travel. Many
countries had lockdowns in place to prevent COVID-�� transmission from foreign places. While

MOVEMENT SUPPORT

Climate Change  Energy  Pollution  Policy & Economics  Oceans  Biodiversity  Conservation

Solutions  Guides

ABOUT SEARCH
SIGN
UP

278

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0959652622028098#:~:text=From%20an%20economic%20point%20of,of%20the%20world's%20carbon%20emissions).
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://www.unwto.org/news/2020-worst-year-in-tourism-history-with-1-billion-fewer-international-arrivals
https://www.unwto.org/news/2020-worst-year-in-tourism-history-with-1-billion-fewer-international-arrivals
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://movement.earth.org/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://kids.earth.org/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/


this contributed to a signi�cant drop in carbon emissions in ����, tourist-dependent nations
su�ered huge economic losses.

�ree years after the �rst case was detected in Wuhan, China, the pandemic is �nally winding
down and international travel is resuming, with air tra�c set to reach ���� levels soon. Last year
saw a ���% increase in air travel compared to ���� and about ��% pre-pandemic levels. In ����,
air tra�c is expected to continue rising as most countries lift restrictions.

�e bounce-back of tourism means the same will happen in terms of emissions. In ����, GHG
emissions increased by �% in the �rst quarter compared to ����. 

It is critical to practice ecotourism as global warming becomes more apparent. You’ll bene�t from
learning and becoming a better friend to the environment. Implementing ecotourism comes with
many bene�ts:

Educate yourself: �e most signi�cant bene�t of ecotourism is educating yourself on environmental

issues. If you �nd ways to be environmentally conscious on your trip, you are more likely to repeat those

behaviors at home. Reading literature and research from scientists puts into perspective how the planet

needs your help to survive.

Protect resources: Sustainable travel means using natural and renewable resources to improve the planet’s

health. You’re protecting the environment around you from the negative impacts of travel. If you believe in

leaving something better than when you found it, ecotourism is the way to go.

Help economies: Practicing ecotourism means other vacationers behind you also get to enjoy a clean

environment. One way is by spending your money at local businesses. �ese shops are the heart of

communities and give the location its remarkable personality. Patronising these companies helps them

grow and continue their services for future visitors.

How Can You Be Mindful on Vacation?

MOVEMENT SUPPORT

Climate Change  Energy  Pollution  Policy & Economics  Oceans  Biodiversity  Conservation

Solutions  Guides

ABOUT SEARCH
SIGN
UP

279

https://www.iata.org/en/pressroom/2023-releases/2023-02-06-02/
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/products-eurostat-news/-/ddn-20220816-1#:~:text=In%20the%20first%20quarter%20of,1%20035%20million%20tonnes%20of
https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/products-eurostat-news/-/ddn-20220816-1#:~:text=In%20the%20first%20quarter%20of,1%20035%20million%20tonnes%20of
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://movement.earth.org/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://kids.earth.org/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/


It’s challenging to be perfect regarding your carbon footprint when traveling, but there are ways
to limit your environmental impact abroad and contribute positively to the area. �ese �ve ways
show how you can be a mindful ecotourist on your next trip. 

�. Research Ecotourism Locations

Ecotourism starts before you travel. Research as thoroughly as possible to see what destinations
are the most conducive to ecotourism and �nd ways to be an ecotourist at the location. For
example, you could look for hotels with biophilic designs. �ese spaces combine buildings with
nature to maintain a connection with the environment. You may see natural materials like
hardwood, stones, and trees inside the facility.  

Ecotourism means accounting for your environmental impact, but you should also examine how
the area cares about green practices. When planning a trip, search for cities that implement eco-
friendly policies to promote ecotourism. For example, Seattle, Washington, uses hydroelectric
power for nearly ���% of its energy consumption.

�. Beware of Greenwashing

Talking about environmentally friendly practices is one thing, but implementing them and
supporting the planet are the next steps that some businesses do not take. You may know this
strategy as greenwashing. Due diligence can tell you which organisations stay true to their word
and which only use eco-friendliness as a marketing term. 

It is essential to be able to spot greenwashing when you travel. Research hotels and businesses in
the area and review their practices. How do they align with environmentally positive initiatives
that they claim? For example, in ����, Hilton said it would reduce CO� emissions. However,
critics accused the company of greenwashing because it cut down palm and mangrove trees to
build its resort in the Maldives. Tearing down palm trees signi�cantly a�ects carbon levels in the
atmosphere. 

One way to research a company like Hilton for greenwashing is to examine its environmental,
social and governance (ESG) scores. �ese metrics track companies’ operations and give an

MOVEMENT SUPPORT

Climate Change  Energy  Pollution  Policy & Economics  Oceans  Biodiversity  Conservation

Solutions  Guides

ABOUT SEARCH
SIGN
UP

280

https://50floor.com/blog/what-is-biophilic-interior-design/
https://50floor.com/blog/what-is-biophilic-interior-design/
https://renovated.com/environmentally-safe-cities/
https://renovated.com/environmentally-safe-cities/
https://earth.org/what-is-greenwashing/
https://www.cabi.org/leisuretourism/news/15943
https://www.bloomberg.com/professional/dataset/global-environmental-social-governance-data/#:~:text=Bloomberg's%20Environmental%2C%20Social%20%26%20Governance%20(,and%20country%2Dspecific%20data%20points.
https://www.bloomberg.com/professional/dataset/global-environmental-social-governance-data/#:~:text=Bloomberg's%20Environmental%2C%20Social%20%26%20Governance%20(,and%20country%2Dspecific%20data%20points.
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://movement.earth.org/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://kids.earth.org/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/


objective measurement to gauge practices. Organisations like Bloomberg developed databases
that show exhaustive lists of ESG scores. �ey monitor thousands of businesses worldwide, so it
is easier to see which are telling the truth beyond their ‘green’ campaigns.  

�. Visit a Wildlife Refuge

Part of ecotourism is �nding ways to limit your environmental impact, but you can make positive
contributions while still having fun. Visit a wildlife refuge when on vacation. �ese sanctuaries
are some of the best places to support wildlife conservation and educate yourself. 

Photo by Joshua J. Cotten on Unsplash

Wildlife refuges provide large, safe, and green spaces for animals to thrive. Many of them risk
extinction and can thrive in a sanctuary. �e money you spend at the refuges goes toward keeping
the facilities standing and funding research to examine these animals. �ere are wildlife

MOVEMENT SUPPORT

Climate Change  Energy  Pollution  Policy & Economics  Oceans  Biodiversity  Conservation

Solutions  Guides

ABOUT SEARCH
SIGN
UP

281

https://www.bloomberg.com/professional/dataset/global-environmental-social-governance-data/#:~:text=Bloomberg's%20Environmental%2C%20Social%20%26%20Governance%20(,and%20country%2Dspecific%20data%20points.
https://www.bloomberg.com/professional/dataset/global-environmental-social-governance-data/#:~:text=Bloomberg's%20Environmental%2C%20Social%20%26%20Governance%20(,and%20country%2Dspecific%20data%20points.
https://unsplash.com/@jcotten?utm_source=unsplash&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=creditCopyText
https://unsplash.com/photos/zV3VRxc9I14?utm_source=unsplash&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=creditCopyText
https://www.fws.gov/visit-us/refuges?type=%5B%22National%20Wildlife%20Refuge%22%5D
https://www.fws.gov/visit-us/refuges?type=%5B%22National%20Wildlife%20Refuge%22%5D
https://www.fws.gov/visit-us/refuges?type=%5B%22National%20Wildlife%20Refuge%22%5D
https://www.fws.gov/visit-us/refuges?type=%5B%22National%20Wildlife%20Refuge%22%5D
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://movement.earth.org/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://kids.earth.org/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/


sanctuaries in all �� states and �ve territories in the U.S. Internationally, there are numerous
opportunities on every continent to support conservation. 

Seeing wildlife is a terri�c experience, but remember to be mindful when visiting. For example,
do not disturb animals by calling or touching them, and refrain from feeding them, even if they
approach you. �ese creatures have special diets and oftentimes, human food is not suitable for
them. If you bring food, clean up your waste afterward. Curious wildlife may get their heads
stuck in plastic containers or eat things they are not supposed to.

�. Use Green Transportation Methods

Another way to practice ecotourism is to use green transportation methods. �is strategy is
something you can do abroad and practice at home. Eco-friendly transit reduces your carbon
footprint signi�cantly because it reduces greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and negative
environmental impacts.

MOVEMENT SUPPORT

Climate Change  Energy  Pollution  Policy & Economics  Oceans  Biodiversity  Conservation

Solutions  Guides

ABOUT SEARCH
SIGN
UP

282

https://www.fws.gov/visit-us/refuges?type=%5B%22National%20Wildlife%20Refuge%22%5D
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://movement.earth.org/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://kids.earth.org/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/


Photo by freestocks on Unsplash

Depending on your destination, you should search for ways to take public transportation. �ese
options may include buses, trains and metro lines. Public transit is more e�cient than passenger
vehicles because it emits ��% fewer CO� emissions than cars on the road. Use bicycles and other
low-emissions options if it’s not available. 

�. Learn Local Customs

Ecotourism goes hand-in-hand with mindful traveling. When you vacation, try to be one with
the culture and immerse yourself. �at’s how you get the most out of your travels. Learn local
customs and �nd out what the residents do. �ey say when in Rome, do as the Romans do —
and that’s a solid start for being an ecotourist.

Eating local food is an excellent way to immerse yourself and be an ecotourist. Ask a guide or
resident where the best places to eat are. Small businesses and restaurants are likelier to have a
lower carbon footprint than tourist traps. Find establishments that source their food locally. �e
shortened supply chain delivers delicious items at a lower price than you may see in chains.

Being an Ecotourist Worldwide
Calls for sustainability are growing as humans begin recognising their negative environmental
impact. You can �nd ways to lower your carbon footprint at home, and you should keep the same
mindful attitude when traveling abroad. Focus on being an ecotourist and helping the
environment wherever you go.

You might also like: Can EcoTourism Save Coral Reefs?

TAGGED� EXPLAINER  SUSTAINABLE TOURISM

MOVEMENT SUPPORT

Climate Change  Energy  Pollution  Policy & Economics  Oceans  Biodiversity  Conservation

Solutions  Guides

ABOUT SEARCH
SIGN
UP

283

https://unsplash.com/@freestocks?utm_source=unsplash&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=creditCopyText
https://unsplash.com/photos/9nxbSS-lK1o?utm_source=unsplash&utm_medium=referral&utm_content=creditCopyText
https://transportation.ucla.edu/blog/5-environmental-benefits-sustainable-transportation
https://earth.org/ecotourism-coral-reefs/
https://earth.org/tag/explainer/
https://earth.org/tag/sustainable-tourism/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://earth.org/
https://movement.earth.org/
https://earth.org/donations/
https://kids.earth.org/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/climate-change/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/energy/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/pollution/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/policy-and-economics/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/oceans/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/biodiversity/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/conservation/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/solutions/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/
https://earth.org/guides/


Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9G.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Mayor Charles W. Burkett
Subject: On-Street Parking

Suggested Action: – Have the commission provide direction on how to address parking,
traffic flow and construction at the end of Biscaya Drive.

Background/Analysis: – Please see the attached email string. Fla. Stat. Section 316.008(1)
(a) may assist in providing relief.

284



From: Paul Jacobsen
To: Charles Burkett
Subject: Re: BISCAYA ISLAND ILLEGAL PARKING
Date: Friday, May 3, 2024 3:38:21 PM
Attachments: image002.png

[NOTICE:  This message originated outside of the Town of Surfside -- DO NOT CLICK on links
or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

I am going to start parking in the street. My right to park in front of my house or
anywhere on the east side of the street is not going to be taken from me for  the
convenience of the builders. I am going to encourage my neighbors to do the same.
How dare the town discriminate against the longtime residents. Get the cones out of
there. Enough is enough.

On Fri, May 3, 2024 at 12:28 PM Charles Burkett <mayor@townofsurfsidefl.gov> wrote:

Paul,

 

I am being told that parking on the side of the street is permitted, while blocking the street is
not.  An accommodation has been made and parking has been discouraged on the south side
of the street, but you raise a fair point in your email.

 

Stopping the blockage of traffic was the initial goal and I believe for the most part,
excepting deliveries by large trucks, that goal has been accomplished.

 

If the new goal is to prevent any parking on any part of Biscaya Drive, other than for
residents, our town attorney will have to provide legal support for that, or, our town
commission will have to direct it.

 

By way of this email, I am asking the town clerk to put this issue on the next agenda so a
decision can be made.

 

Charles

 

Charles W. Burkett
Mayor

285

mailto:dr.paul.jacobsen@gmail.com
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=cb663df7ab0744f9ae0958d20431e734-Charles W.
mailto:mayor@townofsurfsidefl.gov



Town of Surfside
9293 Harding Avenue
Surfside, Florida  33154
305-517-1175

Mayor@TownofSurfsidefl.gov

 

From: Paul Jacobsen <dr.paul.jacobsen@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 11:48 AM
To: Charles Burkett <mayor@townofsurfsidefl.gov>; Tina Paul
<tpaul@townofsurfsidefl.gov>; Carmen Santos-Alborna <csantos-
alborna@townofsurfsidefl.gov>; Darryl Wall <darylwall@bellsouth.net>; Jonathan Horn
<jsh@horncapital.com>
Subject: BISCAYA ISLAND ILLEGAL PARKING

 

[NOTICE:  This message originated outside of the Town of Surfside -- DO NOT
CLICK on links or open attachments unless you are sure the content is safe.]

Good Morning Charlie,

 

I have not heard if you have received any clarification of the town code from the
town attorney. There are at least 12 construction-related vehicles on the west side
of Biscaya Drive after the bend.  Meanwhile the residents on the east side of
Biscaya Drive are PROHIBITED BY THE TOWN   from parking in the street
in front of their own homes either personally or their guests, service staff,
housekeepers ,nannies, repairmen, etc.; prohibited by the city  by city placing
parking cones and tape.  Myself not being one of the lawbreaking building class
have offered my driveway to my neighbors since SURFSIDE PROHIBITS ME
AND THEM FROM PARKING ON THE STREET IN FRONT OF OUR
HOME WHILE THE CONTRACTORS/CONSTRUCTION WORKERS
OWN THE STREET.

 

286

mailto:Mayor@TownofSurfsidefl.gov
mailto:dr.paul.jacobsen@gmail.com
mailto:mayor@townofsurfsidefl.gov
mailto:tpaul@townofsurfsidefl.gov
mailto:csantos-alborna@townofsurfsidefl.gov
mailto:csantos-alborna@townofsurfsidefl.gov
mailto:darylwall@bellsouth.net
mailto:jsh@horncapital.com


I know you want clarification of the town code but it could not be more clear:

 

"Construction of single family and duplex construction sites shall not be allowed
to block the

 right-of-way, except for temporary deliveries of materials and machinery that
only partially block the right-of-way and allow for continued use of the right-of-
way by vehicles and pedestrians."

 

Nothing has been done.  Please advise that the code is going to be enforced.
Otherwise I will take action and Surfside will once again be famously
newsworthy.

 

Sincerely,

 

Paul

NOTE: Florida Public Records Law provides that most written communications to or from
Municipal employees regarding town business are public records, available to the public and
media upon request. Therefore, this e-mail message may be subject to public disclosure.

287



���������	�
��� ������������������������������

�����	���� !�!288



 

Select Year:   2023  Go

The 2023 Florida Statutes (including Special Session C)

Title XXIII
MOTOR VEHICLES

Chapter 316
STATE UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL

View Entire Chapter

316.008 Powers of local authorities.—
(1) The provisions of this chapter shall not be deemed to prevent local authorities, with respect to streets and

highways under their jurisdiction and within the reasonable exercise of the police power, from:
(a) Regulating or prohibiting stopping, standing, or parking.
(b) Regulating traffic by means of police officers or official traffic control devices.
(c) Regulating or prohibiting processions or assemblages on the streets or highways, including all state or

federal highways lying within their boundaries.
(d) Designating particular highways or roadways for use by traffic moving in one direction.
(e) Establishing speed limits for vehicles in public parks.
(f) Designating any street as a through street or designating any intersection as a stop or yield intersection.
(g) Restricting the use of streets.
(h) Regulating the operation of bicycles.
(i) Regulating or prohibiting the turning of vehicles or specified types of vehicles.
(j) Altering or establishing speed limits within the provisions of this chapter.
(k) Requiring written crash reports.
(l) Designating no-passing zones.
(m) Prohibiting or regulating the use of controlled access roadways by any class or kind of traffic.
(n) Prohibiting or regulating the use of heavily traveled streets by any class or kind of traffic found to be

incompatible with the normal and safe movement of traffic.
(o) Designating hazardous railroad grade crossings in conformity to criteria promulgated by the Department of

Transportation.
(p) Designating and regulating traffic on play streets.
(q) Prohibiting pedestrians from crossing a roadway in a business district or any designated highway except on a

crosswalk.
(r) Regulating pedestrian crossings at unmarked crosswalks.
(s) Regulating persons upon skates, coasters, and other toy vehicles.
(t) Adopting and enforcing such temporary or experimental regulations as may be necessary to cover

emergencies or special conditions.
(u) Enacting ordinances or erecting signs in the rights-of-way to control, regulate, or prohibit hitchhiking on

streets or highways, including all state or federal highways lying within their boundaries.
(v) Regulating, restricting, or prohibiting traffic within the boundary of any airport owned by the state, a

county, a municipality, or a political subdivision and enforcing violations under the provisions of this chapter and
chapter 318.

(w) Regulating, restricting, or monitoring traffic by security devices or personnel on public streets and
highways, whether by public or private parties and providing for the construction and maintenance of such streets
and highways.

(2) The municipality, through its duly authorized officers, shall have nonexclusive jurisdiction over the
prosecution, trial, adjudication, and punishment of violations of this chapter when a violation occurs within the

5/7/24, 9:19 AM Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine

www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/03… 1/3
289

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Index&Title_Request=XXIII#TitleXXIII
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0300-0399/0316/0316ContentsIndex.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0300-0399/0316/0316.html


municipality and the person so charged is charged by a municipal police officer. The disposition of such matters in
the municipality shall be in accordance with the charter of that municipality. This subsection does not limit those
counties which have the charter power to provide and regulate arterial, toll, and other roads, bridges, tunnels, and
related facilities from the proper exercise of those powers pertaining to the consolidation and unification of a
traffic court system within such counties.

(3) No local authority shall erect or maintain any official traffic control device at any location so as to regulate
the traffic on any state road unless approval in writing has first been obtained from the Department of
Transportation.

(4) A county or municipality may enact an ordinance providing a fine for the violation of s. 316.1955 in excess
of the fine specified by s. 318.18(6), except that such a fine may not exceed $250. Any such ordinance may provide
for the deposit of such fines in a separate county or municipal account to be used in the following manner:

(a) One-third to be used to defray expenses for the administration of this subsection.
(b) Two-thirds to be used to provide funds to improve accessibility and equal opportunity to qualified persons

who have disabilities in the county or municipality and to provide funds to conduct public awareness programs in
the county or municipality concerning persons who have disabilities.

(5)(a) A county or municipality may enact an ordinance providing a fine for the violation of s. 316.1945(1)(b)2.
or 5. in excess of the fine specified by s. 318.18(2), except that such fine may not exceed the fine specified in s.
318.18(2) by more than $3. However, such ordinance shall provide that the fines collected pursuant to this
subsection in excess of the fines which would be collected pursuant to s. 318.18(2) for such violations shall be used
by the county or municipality for the purpose of funding a firefighter education program. The amount of the fines
collected pursuant to this subsection in excess of the fines which would be collected pursuant to s. 318.18(2) for
such violations shall be reported on a monthly basis by the clerk of the court to the appropriate county or
municipality.

(b) A county or municipality may enact an ordinance which dedicates a portion of any fine collected for a
violation of such ordinance for the purpose of funding a firefighter education program, if such ordinance is limited
to the regulation of parking within a firesafety zone.

(6) A county or municipality may enact an ordinance providing for the establishment of a “combat automobile
theft” program, and may charge a fee for the administration of the program and the cost of the decal. Such a
program shall include:

(a) Consent forms for motor vehicle owners who wish to enroll their vehicles.
(b) Decals indicating a vehicle’s enrollment in the “combat automobile theft” program. The Department of Law

Enforcement shall approve the color, design, and other specifications of the program decal.
(c) A consent form signed by a motor vehicle owner provides authorization for a law enforcement officer to

stop the vehicle when it is being driven between the hours of 1 a.m. and 5 a.m., provided that a decal is
conspicuously affixed to the bottom left corner of the back window of the vehicle to provide notice of its
enrollment in the “combat automobile theft” program. The owner of the motor vehicle is responsible for removing
the decal when terminating participation in the program, or when selling or otherwise transferring ownership of the
vehicle. No civil liabilities will arise from the actions of a law enforcement officer when stopping a vehicle with a
yellow decal evidencing enrollment in the program when the driver is not enrolled in the program provided that the
stop is made in accordance with the requirements of the “combat automobile theft” program.

(7)(a) A county or municipality may enact an ordinance to permit, control, or regulate the operation of
vehicles, golf carts, mopeds, motorized scooters, electric bicycles, and electric personal assistive mobility devices
on sidewalks or sidewalk areas when such use is permissible under federal law. The ordinance must restrict such
vehicles or devices to a maximum speed of 15 miles per hour in such areas.

(b)1. Except as provided in subparagraph 2., a personal delivery device and a mobile carrier may be operated
on sidewalks and crosswalks within a county or municipality when such use is permissible under federal law. This
paragraph does not restrict a county or municipality from otherwise adopting regulations for the safe operation of
personal delivery devices and mobile carriers.

5/7/24, 9:19 AM Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine

www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/03… 2/3
290

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.1955.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0318/Sections/0318.18.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.1945.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0318/Sections/0318.18.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0318/Sections/0318.18.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0318/Sections/0318.18.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0318/Sections/0318.18.html


2. A personal delivery device may not be operated on the Florida Shared-Use Nonmotorized Trail Network
created under s. 339.81 or components of the Florida Greenways and Trails System created under chapter 260.

(8)(a) A county or municipality may use traffic infraction detectors to enforce s. 316.074(1) or s. 316.075(1)
(c)1. when a driver fails to stop at a traffic signal on streets and highways under its jurisdiction under s. 316.0083.
Only a municipality may install or authorize the installation of any such detectors within the incorporated area of
the municipality. Only a county may install or authorize the installation of any such detectors within the
unincorporated area of the county.

(b) Pursuant to paragraph (a), a municipality may install or, by contract or interlocal agreement, authorize the
installation of any such detectors only within the incorporated area of the municipality, and a county may install or,
by contract or interlocal agreement, authorize the installation of any such detectors only within the unincorporated
area of the county. A county may authorize installation of any such detectors by interlocal agreement on roads
under its jurisdiction.

(c) Pursuant to s. 316.0083, a county or municipality may use traffic infraction detectors to enforce s.
316.074(1) or s. 316.075(1)(c)1. when a driver fails to stop at a traffic signal on state roads under the original
jurisdiction of the Department of Transportation when permitted by the Department of Transportation.

(9)(a) A county or municipality may enforce the applicable speed limit on a roadway properly maintained as a
school zone pursuant to s. 316.1895:

1. Within 30 minutes before through 30 minutes after the start of a regularly scheduled breakfast program;
2. Within 30 minutes before through 30 minutes after the start of a regularly scheduled school session;
3. During the entirety of a regularly scheduled school session; and
4. Within 30 minutes before through 30 minutes after the end of a regularly scheduled school session

through the use of a speed detection system for the detection of speed and capturing of photographs or videos for
violations in excess of 10 miles per hour over the speed limit in force at the time of the violation. A school zone’s
compliance with s. 316.1895 creates a rebuttable presumption that the school zone is properly maintained.

(b) A county or municipality may place or install, or contract with a vendor to place or install, a speed
detection system within a roadway maintained as a school zone as provided in s. 316.1895 to enforce unlawful
speed violations, as specified in s. 316.1895(10) or s. 316.183, on that roadway.

(c) A county or municipality must enact an ordinance in order to authorize the placement or installation of a
speed detection system on a roadway maintained as a school zone as authorized by this subsection. As part of the
public hearing on such proposed ordinance, the county or municipality must consider traffic data or other evidence
supporting the installation and operation of each proposed school zone speed detection system, and the county or
municipality must determine that the school zone where a speed detection system is to be placed or installed
constitutes a heightened safety risk that warrants additional enforcement measures pursuant to this subsection.

History.—s. 1, ch. 71-135; s. 3, ch. 71-982; s. 1, ch. 76-72; s. 2, ch. 83-164; s. 1, ch. 84-234; s. 1, ch. 85-227; s. 1, ch. 85-325; s. 3, ch.
86-154; s. 1, ch. 89-34; s. 25, ch. 90-330; s. 1, ch. 93-30; s. 33, ch. 94-306; s. 1, ch. 96-200; s. 4, ch. 96-350; s. 81, ch. 99-248; s. 4, ch.
2010-80; s. 1, ch. 2010-163; s. 44, ch. 2010-223; s. 16, ch. 2011-4; s. 2, ch. 2017-150; s. 2, ch. 2018-130; s. 3, ch. 2020-69; s. 2, ch. 2023-
174.

Copyright © 1995-2024 The Florida Legislature • Privacy Statement • Contact Us

5/7/24, 9:19 AM Statutes & Constitution :View Statutes : Online Sunshine

www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?mode=View Statutes&SubMenu=1&App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/03… 3/3
291

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0339/Sections/0339.81.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.074.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.075.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.0083.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.0083.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.074.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.075.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.1895.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.1895.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.1895.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.1895.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=316.008&URL=0300-0399/0316/Sections/0316.183.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=privacy.html&Directory=welcome/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/cgi-bin/View_Page.pl?File=contact.html&Directory=Info_Center/help/&Location=app&Tab=info_center&Submenu=4


Town of Surfside
Regular Town Commission Meeting

May 14, 2024

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM

Agenda #: 9H.
Date: May 14, 2024
From: Commissioner Nelly Velasquez
Subject: Code of Ethics

Suggested Action: – 

Commission consideration of amendments to Town Code of Ethics and/or seeking a Charter
amendment regarding same.

Background/Analysis: – Consider strengthening the Town’s Code to prevent elected officials
of the Town from receiving any financial benefit or income from doing work in Town or for the
benefit of any resident, property owner or business in Town, while in elected office and for a
period of time thereafter.

292



PART II - CODE
Chapter 2 - ADMINISTRATION
ARTICLE VII. CODE OF ETHICS

Surfside, Florida, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 1 of 12

ARTICLE VII. CODE OF ETHICS1

Sec. 2-226. Code of ethics adopted.

(a) Our government is a representative democracy. Those who are elected, appointed, hired, volunteer or 
campaign to serve the public as representatives accept a public trust. The public entrusts its powers and 
resources to its servants to use only in the public interest. Public trust requires public servants to fulfill their 
public duties faithfully and honestly, and to subordinate any personal interest, which conflicts with the public 
interest. The town adopts the following ordinance to provide for specific guidelines for minimum ethical 
standards for public servants, officials and employees. 

(b) It is the policy of the town that no officer or employee of the town shall have any interest, financial or 
otherwise, direct or indirect; engage in any business transaction or professional activity; or incur any 
obligation of any nature, which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of his or her duties in the 
public interest. To implement this policy and strengthen the faith and confidence of the town's residents in 
their government, the town will enact a code of ethics setting forth standards of conduct required of the 
town's public officers and employees, in the performance of their official duties. It is the intent of the town 
that this Code shall serve as a guide for the official conduct of the public officers and employees of the town. 
For the purposes of this article the term "officer" and "public officer" shall include the town commission and 
all appointed town board and committee members. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07)

Sec. 2-227. Code of ethics generally.

The conduct of the officers and employees of the town shall be governed by the code of ethics of the town, 
which shall include: 

(1) The state "code of ethics for public officers and employees", codified in F.S. ch. 112, as may be 
amended from time to time; and 

(2) The "Miami-Dade County Conflict of Interest and Code of Ethics Ordinance," codified at section 2-11.1 
et seq., Miami-Dade County Code, as may be amended from time to time; and 

(3) Any provisions that the town commission may adopt from time to time in addition to those set forth in 
subsections (1) and (2) above. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07)

                                                                

1Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 1474, § 2, adopted April 10, 2007, set out provisions intended for use as §§ 2-149—2-
159. For purposes of clarity, and at the editor's discretion, these provisions have been included as §§ 2-226—
2-236. 

293



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 2 of 12

Sec. 2-227.1 Honor code for elected and appointed town officials and town employees.

(a) It shall be the policy of the town that all elected and appointed town officials and town employees shall 
adhere to the public service honor code ("honor code"). The honor code consists of the following minimum 
standards regarding the responsibilities of all public servants in the town. 

(b) Each elected and appointed public official and employee of the town shall, when acting in his or her official 
capacity, comply with the following standards: 

(1) Serve and protect the public interest above any personal or institutional interest or loyalty; and 

(2) Act as the public's surrogate by protecting it against waste or fraud; and 

(3) Respect and uphold laws, ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations that protect the public against 
abuses in town government by assisting law enforcement and other federal, state, county and local 
authorities charged with protecting the public trust; and 

(4) Report any information concerning activity which may constitute a crime, of which he or she has 
personal knowledge, immediately and personally to the state attorney and/or the Miami-Dade County 
Commission on Ethics and Public Trust; and 

(5) Cooperate fully with law enforcement agencies or other official investigative authorities in providing 
truthful testimony and other relevant information pertaining to any alleged violation of the public 
trust. 

(c) Town supervisors shall counsel and encourage employees in their respective departments to report 
violations of town code, including waste, fraud or other abuse of public resources, to the appropriate agency. 

(d) The honor code shall be enforced as follows: 

(1) The town manager or the town manager's designee may use the administrative process of the town for 
violations of the honor code committed by all officials or employees subject to the authority of the 
town manager. 

(2) The Miami-Dade County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust shall have jurisdiction over violations of 
the honor code committed by elected town officials and by all other town officials and employees not 
subject to the administrative authority of the town manager. The Miami-Dade County Commission on 
Ethics and Public Trust shall follow the procedures outlined in section 2-1074 of the Miami-Dade 
County Code in conducting such investigations or hearings. The Miami-Dade County Commission on 
Ethics and Public Trust may impose a letter of reprimand or letter of instruction following a 
determination that a violation of the honor code has occurred. Such action by the Miami-Dade County 
Commission on Ethics and Public Trust shall not prevent the town or any department head or 
supervisor from taking any additional action or imposing any penalty that they are authorized to take 
or impose. 

(3) Whenever any elected or appointed town official or employee is in doubt as to the proper 
interpretation or application of the honor code as to himself or herself, he or she may request a 
binding opinion from the Miami-Dade County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust. 

(4) Adherence to the honor code by town employees shall be included, wherever appropriate and to the 
extent legally permissible, in the criteria for evaluations for merit increases, promotions, and 
professional recognition. 

(5) The Miami-Dade County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust may include the honor code in its 
ethics training programs for town officials and employees. 

294



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 3 of 12

(e) The town shall not dismiss, discipline, or take any other adverse personnel action against an employee for 
complying with the honor code. Further, the town shall not take any adverse action that affects the rights or 
interests of any employee in retaliation for the employee's compliance with the honor code. If the town 
takes any of the adverse actions stated in the preceding sentences as a result of an employee's compliance 
with the honor code, the employee shall be entitled to apply to the town manager and to the Miami-Dade 
County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust for redress, each of which shall take appropriate steps within 
their authority and discretion to ensure that no employee is penalized for compliance with the honor code. 

( Ord. No. 17-1660 , § 2, 2-16-17)

Sec. 2-228. Penalty.

The ethics commission created pursuant to Miami-Dade County Ordinance No. 97-105 shall have primary 
jurisdiction for enforcement of this code of ethics. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07)

Sec. 2-229. Gifts.

(a) Gift defined. The term "gift" means the transfer of anything of economic value, whether in the form of 
money, service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, item or promise, or in any other form, without 
adequate and lawful consideration. 

(b) Exceptions. The provisions of subsection (a) of this section shall not apply to: 

(1) Political contributions specifically authorized by state law; 

(2) Gifts from relatives or members of one's household, unless the person is a conduit on behalf of a third 
party to the delivery of a gift that is prohibited under subsection (c) of this section; 

(3) Awards for professional or civic achievement but only if the value of said awards is less than $500.00; 

(4) Material such as books, reports, periodicals or pamphlets either solely informational or of an 
advertising nature but only if the value of said material is less than $500.00. 

(c) Prohibitions. Public officers and employees shall neither solicit, demand or accept any gift the public officer 
or employee knew or should have known was offered or given with the intention to persuade them to take, 
or not take, official action, or to perform, or not perform, a duty required by their government service . It is 
also unlawful for any person or entity to offer, give or agree to give to any public officer or employee, to 
accept or agree to accept from another person or entity, any gift for or because of: 

(1) An official public action taken, or to be taken, or which could be taken, or an omission or failure to take 
a public action; 

(2) A legal duty performed or to be performed, or which could be performed, or an omission or failure to 
perform a legal duty; 

(3) A legal duty violated or to be violated, or which could be violated by any public officer or employee; or 

(4) Attendance or absence from a public meeting at which official action is to be taken. 

(d) Disclosure. Public officers and employees shall disclose as provided herein any gift, or series of gifts, from any 
person or entity that are not intended to influence official action, having a value in excess of one hundred 
dollars ($100.00). Said disclosure shall be made by filing a copy of the disclosure form required by F.S. ch. 
112, for "local officers" with the town clerk simultaneously with the filing of the form with the secretary of 
state. 

295



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 4 of 12

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07; Ord. No. 17-1667 , § 2, 12-13-17)

Sec. 2-230. Exploitation of official position prohibited.

(a) No advisory personnel, autonomous personnel, candidate, commissioner, departmental personnel, 
employees, officers or quasi-judicial personnel shall use or attempt to use an official position to secure 
special privileges or exemptions for that person or others except as may be specifically permitted by other 
ordinances and resolutions previously adopted or hereafter adopted by the town commission. 

(b) Continuing application for two (2) years after town service. 

(1) No person who has served as an elected town official shall for a period of two (2) years after his or her 
town service has ceased, lobby any town commissioner, officer or departmental personnel or 
employee in connection with any judicial or other proceeding, application, RFP, RFQ, bid, contract, 
claim, controversy, charge, accusation, arrest or other particular subject matter in which the town or 
one of its departments or instrumentalities is a party or has any interest whatever, whether direct or 
indirect.

(2) No former advisory personnel, autonomous personnel, officer or quasi-judicial personnel shall for a 
period of two (2) years after his or her town service has ceased, lobby the town board or committee on 
which he or she served in connection with any matter related to the board or committee's 
enforcement, oversight or authority. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07; Ord. No. 17-1667 , § 2, 12-13-17)

Sec. 2-231. Certain appearances and payment prohibited.

(a) No commissioner, officer, departmental personnel or the business entity by which they are employed, or 
employee shall appear before any town board and make a presentation on behalf of a third person with 
respect to any matter, license, contract, certificate, ruling, decision, opinion, rate schedule, franchise, or 
other benefit sought by the third person. Nor shall the person receive any compensation or gift, directly or 
indirectly, for services rendered to a third person, who has applied for or is seeking some benefit from the 
town, in connection with the particular benefit sought by the third person. Nor shall the person appear in 
any court or before any administrative tribunal as counsel or legal advisor to a party who seeks legal relief 
from the town through the suit in question. 

(b) No advisory personnel, autonomous personnel, officer or quasijudicial personnel shall appear before the 
town commission, either directly or through an associate, and make a presentation on behalf of a third 
person with respect to any matter, license, contract, certificate, ruling, decision, opinion, rate schedule, 
franchise, or other benefit sought by the third person. Nor shall such person receive any compensation or 
gift, directly or indirectly, for services rendered to a third party that has applied for or is seeking some 
benefit from the town commission in connection with the particular benefit sought by the third party. Nor 
shall the person appear in any court or before any administrative tribunal as counsel or legal advisor to a 
third party who seeks legal relief from the town commission through the suit in question. 

(c) No advisory personnel, autonomous personnel, officer or quasijudicial personnel, after deliberating, 
considering, ruling or recommending on an application filed with the board or committee upon which they 
serve, shall appear before a higher board or the town commission to testify as an affected party. 

(d) No current advisory personnel, autonomous personnel, officer or quasi-judicial personnel shall either directly 
or through an associate, appear, represent or act on behalf of a third party before the town commission, 
town board or committee, or any town department with respect to any action sought by the third person. 
Nor shall such person either directly or through an associate be engaged as a lobbyist for and on behalf of a 

296



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 5 of 12

third person with respect to any official action by any town official or town personnel sought by such third 
person. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07; Ord. No. 17-1667 , § 2, 12-13-17)

Sec. 2-232. General policy employees.

(a) One objective of the town is to establish and administer a system of personnel management consistent with 
the goal of providing superior service to the community by employing and retaining individuals of the highest 
caliber as demonstrated by work performance and job behavior. 

(b) Employees of the town represent the town in all of their dealings with the public. Their appearance, attitude, 
and behavior all announce to our customers, the taxpayers, what may be expected from the town's 
government. For these reasons, we stress the importance of a good public image and courteous behavior as 
minimum standards for town employees. 

(c) It is the policy of the town to expect from its employees compliance with all personnel rules and regulations, 
applicable state statutes and federal regulations, in the performance of duties, as well as compliance with all 
safety rules and standards. 

(d) The town advocates the concept that the quality of public service can attain maximum efficiency and 
effectiveness through a personnel management system based on merit principles. 

(e) The foregoing provisions relating to town employees shall also be applicable to officers. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07)

Sec. 2-233. Conflict of interest.

To avoid misunderstandings and conflict of interests, which could arise, the following policy will be adhered 
to by employees and officers of the town. This policy is in accordance with F.S. § 112.311 et seq., code of ethics for 
public officers and employees. 

(1) Employees and officers shall not accept any gifts, favors, or services that may reasonably tend to 
improperly influence them in the discharge of their official duties; 

(2) Employees and officers shall not use or attempt to use their position to secure special privileges or 
exemptions for themselves or others; 

(3) Employees and officers shall not accept employment or engage in any business or professional activity, 
which they may reasonably expect, would require or induce them to disclose confidential information 
acquired by them by reason of their official position; 

(4) Employees and officers shall not disclose confidential information gained by reason of their official 
position, nor shall they otherwise use such information for their personal gain or benefit; 

(5) Employees and officers shall not have personal investment in any enterprise, which will create a 
conflict between their private interest and the public interest; 

(6) Employees and officers shall disclose to the town clerk, upon a form created by the town clerk, any 
direct or indirect interest in any for profit business relationship and any interest in real property which 
the employees and officers hold with any other employee or officer; 

(7) In addition to the foregoing, town commissioners shall disclose to the town clerk, upon a form created 
by the town clerk, any direct or indirect interest in non-homesteaded real property located within the 
town within 30 days upon purchasing said property. (Upon the passage of this article, the town 

297



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 6 of 12

commissioners shall have 30 days from the effective date, to file disclosure.) Thereafter, the town 
commissioners will be required to file the real property disclosure in accordance with this sub-
paragraph (7) on a yearly basis along with his/her Form 1. However, if for any reason the town clerk 
does not receive same, s/he shall, in writing and via certified mail, request such official who has failed 
to file the required disclosure to do so. Thereafter, failure to make this filing, within ten days from 
receipt of the clerk's notice, shall result in the same penalties as failure to file a Form 1 disclosure as 
required by the county and state. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07)

Sec. 2-234. Town attorney to render opinions on request.

Whenever any advisory personnel, autonomous personnel, candidate, commissioner, departmental 
personnel, employee, officer or quasi-judicial personnel is in doubt as to the proper interpretation or application of 
this conflict of interest and code of ethics article, or whenever any person who renders services to the town is in 
doubt as to the applicability of the article, that person may submit to the town attorney a full written statement of 
the facts and questions. The town attorney shall then render an advisory nonbinding opinion to such person and 
shall publish these opinions without use of the name of the person advised unless the person permits the use of a 
name. Binding opinions may be sought from the county ethics commission. The town clerk shall publish these 
opinions on the town's website. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07)

Sec. 2-235. Lobbying.

This section shall be applicable to all lobbyists as defined below, and shall also constitute a standard of 
conduct and behavior for all lobbyists. The provisions of this section shall be applied in a cumulative manner. 

(1) Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following words, terms and phrases shall have the 
meanings as indicated below: 

a. Town personnel. Those town officers and employees specified to include the mayor and town 
commissioners, town board or town committee members, and all town employees. 

b. Lobbyist. All persons, attorneys, firms, or corporations employed or retained by a principal who 
seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) any ordinance, resolution, action 
or decision of the town commission; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of a town board 
or committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of town personnel during the time 
period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which 
foreseeably will be heard or reviewed by the town commission, or a town board or committee. 
"Lobbyist" specifically includes the principal as well as any employee engaged in lobbying 
activities, as defined in this section, as well as any agent, officer or employee of a principal, 
regardless of whether such lobbying activities fall within the normal scope of employment of 
such agent, officer or employee. The term "lobbyist" specifically excludes any person who only 
appears as a representative of a not-for-profit community-based organization for the purpose of 
requesting a grant without special compensation or reimbursement for the appearance; any 
person who only appears as a representative of a neighborhood, homeowners or condominium 
association without compensation for the appearance, whether direct or indirect or contingent, 
to express support of or opposition to any item, and any person whose representation is limited 
to interactions with town staff or appearances at a public meeting as a representative of a single 
family property owner for a design review or development approval application for the single 
family property owned by that property owner. 

298



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 7 of 12

c. Principal. All persons, firms, or corporations who employ a lobbyist. 

(2) Lobbyist registration, fees, renewal and withdrawal.

a. All lobbyists shall register with the town clerk before engaging in any lobbying activities in the 
town. Every person required to register as a lobbyist shall: 

i. Register as a lobbyist. 

1. Complete the annual lobbyist registration form, as prepared by the town clerk, 
stating under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business 
address of each person or entity which has employed the registrant to lobby, 
and the specific issue(s) on which the lobbyist has been employed to lobby. If 
the lobbyist represents a corporation or is a principal, owner or employee of a 
corporate or other entity, it shall also be identified. 

2. Without limiting the foregoing, the lobbyist shall also identify all persons 
holding, directly or indirectly, a five-percent or more ownership interest in the 
corporation, partnership, or trust. 

ii. Pay an annual lobbyist registration fee of $250.00. 

iii. Register and disclose terms for each principal represented.

1. Complete the annual principal registration form, as prepared by the town clerk, 
prior to conducting any lobbying for each principal (client) being lobbied. Such 
application shall include a requirement that the lobbyist state under oath, his 
or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person 
or entity by which s/he has been employed to lobby, the specific issue on which 
the lobbyist has been employed to lobby, as well as a letter of permission 
signed by the person, entity, principal or the principal's representative, stating 
that the lobbyist is authorized to represent him/her/it, together with a 
disclosure of the terms and amount of compensation paid by each principal to 
the lobbyist. Each lobbyist and his/her principal shall attach a copy of a fee 
letter and specify whether any consideration or fee shall be received for such 
lobbying activities. In the alternative, such lobbyist shall submit to the town 
clerk a joint affidavit, sign by the lobbyist and his/her principal, disclosing the 
terms amount of compensation (to be) paid by each principal to the lobbyist 
with regard to the specific issue on which the lobbyist has been engaged. 

2. Pay an annual principal registration fee of $100.00. 

3. If multiple lobbyists from the same firm represent the same principal, then only 
one principal registration form and principal registration fee of $100.00 is 
required to be filed for that principal. All lobbyists from the same firm who 
represent the same principal must file a separate lobbyist registration form and 
a lobbyist registration fee of $250.00. All lobbyist are required to file an 
expenditure report as outline below in 2 (a) (iv). Any lobbyist from the same 
firm may submit all the necessary documents to the town clerk on behalf of the 
firm. 

iv. File a lobbyist expenditure report. 

1. By January 15 of each year, all lobbyists shall submit to the town clerk a signed 
statement under oath listing all lobbying expenditures for the preceding 
calendar year. The statement shall list in detail each expenditure by category, 
including food and beverage, entertainment, research, communication, media 

299



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 8 of 12

advertising, publications, travel, lodging and special events, and town 
personnel on whose behalf or benefit the expenditure was made. A statement 
shall be filed even if there have been no expenditures during the reporting 
period. Annual statements shall be required until such time as the lobbyist files 
a notice of withdrawal of lobbying activities with the town clerk. 

2. The town clerk shall notify any lobbyist who fails to timely file an expenditure 
report. In addition to any other penalties which may be imposed, a fine of 
$50.00 per day shall be assessed for reports filed after the due date. Any 
lobbyist who fails to file the required expenditure report by February 15 shall 
be automatically suspended from lobbying until all fines are paid, unless the 
fine has been appealed to the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public 
Trust. 

A lobbyist or principal may appeal a fine and may request a hearing before the 
Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust. A request for hearing on the fine 
must be filed with the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust, with a 
copy to the Town Clerk, within 15 calendar days of receipt of the notification of the 
failure to file the required disclosure form. 

v. File a notice of withdrawal. Each person who withdraws as a lobbyist for a particular 
principal (client) shall file an appropriate notice of withdrawal. 

b. All lobbyist and principal registration forms, expenditure reports, notices of withdrawal, and 
applicable fees shall be submitted to the town clerk. Such forms may be amended from time to 
time administratively. 

c. Exemption from lobbyist registration fees. A principal, owner or employee of any business located 
in the Town of Surfside, including a corporation, partnership, company or other entity, who 
appears as a lobbyist on behalf of that entity, without special compensation or reimbursement 
for the appearance, whether direct, indirect or contingent, to express support for or opposition 
to any item before the town commission or board, shall register with the clerk and comply with 
all requirements imposed on lobbyists in this section, and must provide disclosure as to what 
capacity he/she is appearing before the town commission or board, but shall not be required to 
pay any lobbyist registration fees. 

(3) Expiration of lobbyist and principal registrations. All lobbyist and principal registrations expire 
December 31 of each year. 

(4) Processing of registration fees. The registration fees required by this section shall be deposited by the 
town clerk into a separate account and shall be expended for the purpose of recording, transcribing, 
administration and other costs incurred in maintaining these records for availability to the public. 
Unexpended funds may be transferred to general revenue at the end of the fiscal year. There shall be 
no fee required for filing a notice of withdrawal, and the town commission may, in its discretion, waive 
the lobbyist and/or principal registration fee upon a finding of financial hardship. 

(5) Change in lobbyist information. Any change to the information originally filed pursuant to this section 
shall require that the lobbyist file, within three business days from such changed circumstances, a 
signed statement under oath amending the above-referenced reports. Additionally, in the event official 
action on the specific lobbying issue is scheduled to occur during said three-day period, the lobbyist 
and principal shall, prior to said official action, further disclose the amendment by publicly stating on 
the record, at which the official action is to occur, the subject amendment. The lobbyist has a 
continuing duty to supply accurate information and amend said reports when so needed. 

300



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 9 of 12

(6) Creation of a lobbyist log. The town clerk shall publish logs on a quarterly and an annual basis reflecting 
the lobbyist registrations which have been filed in accordance with this section. All logs required by this 
section shall be prepared in a manner substantially similar to the logs prepared for the Florida 
Legislature pursuant to F.S. § 11.045. 

(7) Town clerk to publish information. The town clerk shall publish to the town commission, town 
appointed boards or committees, town manager and other personnel a list of registered lobbyists and 
their principals, for which they are authorized to lobby, and any other disclosure made to the town 
clerk that is required pursuant to state and county law. The information shall be disseminated by the 
town clerk prior to town commission meetings and public hearings. 

(8) Town sign-in sheet. Every lobbyist and principal of a local business shall sign in at the front desk each 
time he or she meets with town personnel at a town facility, or shall deliver a memorandum of said 
meeting to the town clerk within 24 hours of meeting with town personnel at any other location, and 
shall inform the town clerk, in writing, of (1) the name of the lobbyist or the principal of the local 
business; (2) the town personnel in attendance; (3) the time and place of the meeting; and (4) the issue 
discussed. The issue shall be described with as much detail as is practical, including but not limited to a 
specific description where applicable to a pending request for a proposal, invitation to bid, or public 
hearing item. 

(9) Penalties for violation.

a. The town clerk shall notify the Miami-Dade County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust of the 
failure of a lobbyist (or principal) to file either of the reports referenced above and/or pay the 
assessed fines after notification. 

b. A lobbyist (or principal) may appeal a fine and may request a hearing before the Miami-Dade 
Commission on Ethics and Public Trust. A request for a hearing on the fine must be filed with the 
Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust within 15 calendar days of receipt of the 
notification of the failure to file the required disclosure form. The Miami-Dade County 
Commission on Ethics and Public Trust shall have the authority to waive the fine, in whole or in 
part, based on good cause shown. 

c. The Miami-Dade County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust shall investigate any person 
engaged in lobbying activities who may be in violation of this section. In the event that a violation 
is found to have been committed the Miami-Dade County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust 
may, in addition to the penalties set forth in this section, prohibit such person from lobbying 
before the town commission or any committee, board or personnel of the town as provided 
herein. 

i. Every lobbyist who is found to be in violation of this section shall be prohibited from 
registering as a lobbyist or lobbying in accordance with the following schedule: 

1. First violation: For a period of 90 days from the date of determination of 
violation. 

2. Second violation: For a period of one year from the date of determination of 
violation. 

3. Third violation: For a period of five years from the date of determination of 
violation. 

ii. As used herein, a "direct violation" shall mean a violation committed by a lobbyist 
representing said bidder or proposer. 

d. A contract entered into in violation of this section shall also render the contract voidable. The 
town manager shall include the provisions of this section in all town bid documents, RFP, RFQ, 

301



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 10 of 12

and CDBG applications; provided, however, the failure to do so shall not render any contract 
entered into as the result of the failure illegal per se. 

e. All members of the town commission, and all town personnel, shall be diligent to ascertain 
whether persons required to register pursuant to this section have complied. Town commission 
members or town personnel may not knowingly permit a person who is not registered pursuant 
to this section to lobby the town commission members, or town appointed committee or board 
or town personnel. 

(10) Lobbyist contingency fees prohibited. No person may, in whole or in part, receive or agree to receive a 
contingency fee. As used herein, "contingency fee" means a fee, bonus, commission, or nonmonetary 
benefit as compensation which is dependent on or in any way contingent on the passage, defeat, or 
modification of: (1) an ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the town commission; (2) any action, 
decision or recommendation of the town manager or any town appointed board or committee; or (3) 
any action, decision or recommendation of town personnel during the time period of the entire 
decision-making process regarding such action, decision or recommendation which foreseeably will be 
heard or reviewed by the town commission, or a town appointed board or committee. 

(11) Conflict provision. It is acknowledged that Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County Code is a 
minimum standard to govern lobbying activities. If there is any conflict between this section and the 
county code, this section shall control. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07; Ord. No. 13-1599, § 2, 1-15-13; Ord. No. 1628, § 2, 12-9-14; Ord. No. 17-1667 , § 2, 
12-13-17; Ord. No. 18-1679 , § 2, 3-13-18; Ord. No. 18-1692 , § 2, 12-11-18; Ord. No. 19-1703 , § 2, 10-10-19)

Sec. 2-236. Relatives of commissioners on boards and committees.

No relative of a commissioner may serve on any commission appointed board or committee. For the 
purposes of this section "relative" shall mean, the commissioner's spouse, parent, children, step children, 
grandparent, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, first cousin, or 
grandchild. This section shall not apply to appointments made prior to the enactment of this article. 

(Ord. No. 1474, § 2, 4-10-07)

Sec. 2-237. Disclosure of business relationships.

(a) Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following words, terms and phrases shall have the meanings as 
indicated below: 

(1) Business relationship. A member of the town commission or a town board has a business relationship 
with an applicant, Interested Person or entity if any of the following exist: 

a. The member of the town commission or town board or committee has any ownership interest, 
directly or indirectly, in excess of one percent in the entity. 

b. The member of the town commission, town board or committee is a partner, co-shareholder or 
joint venturer with the interested person in any business venture. 

c. The entity or interested person is a client of the member of the town commission, town board or 
committee, or a client of another professional working for the same employer as the member of 
the town commission, town board or committee. 

d. The member of the town commission, town board or committee is a client of the entity or the 
interested person. 

302



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 11 of 12

e. The entity or interested person is a customer of the member of the town commission, town 
board or committee (or his or her employer) and transacts more than five percent of the business 
in a given calendar year of the member of the town commission, town board or committee (or 
his or her employer) or more than $25,000.00 of business in a given calendar year; or 

f. The member of the town commission, town board or committee is a customer of the entity or 
the interested person and transacts more than five percent of the business in a given calendar 
year of the entity or interested person or more than $25,000.00 of business in a given calendar 
year. 

(2) Applicant. Any individual or entity requesting action of the town and all persons representing such 
individual or entity (including, but not limited to, all attorneys, architects, engineers and lobbyists), and 
any individual who, directly or indirectly, owns or controls more than five percent of any such entity 
requesting action of the town. 

(3) Interested person. Any person who speaks for or against any resolution or ordinance before the town 
commission or for or against any matter before any town board or committee who has a direct 
financial interest in the action (including, but not limited to, vendors, bidders and proposers), except 
that owner-occupied residential property owners shall not be deemed to have a direct financial 
interest in zoning and/or land use decisions that may affect their property or the value thereof. 

(b) Disclosure of business relationships.

(1) Time of disclosure. Except as prohibited by law, each member of the town commission or any town 
board or committee shall disclose the existence of any business relationship of which he or she is 
aware that he or she has, or has had within the prior 24-month period, with any applicant or interested 
person, at the time that the applicant or interested person appears before the town commission, town 
board or committee. 

(2) Disclosure subsequent to action taken. Except as prohibited by law, if a member of the town 
commission or any town board or committee learns, within 30 days after action is taken in connection 
with any applicant or interested person appearing before the town commission or town board or 
committee, that he or she had a business relationship with any applicant or interested person who
appeared before the town commission or town board or committee, he or she shall disclose such 
business relationship in writing to the town clerk that was not disclosed at the initial meeting. 

(3) Establishment of business relationship after appearance. Except as prohibited by law, if a member of 
the town commission or any town board or committee establishes a business relationship with any 
applicant or interested person within 12 months after the applicant or interested person appeared 
before the town commission or town board or committee, the member of the town commission or 
town board or committee shall disclose such business relationship in writing to the town clerk. 

(4) Abstention. In any situation where a member of the town commission or town board or committee 
discloses a business relationship under this section, the member may abstain from voting or acting on 
an item because of the appearance of a possible conflict of interest. 

(5) Failure to disclose. If any member of the town commission or town board or committee believes that 
another member has willfully failed to make a disclosure required under this section, he or she may 
submit evidence supporting the alleged failure to disclose to the town manager, who shall place the 
item on the next available regular town commission agenda. If three or more members of the town 
commission determine that an accused town commissioner willfully failed to make the require 
disclosure, the accused town commissioner shall be deemed to be censured. If three of more member 
of the town commission determine that an accused member of a town board or committee has 
willfully failed to make a required disclosure, the accused board or committee member shall be 
removed from the board or committee. The town commission has primary jurisdiction to enforce this 

303



   Created: 2024-02-22 14:50:35 [EST]

(Supp. No. 48)

Page 12 of 12

section and no such authority is conferred on the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust 
to investigate alleged failures to disclose business relationships under this section. 

( Ord. No. 19-1695 , ;s 2, 3-12-19)

Secs. 2-238—2-260. Reserved.

304


	Town Commission Agenda
	Item 1G. - Cover Page
	Item 1G. - Municipal Clerks Week 2024 Request Form
	Item 1G. - Proclamation Municipal Clerks Week 2024
	Item 1H. - Cover Page
	Item 3A. - March 26, 2024 Town Commission Workshop Meeting Minutes
	Item 3A. - April 2, 2024 Town Commission Workshop Meeting Minutes
	Item 3A. - April 9, 2024 Special Town Commission Meeting Minutes
	Item 3A. - April 9, 2024 Town Commission Meeting Minutes
	Item 3B. - February 29, 2024 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes
	Item 3B. - March 4, 2024 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes
	Item 3C. - Cover Page
	Item 3C. - Resolution Certifying Town General Elections
	Item 3C. - Certification Letter - Surfside General Municipal 03.19.24
	Item 3C. - Results Official EL45 03.29.24 -Surfside  03.19.24 Signed
	Item 4B1. - Cover Page
	Item 4B1. - 90-41 Regulated Uses - Drug Stores 
	Item 4B2. - Cover Page
	Item 4B2. - Ordinance Amending Powers and Duties Resort Tax Board
	Item 5A. - Cover Page
	Item 5A. - Reso - Interim Town Manager
	Item 5A. - Marisol Vargas - Interim Town Manager Agreement
	Item 5B. - Cover Page
	Item 5B. - Reso Comm Relations Board - ver3.docx
	Item 5C. - Cover Page
	Item 5C. - Reso - Intergovernmental Agency Agreement
	Item 5C. - Town of Surfside Intergovenmental Agreement - Traffic Engineering Fuctions
	Item 5C. - Exhibit A - Detail Sheets
	Item 5D. - Cover Page
	Item 5D. - Reso Approving MOU - Amend. No. 7 to MOU School Nurse Initiative 24-25
	Item 5D. - Nurse Enhancement Initiative Behavioral Health Services Summary Report and Expanded Services Update
	Item 5D. - Nurse Amend No. 7 Municipalities 24-25 (Form Approved)
	Item 7A. - May Town Manager's Report
	Item 7B. - Town Attorney Report - May 14 2024
	Item 9A. - Cover Page
	Item 9A. - KCE Structural Engineers, P.C. Agreement
	Item 9A. - KCE Structural Engineers-Collapse of Champlain Towers South-Tasks 1 2 and 3
	Item 9A. - Addendum to Agreement for Infrastructure Monitoring Services between Schnabel Engineering LLC and KCE Structural Engineer, PC.
	Item 9B. - Cover Page
	Item 9B. - Attachment "A" - Ordinance No. 2020-1708 Purchasing Code
	Item 9C. - Cover Page
	Item 9D. - Cover Page
	Item 9D. - Leaf Blower flyer
	Item 9E. - Cover Page
	Item 9E. - Miami Dade County Resolution R-214-19
	Item 9E. - Statutes & Constitution View Statutes  Online Sunshine
	Item 9E. - Which states have the highest and lowest rates of homelessness
	Item 9E. - Letter to Mayor Burkett-Surfside 01-13-21
	Item 9F. - Cover Page
	Item 9F. - What is Ecotourism and Why It Matters in 2024
	Item 9G. - Cover Page
	Item 9G. - Biscaya Island Illegal Parking
	Item 9G. - Section 14-28
	Item 9G. - FL Statute 316.008
	Item 9H. - Cover Page
	Item 9H. - ARTICLE VII. - Code of Ethics



